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V h¡iann V é,lez hrr asquillo
[,e¡titieil Pubüc A ccoünlant

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

To the Honorable Mayor and
Members of th€ Municipal Legislature
Municipali§ of Juana I)íaz, Puerto Rico

Report on the Financial Statements

I have audited the accompanying financial statements of each major fund and the aggregate remaining
fund information ofthe Municipality of Juana Díaz, Pueno Rico (Municipality), as of and for the fiscal
year ended June 30. 2015, and the related notes to the financial statements. I was engaged to audit the
financial statements of the governmental activities. These financial statements collectively comprise the

Municipality's basic financial statements as listed in the table of contents.

Manaqement's R€sDonsibilitv for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparalion and fair presentation of these financial statements in
accordance with accounting principles generallv accepted in the United States of America: this includes
the desígn, implementation and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair
presentation of financial statements that are ftee from material misstatement. whether due to fraud or
eITOr.

Auditor's Responsibilitv

My responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements based on my audit. I did not audit
the financial staiements of Villas del Parque (FmHA Project No. 63-033-0690660049). a business-type

acriviry (proprietary fund) of the Municipality, which Single Audit report, reflects total assets, liabilities,
net position, revenues and expenses of $981,644, $1,162,616, (S180,972), $462,745 and S537,576,
respectively. as of and for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2015. Those statements were audited by other
auditors whose report has been furnished to me. and my opinion. insofar as it relates to the amounts

included for Villas del Parque, is based solely on the report of other auditors. I conducted my audit in
accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and the standards

applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by üe Comptroller
General of the United States. Those standards require that I plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable ¿ssurance aboul whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement. Because

of the significance of the matter described in the "Basis for Disclaimer of Opinion on Govemmental
Activities" paragraph, however, I was not able to obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence to provide a
basis for an audit opinion on the governmental activities.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in
the financial stalements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment, including the
assessment ofthe risk of material misstatement of the financial slatemenB, whether due to fraud of error.
In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity's preparation
and fair presentation of the financial statements in order lo design audit procedures that are appropriale in
the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity's
internal control. Accordingly, I express no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the
appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significalt accounting estimates
made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation ofthe financial statements.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT (CONTINUED)

I believe that the audit evidence I have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for my
audit opinions

Basis for Disclaimer of Opinion on Governmental Activities

The Municipality did not have a complete, updated and accurale accounting records of the capital assets

in order to obtain sufficient and competent evidential mafter related to the capilal assets reported in the

accompanying statement ofnet position for $63,543.675, net ofaccumulated depreciation of $42,218,475.
Also, during the fiscal year the Municipality did not recorded certain capital assets additions and

infrasmucture írssets. Because of the inadequacy of the accounting records, I was unable to form an

opinion regarding the capital assets reponed in the accompanying statement of net position.

The Municipality did not comply with the requirements established by Statement No. 18, Accounting for
Municipal Solid ll'aste Landfill Closure and Posl Closure Care C'or/s, issued by the Govemmental
Accounting Standards Board and the regulations set forth by the U.S. Environment Protection Agency in its
"Solid Waste Disposal Facility Criteria", issued on October 9, 1991. At June 30, 2015, the accompanying
statement ofnet position does not include lhe required liability for closure and post closure care costs ofthe
Municipality's solid waste landfill using current costs allocated based on the actual landfill capaciry

used at June 30,2015. Because, of the inadequacy of the accounting records, I was unable to form an

opinion regarding the liability for closure and post closure coss ofthe landfill.

The deferred outflow/ inflows of resources and the net pension liabilify in the statement of position, and

the pension expense for the current period change ofthe net pension liabiliry in the statement ofactivities,
of the govemment wide financial statements were derived from the application of the proponional share

included in the unaud¡ted financial statements, notes and the required supplementary information of the

State Employees' Retirement System Administration, which is a cost-sharing multiple-employer pension
plan. Such amounts represents the 100%. 48o/o and 40ó of the deferred outflows/ inflows of resources,

total liabilities as of June 30, 2015, and expenses for the fiscal year ended, respectively. I was unable to
obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence about the proponional share used to determine the deferred

outflowV inflorvs of resources. nel pension liability. and pension expense of the govemmental activities
and the noae disclosure of the pension plan. Accordingly, I was unable to determine whether any
adjustments to these amounts and disclosure were necessary.

Disclaimer of Oninion

Because of the significance of the matter described in the "Basis for Disclaimer of Opinion on
Govemmental Activities" paragraph, I have not been able to obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence
to provide a basis for an audit opinion on the governmental activities of the Municipality as of June 30,
2015, or the changes in financial position, thereoffor the year then ended. Accordingly, I do not express

an opinion on these financial statements.



INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT (CONTINUED)

Unmodilied Ooinion

In my opinion, based on my audit and the report of other auditors, the financial statements referred to

above present fairly, in all material respects, the respective financial position of the business-type

activities, each major fund, proprietary fund and the aggregate remaining fund information of the

Municipality, as of June 30,2015, and the respective changes in financial position and, where applicable,
cash flows thereof for the fiscal year lhen ended in accordance with accounting principles generally

accepted in the United States of America.

Emphasis of Matter

As discussed in Note 1 (p) to the financial statements. during the fiscal year 2014-2015, the Municipaliry
adopted new accounting guidance, GASB 68, Accounting and Financial Reponing for Pensions and the

related GASB 71, Pension Transition for Contribulions Made Subsequent to the Measurement Date - an

amendment of GASB 68. The financial statements were restated, as a result of the implementation of
these standards. My opinion is not modified with respect to this matter.

Other Matters

Re a ui re d S uopl em e nt qru I nfor mat i on

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the management's

discussion and analysis. budgetary comparison schedule and information about the pension plan of the

Municipaliry's employees on pages 5 through I8, 83 through 84 and 86 to 87 be presented to supplement

the basic financial statements. Such information, although not a part of the basic financial statements, is

required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board, who considers it to be an essential part of
financial reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate operalional, economic, or
historical context. I and the other auditors have applied certain limited procedures to the required
supplementary information in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States

of America, rvhich consisted of inquiries of management about the methods of preparing the information
and comparing the information for consistency with management's responses to my inquiries. the basic

financial staiements, and other knowledge I obtained during my audit of the basic financial statements. I
do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on the info¡mation because the limited procedures do
not provide me with sufiicient evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance. I was unable to
apply cenain limited procedures to the required supplementary information related to employees'
retirement systems informalion applicable to the Municipality, in accordance with auditing standards
generally accepted in the United States of America. I do not express an opinion or provide any assurance

on the information.

Olher Information

My audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the basic financial statements as a whole.
The Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awa¡ds is presented for purposes of additional analysis as

required by U.S. Office ofManagemenl and Budget Circular A-133, Aud¡ts ofSlales, Local Governments,
and Non- Profit Organizalio¡rs. and the Financial Dala Schedule is presented for purposes of additional
analysis as required by the U.S- Department of Housing and Urban Development and is also not a

required part ofthe financial statements. Because of the significance of the matter described in the "Basis
for Disclaimer of Opinion on Governmental Activities", it is inappropriate to and I do not express an

opinion on the supplementary information referred to above.



INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S Rf,PORT (CONTINUf, D)

Otber Reoortinq Required bv Government Auditine Standards

In accordance with Governmenl Auditing Standards,I have also issued my report dated March 31, 2016,

on my consideration of the Municipality's intemal co rol over financial reporting and on my tests of its
compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and other
matters. The purpose of that report is to describe the scope ofmy testing of intemal control over financial
reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the intemal
control over financial reporting or on compliance. That repon is an integral part of an audit performed in
accordance wifh Government Auditing Standards in considering Municipaliry's intemal conlrol over
fi nancial reporting and compliance.
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Mu\lcIPALrrY oF JUA\A DiAz.
CoVVO§ÁTALTH OF PUERTO RICO

Management's Discussion and Analysis
Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2015

As management of the Municipaliry of Juana Díaz (he Municipality), we offer readers the following
discussion and analysis of the Municipality's financial activities reported in the accompanying basic

financial statements as ofand for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2015. We encourage readers to consider

the information presented here in conjunction with additional information that is fumished in the

accompanying financial statements, which follow this narrative.

Besides, this document includes comparative data with prior year as this information was available for the

fiscal year ended on June 30, 2014.This Managemenl's Discussion and Analysis (MD&A) is prepared in
order to comply with the Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) Statement No. 34, "Basrc

Financial Statements - ond Management's Discussion and Analysis-for Stale and Local Governments",

and among other purposes. to provide the financial stalements users with the following major

information:

a broader basis in focusing imponant issues;

acknowledgement of an overview of the Municipality's financial activ¡ties;

provides for an evaluation of its financial condition as of the end of fiscal yeat 2014'2015 compared

with prior year results;

identification ofuses offunds in the financing ofthe Municipality's variety ofactivities and;

. asses management's ability to handle budgetary functions.

FINANCIAL HIGIILIGHTS

G ov ernme nt-Wide Hig h lig hts :

. Total Net Position of the Municipality Govemmental Activities as of the end of the indicated fiscal
year amounred to $ 16,718,030 or twenty percent (20%) of the sum of tolal assets plus total deferred
outflows of resources.

The Municipality's Governmental Activities toÉl Net Position decreased by S1,483,980 or eight
percent (8%) from the prior fiscal year-end balance. as restated.

At the end offiscal year 2015, total liabilities ofthe Municipality Governmental Activities amounted

to §65,575,625. Out of said amount, $60,199,555 corresponded to long-term liabilities of which

S25,940,890 represented the outstanding balance of bonds and notes issued, and $31,781,847
represented the net pension liability recorded as required by the GASB Statement No. 68,
Accounfing and Financial Reporting for Pensions; an amendmenf of GASB Statement No. 27. The
Municipaliry continued to meet all debt service requirements, most of which rvas paid from self
generated revenues.



MT\ICIPALITY oF JUA\A DÍAZ,
Covuo\wEALTH oF PtrERTo IUco

Management's Discussion and Analysis
Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2015

Govemmental Funds' Highlig hts:

¡ As of the close of the current fiscal, the Municipaliry's Governmental Funds reponed combined
ending fund balances of 55,347,397 or S1,484,671 over the similar figure corresponding to the
previous fiscal year 2013-2014.

. At the end of the current fiscal year, the total fund balance of the Municipality's General Fund
amounted to §764,851.

¡ The actual General Fund budgetary activities resulted in a favorable balance of$825,859.

Pruprief ary Fu nd Hig h lig hts :

. The total net position (deficit) ofthe proprielary fund amounted to ($180,972).

. The total fund net position (deficit) of the proprietary fund decreased by $74,831 during the fiscal
year ended June 30, 201 5.

OVERVIEW OF THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The purpose of financial reporting is to provide extemal users of basic financial statements with
information that will help them to make decisions or draw conclusions about the Municipality. There are

many extemal parties that use the basic financial statements of the Municipality; however, these parties

do not always have the same specific objectives- In order to address the needs of as many parties as

reasonably possible, the Municipality, in accordance with required financial reporting standards, presents

this Management's Discussion and Analysis (MD&A) as an intoduction to the accompanying basic

financial statements. This narrative represents an overview and analysis of the financial activities ofthe
Municipaliry for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2015. Because this MD&A is designed to focus on the
current year activities, resulting changes and currently known facts, we encourage readers to consider the
information presented in this MD&A in conjunction with the additional information furnished in the

accompanying basic financial statements.

The Municipality's basic financial statements include three components: (l) govemment-wide financial
statements (GWFS), (2) fund financial statements (FFS), and (3) notes to the basic financial statements
(NBFS). This report also contains additional required information in addition to the basic financial
statements themselves. These components are described below.

The basic financial statemenls focus on: (l) the Municipaliry as a whole (govemment-wide financial
reporting) and, (2) üe Municipality's major individual governmental and proprietary funds. Both
perspectives allow the users to address relevant questions. broaden a basis for comparison (year to year or
govemment to government) and enhance the Municipality's accountability. The components ofthe basic
financial statements are described below.



a)

MU\ICTPALITY oF JUAI-A DÍAz.
COMIIO\WEALTH OF PUERTO RICO

Management's Discussion and Analysis
Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2015

Governm¿nr-Wide Financial Slatemenls

The GWFS are composed of: ( I ) the statements of net position 0 and (2) the statement of activilies
(SA). These financial statemenls can be found immediately following this MD&A. GWFS are

designed to provide readers with a broad overview of the Municipality's operations as a whole in a
manner similar to private-sector business. These statements provide shon+erm and long-term
information about the Municipality's financial position, which assist the Municipality's management

to determine lhe economic condition at June 30, 2015. The GWFS are prepared using melhods that

are similar to those used by most private businesses.

Both of the governmenl-wide financial statements distinguish functions of the Municipality that are

principally supported by taxes and intergovernmental act¡vilies (go|emmental activities) from other
functions that are intended to recover all or a significant portion of their costs through user fees and

charges (ázsiness-type acli|i I ies).

1. St¡tement of Net Position

The purpose of SNA is to attempt to repon all assets owned and all liabilities owed by the

Municipality. The Municipality repons of all of its assels when it acquires orvnership over the

assets and reports all of is liabilities rvhen they are incurred. For example, the Municipality
reports buildings and infrastructure ¿s assets, even though they are not available to pay the

obligations incurred by the Municipaliry. On lhe other hand, the Municipaliry repons liabilities,
such as claims and judgments. bonds and notes payable, obligations under capital leases'

compensated absences and certain accounts payable and accrued liabilities, even though these

liabilities mighl not be paid until several fiscal years into the future.

The difference between the Municipality's total assets and total liabilities reported in SNA is

presented as net positíon, which is similar Io the tolal owners' equity reponed by a commercial
enterprise in its financial statements. Although the purpose of the Municipality is not to
accumulate a positive net position, as this amount increases or decreases over lime, such amount

represents a useful indicator of whether the financial position of the Municipality is either
improving or deleriorating, respectively.

2. Statement of Actiüties

The SA presents information showing how the Municipality's net position changed during the

fiscal year ended June 30. 2015. by presenting all of rhe Municipality's revenues and expenses.

As previously discussed, the items reponed in SA are measured in a manner similar ¡o the

approach used by a commercial enterprise in that revenues are recognized when eamed or
e$ablished criteria a¡e satisfied, and expenses are recorded when incurred by the Municipality.
Consequently. revenues are reported even when they may not be collected for several months

after lhe end of the fiscal year and expenses are recorded even though they may not have used

cash during the current year.

Although SA looks different from a commercial enterprise's income stalement, the difference is

only in format, nol substance. Whereas the bottom line in a commercial enterprise represents its
net income, the Municipalify repoñs an amount described as net change in nel position, which is
essentially the same concept.
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MT]NICIPALITI' OF JI]A\A DÍAZ,
CO}IUO\§EALTH OF PT:ERTO RICO

Management's Discussion and Analysis
Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2015

The focus of SA is on fhe net cos¡ of various activities provided by the Municipaliry. The

stalement begins with a column that identifies the cost of each of the Municipality's major
functions. Another column iden¡ifies the revenues that are specifically related to the classified
govemmental functions. The difference between the expenses and revenues related to specific
functions/programs identifies the extent to which each function of the Municipality draws from
general revenues or is self-financing through fees, intergovernmenlal aid, and other sources of
resources.

This statement also presents a comparison between direct expenses and program revenues for
each function ofthe Municipality.

GWFS and FFS present all ofthe Municipality's governmental and business-rype activities, which are

supponed moslly by taxes, intergovemmental revenues (such as federal and state grants and

contributions). and charge for services. All services normally associated wilh the Municipality fall
into this category, including cuhure, recreation and education; general govemment; health and

sanilation; public safery; public housing and welfare: and economic and urban development.

Fu n d Fi nanc ial Stale ments

The Municipality's FFS consist of: ( I ) the balance sheet - governmental funds, (2) the statement of
revenues. expenditures and changes in fund balances - governmentál funds, (3) the statement of net

position - proprietary fund. (4) the statement of revenues. expenses and changes in fund net position
-proprietary fund, and (5) the statement of cash flows - proprietary fund. These financial statements

report the financial position. the results of operations and cash flows of the Municipality's
govemmental and proprietary funds, with an emphasis on the Municipality's major governmental and
proprietary funds.

A fund is a grouping of related accounts that is used to mainEin control over resources that have been

segregated for specific activities or objectives. The Municipality, like most other state and local

govemmeñts, uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate compliance rvilh finance-related legal

requirements. Each fund is considered an independent fiscal entity accounted for rvirhin a set ofself-
balancing accounts that comprise its assets, liabilities, fund equiry. revenue. and expenditures. Fund

accounting segregates funds according to their intended purpose and is used to aid management in
demonstrating compliance with legal, financial and contractual provisions. All of the funds of the

Municipality can be divided into two categories: govemmenhl funds and proprietary funds.

1. Governmental funds

Governmental funds are used to account for most of the services provided by the Municipality.
These funds are used to account for essentially lhe same functions reponed as governmental
activities in the GWITS. Unlike GWFS, the focus of governmental funds in the FFS is directed to
specific activities of the Municipality rather than the Municipaliry as a whole; therefore,
governmental funds in FFS repoÍ the Municipality's operations in more detail than the GWFS.

Governmental funds in FFS provide a detailed short-term view ofthe Municipality's finances that
assist in determining whether there will be adequate financial resources available to meet the
current needs of the Municipality, which is, evaluating the Municipality's near-term financing
requirements. For financial reporting purposes, the Municipality classifies its governmental
funds within the following rypes: (l) general fund, (2) debt service fund, (3) special revenue
funds, (4) capital projects funds and (5) permanent funds.



Mt:\IctPALITY oF JLA\A DÍAz.
Co}Iuo\\TT.{.LTH OF PLERTO IUCO

Management's Discussion and Analysis
Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2015

Govemmental funds FFS are prepared on an accou ing basis that is significantly different from
that used to prepare GWFS. [n general, governmental funds FFS focus on near-term inflows and

ouflows of expendable financial resources, consequently, they measure and account for cash and

other assels that can easily be converted to cash. For example, amounts reported on the balance

sheet include capital assets within a very shon period of time, but do not include capital assets

such as land and buildings. Governmental fund liabilities generally include amounts that

normally are going to be paid within a short period after the end ofthe fiscal year. The difference
between a fund's total assets and total liabilities is reported as the fund balance or deficit, and

generally indicates the amount lhat can be used to finance the next fiscal year's activities.
Likewise, the operat¡ng statement for governmenlal funds reports only those revenues and

expenditures that were collected in cash or paid rvith cash, respectively, during the current fiscal
year or very shortly after the end ofthe fiscal year.

Because the focus of governmental funds FFS is narrower than that of the GWFS, it is useful to

compare the fund information presented for governmental funds with similar information
prese ed for govemmental activities in the GWI'S. By doing so, readers may better understand

the long-term impact ofthe Municipality's near-term financial decisions. Both the govemment¿l

funds' balance sheel and the governmental funds' statement of revenues, expenditures and

changes in fund balances provide a reconciliation to facilitate the comparison between

govemmental funds and the governmental activities reported in the govemment-wide financial

statements.

The Municipaliry has five major governmental funds. Each major fund is presented in a separate

column in the balance sheet - governmental funds and the statement of revenues, expenditures

and changes in fund balances - govemmental funds. The four major govemmental funds are: (l)
general fund, (2) debt service fund. (3) head stan fund, and (4) capital improvement bond fund.

Proprietary fund

The proprietary fund is a fund used to repon the financial position, results of operation and cash

flows of Villas del Parque (FmHA Project No. 63-033-0690660049), is a housing development
consisting of eighty-four (84) dwelling units located in Juana Díaz. The project is owned by the

Municipatity, but its operations a¡e carried out by a private management agent unrelated Io the

Municipality. The housing development project of Villas del Parque has been designed to assist

various segments of the general public in obtaining adequate and ¡easonable priced rental

housing. The project operates under financing through the Section 8 New Construction and

Substantial Rehabilitation Program of the U.S. Depanment of Housing and Urban Development
and the Section 515 Rural Rental Housing Loans Program ofthe U.S. Department of Agriculture.
The purpose of Villas del Parque is to provide adequate housing to low-income residents of rhe
Municipality.

The activities of Villas del Parque have been reponed as a proprietary fund in the accompanying
basic financial statements since GAAP permits the use of enterprise funds to repon any activity
for which a fee is charged Io extemal users of goods or services. regardless of whether the
government intends to fully recover the cost of the goods or services provided. Thus, it is

common to use proprietary fund reporting to account for services where the government intends
to recover only a portion of its costs through fees or user charges. Proprietary funds provide the
same type of informalion as the CWIS, but in more detail.

l0



MUNCIPALITY oF JUANA DÍAA

,fflT#3 SffiIilffii"T;:,
Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2015

c) Noles to Basic Financiol Stalem¿n s

The NBFS provide additional information that is essential for a full underslanding of the data

provided in the GWFS and FFS. The NBFS can be found immediately following the basic financial

statements.

d) Requied Supplemcrrtary Infomúion

Required Supplementary Information (RSI) follows the basic financial statements and notes to the

financial slatements. The RSI is mandated by the GASB and includes l) General Fund budgetary

comparison schedules reconciling the statutory to the generally accepted accounting principles fund
balances at fiscal year-end and, 2) pension plan and employer trend information related to the net

pension liability and employer contributions.

This Space Has Been Intentionall! Left Blank
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Mr:\ICIPALITY oF JUA-\.-A DiAz,
Colrvo§!'EALTH oF PUERTo IUco

Management's Discussion and Analysis
Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 201 5

FINANCIAL ANALYSIS OF GOVERNMENT-WIDE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Statement ofNet Position serves as an indicator ofthe Municipality's financial position at the end of
the fiscal year. In the case of the Municipality of Juana Díaz, assets and deferred oulflows of resources

exceeded total liabilities and deferred inflows of resources by 516,718,030 at the end of 2015, as

compared with 518,202,010 at the end of the previous year. as restated. Business-type activities total
assets are lesser than total liabilities by ($180,972) at the end of20l5. as compared with total liabitities
exceeding total assets by ($ l06,l4l ) at the end of the previous year. The following condensed Statement

ofNet Position ofthe Primary Governmenl shows on a comparative basis the most important components

of the S1,483.980 decrease reflected in the govemmental activities Net Position figure, and the 574.831

decrease reflected in the business-type activities Net Position figure:

Gore mn¡€Dtal ¡criviti€s Bus ilr€s s-§?€ ¿ctivities

Jutrc 30, Jurc 30,

20t5 20t¿
(r6r¡Éd) (r*r¡ÉO

s 17.378.1,{0 S 16.7,12,288 S 286.159 S 213.179 S 17,664,599 S 16,98i,{67

63.5.13.6?j 65482,912 ó95185 8i0:ñ 64:3q.1í) 6)33.187
8092:.lti 8225:00 981.644 1,093..{i4 81,903,759 83,318,ó54

Ju¡€ 30, Julre 30, Jutrc 30, Jun€ 30,

2015 2014 2015 2011

1.6:5.872 377.051

Curent assels

No¡Fcurren assets:

Capital assels. nel

DeÍ¿¡t¿d outJh»rs of ¡eso,lrces:

Deferred oúflows for peltslons

Toral defered outflorvs of resources:

Iialiliri¿s:
Curreñ tabilities. exc[dü]g bng.tefm
obllgatbns

Lor¡g-rerm oblgaÍons:

Due \r,ithm orÉ yea.

Due after onc year

Tolal liab itres

De¡e en iñiaes o¡ ¡esowces:

Defened rrflo¡¡s lbr persior¡s

Total deferred ml¡ows of resd.rces

Iñ€s¡ed in capital asse6, iEr of.ehted
debl

Restrictcd

Unresrtted
Total nel pcihon

t.61i.87: 377.051

I 6:5 871 177 0i I

.+.01?.t91 1.428.673 43;731

i6.r8:J6l 5s.076::3 1.076:ló
6i 57i o2i o.r .$0 :4 I I . I 61.6 I 6

- \ 5812 l770ir

4{l-883 5J18.719 5,93ó,228

40.7t4 4!fi.923 3.4ó9j87
1.u7.98 57258.579 56.194P1
I lqa 5q5 6ó 738J41 ó5.5Cq.816

254332

254J3:

251.332

- 154332

.f3,511,590 ,14,309.817 t424.46,1 {308417) 43.088,t:8

4.58:.546 4)19503 1,t3,190 202-2% 4,826p36

14,001,190

4,48t,79

The Statement of Activities reflects thaf for fiscal year 2015, the net effect of the revenues derived from
several programs plus current operating revenues. amounted to (Sl,483,980) in governmental activities,
and ($74,831) in business-rype activities. Approximately forty percent (40%) of the Municipaliry's
governmental activities total revenue came from taxes. while fifty-six percent (5ó%) resulted from grants
and contributions, including federal aid. In the case ofthe business-type, approximately ninety-six percent
(96%) of total revenues resulted from federal grant. The Municipality's governmental and business-type
activities expenses included items such as general government, urban and economic development, health
and sanitation, public safety, public housing and welfare, culture, recreation and education, and interest
on long term obligations.
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ML\]CIPALITY oF JUA\-A DÍAz'
COV\ÍO\§EALTH OF PLERTO ITCO

Management's Discussion and Analysis
Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2015

Approximately twenty three percent (23yo) of tolal expenses resulted from general govemment, twenty
rwo percent (22%o) of total expenses resulted from urban and economic development, six percent (6%) of
total expenses resulted from health and sanitation, six percent (6%) of total expenses resulted from public

safety, seven percent (7%) of total expenses resulted from public housing and welfare, thirty two percent

(32%) of total expenses resulted from culture, recreation and education, while four percent (4%) of total
expenses resulted from interest on long term obligations. The following is a condensed presentation ofthe
Municipality's results of operalions as reported in the statement of activities for the fiscal years ended

June 30, 2015 and 2014:
B us itr. s s-§?.

rctivitics

Jorc 30,

2015

Pmgrlm ftv.nuas:

Prograrn-specrfÉ operatrE gran6 and con¡rbúbrB

ProÉrarn-specil_. capil¡l gran§ arid cortrhf otrs

Charges for servtes
Tolal program revemEs

Gcucr¡l rtvc nrcs:
Proper¡' laxes

Munbipal l¡e¡s€ taxes

Sales a¡d use taxes

Cdrstruction excae taxes

Unrestricted grans and contrb$bn§
OdEr general r€r€nús (larDus sources)

Total gerEml revenu€s

T.!talrerrnEs
Pmgr¿m.rp.tr§.s:

General gor'€nme

Urban and economr da\elopme

Heaft,h and sanratpn

Publt safe§

Publ¡ hot§mg ard wetfar€

Culuir€, recreation and education

Inr.r€sl on long-¡erm obl€at¡olts

Total eryerses

\.r chrrg. itr r.t positior
\G¡ positiotr, ¡t b.gioniDg offsc¡l y.¡r, a§

risrrr.d
N.t posirior, ¡r.rd offsc¡l yc¡r. rs nst¡r.d $ 16718p30 $ 1t202,010 $( 180,972) ${106,141) $ 16537,058 $ 41224fo7

C,ov.mm.nld ¡.tivit¡.s Tolfl

$ 7.892.833

t,070.065

5 t0.182

I1.473.080

5,70¿595

23792r0
2¡i5,51l
l.l5l.7t9
5216,r93

169.452

r7ó?4.6E0

29.147.t@

69079o7

6:749510

1920,945

2.r6857r

t.926,327

9.65'7,445

lJm,975
10.6.11,740

( rJ83.98O)

r8:02010

Jun. 30,

$ 7.936,558

3070.065

359231

l l3ó5.8i4

1.401,482

2. t27.%0

2.m 205
1t0:56

5)26532

18.ó49.?51

l00r 5.605

6.106.1tX

6.Q2.469
2.t50,7i1

l.7t 1.t56

2180,088

9.757.821

-Llll8r!30,374.n6

(.159.171 )

t 85ót,l8 t

15.92 lrj37
459.405 457.056

s 8Jf246

3.070.065

526.114

I t.9t2.485

5,702,595

2j792t0
2,455,5 r I

l.t i l.?t9
52r6,¡93

n6lSpro

29,610,505

690t 907
6149,510

r,920,945

2.168,571

2.4$,q3
9.657.445

r 3m,975
31,169.316

(r Js8.8l l )

18,095,869

§ 8J62pZ

1,070,065

390,768

11,822910

7 N7A82
2,r27.960

2,7,205
410256

s326532
602,768

r 8.652203

.t0.475,1l3

6,7M,7ú
6.42L469

2.150,711

1.711.156

3.002,708

9,751,823

1.145,821

30,8973%

(422Á3t

47.ffi89o

Jüne 30, Jun. 30, Jün. 30, Jútr. 30.

201{ 2015

$ 44.1.411 $ 425i19

3,340

3J40

537576

5]1576

( 74.8i I )

(r06.1.fl)

522,40

-----!::E!

(63.1l2)

(43029)
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ML\tctPALITY oF JI;A\A DÍAZ
Co\t\ro\u-EALTH oF Pt:ERTo Rlco

Management's Discussion and Analysis
Fiscal Year Ended June 30,2015

FINANCIAL ANALYSIS OF GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES

Analysis of Financial Position of Govetnmzntal Funds

As discussed earlier. the Municipali¡ uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate compliance with
finance-related legal requirements. The focus of the Municipalit-v's govemmental funds is to provide

information on near-term inflows, oufflows, and balances of expendable resources. Such information is

useful in assessing the Municipality's compliance with finance-related legal requirements. Specifically,

unreserved fund balance may serve as a useful measure of the Municipality's net resources available for
spending at the end ofthe fiscal year.

As ofthe end ofthe current fiscal year, the Municipaliry's govemmental funds reported combined ending

fund balances amounting to S5.347.397. which represents an increase of $1.484,671 when compared with
the prior year.

Fund balances at June 30, 2015 were restricted and committed for lhe following purposes: (l) for debt

service payments (S1,739,838);2) to pay for capital projects ($1,025,021); and 3) for other purposes

($2.004,376). As of June 30, 2015, the General Fund, which is the main operating fund of the

Municipaliry, reflected an unassigned fund balance of 5577 ,662.

The following table presents the condensed financial position ofgovernmental funds at June 30, 2015 and

2014:

20r5 2014

,4ss¿8.'

Total assets - ma¡)r go\emmental fu¡ds

Total assets - other goremmental funds

Combined ¡otalasses

Lia bililies:
Total liabilities - major governmental funds

Total liabilities - other govemmental fLnds

Combined total liabilities

DeÍeüed inÍlot|'s of resuüces:

Total deferred inflorr s of resources - major goYemmental lünds

Total deferred inllorvs of resouces - other governmental funds

Combined total liabilities

Fand ba la rrc e s @ ertc i¡s) :

Restricted commhted or assigned - major govemmenhl fuflds

Restricted committed or assigned - other go\€nunental funds

Unassigned

Combine d otal ti¡nd balances

Total liabilities ond fund fuldrrces

4,922.5E5 52lr20t

$ 13.791.009 $ l3ól lo75
4,U5293 4,026,161

17.E36302 17.637236

5,338.71.1 6333,924

2,227.$6 2229.385

7.5«320 8563i09

1.922.585 521 t 201

2952.M8 1,135,571

1.817.687 t;7 -776

577.«2 ( r.069_.621)

5,347 .397 3,862.726

t4
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ML\]CIPALTTY OF JLA\A DÍAA
Co\T\f o\$E.{LTH oF PUERTO RICO

Management's Discussion and Analysis
Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2015

FINANCIAL ANALYSIS OF BUSINESS-TYPE ACTIVITIES

Anolysis of Financial Position of Propñetary Fand

At June 30, 2015. the total assers of proprietary fund amounted to $981,644, which consisted principally
of: (l) resÍicted cash in commercial banks ofS28ó.159, and; (2) capital ¿rsses, net of accumulated

depreciation of $695,485.

At June 30, 2015, the total liabilities of the proprietary fund amounted to $ 1,162,616, which consisted
principally ofmortgage notes payable of$1.1 19,947. including cunent portion of S42,052.

The total restricted net position of proprietary fund amounted to ($180,972) at June 30, 2015. The

following table presents a summary ofthe financial position ofthe proprietary fund (PF) at June 30, 2015

and 2014:

2015 20r4
Assets:

Total current assels

Total non-current assets

Totalassets

Liabililies:

Total c urrent Iiabilities

Total non current liabilities

Total liabilhies

Nel position:

Invested in capital assets, net of related debt

Restricted for federal funded program

Totol restricted nel position

BUDGETARY HIGHLIGHTS

a) General Fund

The original budget of the general fund for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2015 amounted to

§16,660,71l. The final budget ofthe general fund for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2015 amounted

to S15,663,554. Over the course ofthe fiscal year, the Municipality revised the GF's budget in order
to include increases and decreases in expendilures. The laws and regulations of the Commonwealth
mandate a balanced budget.

$ 286,159 § 243,179

695,485 850,275

981,U4 t,093,454

86.400 81.597

1,0762't6 l,l 17,998

t,162,616 1,199,595

(424A62) (308,437)

2431% 202,296
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Mt \TCTPALITY oF J[:A\A DÍAz,

"'.i,,T;'i3iJ;tli$I,.:#:*l;3.Fiscal Year Ended June 30,2015

The total actual revenues (budgetary basis) of the general fund for the fiscal year ended June 30,

2015 were S15,600,655, which is point four percent (.4o/o), or $62,899 less than the budgeted

revenues. In addition, the total actual expendirures and ofher financing sources (budgetary basis) of
the general fund for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2015 were $ 14,774,796, which is six percent

(6%), or $888,758 less than Ihe budgeted expenditures.

CAPITAL ASSETS AND DEBT ADMINISTRATION

a) Capital Assets

The Municipality has invested S105,?62,150 in capital assets used in govemmental activities, which
have an accumulated depreciation and amofization of $42,218,475 at June 30,2015. The net capital

asses of governmental activities decreased during the current fiscal year by §1,939,237. The cunent
fiscal year's capital addhions were S1.768,141, which were offset by the depreciation and

amortization expense of$3,707,378 for the same period.

The capital addirions made to capital assets during the fiscal year ended June 30,2015 were the

following:

Construction in progress

Buildings, slructures and improvements

Infraslructure
Machinery, equipment, furnilure and fixures
Licensed vehicles

Other capital additions for the fiscal
year ended June 30. 2015

s 143,000
1.203,432

4t,736
185,105

194,868

$ 1,768,141

b) Debt Administration

The Puerto Rico Legislature has established a limitation for the issuance of general obligation municipal

bonds and notes for the payment of which the good faith. credit and taxing power of each municipaliry

may be pledged. The applicable law also requires rha¡ in order for a Municipality to be able to issue

additional general obligation bonds and notes, such Municipality must have sufficient "payment capacity"

as defined in Act No. 64. Such Act establishes that a Municipality has sufficienl "payment capacity" to

incur additional general obligation debt if its deposits in the Redemption Funds and the annual amounts

collected with r€spect to such Municipality's Sales and Use Tax and Special Additional Tax (as defined

below), as projecred by GDB. will be sufficient to service to maturity the Municipality's outstanding
general obligation debt and the additional proposed general obligation debt.
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ML§CIPALTTY oF JT]A]\A DÍAz,
Cov\toñTEALTH oF PUERTo Rrco

Managemenl's Discussion and Analysis
Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2015

The Municipality is required under prevailing applicable law to le\T a Special Additional Tax and a Sales

and Use Tax in such amounts as shall be required for the payment of its general obligation municipal
bonds and notes. In addition, principal of and interest on all general obligation municipal bonds and
notes and on all municipal notes issued in anticipation of the issuance of general obligation bonds issued
by the Municipality constitute a first lien on the Municipality's Basic Tax revenues. Accordingly, the
Municipality's Basic Tax revenues would be available to make debt service payments on general

obligation municipal bonds and notes to the extent lhat the Special Additional Tax and the Sales and Use

Tax levied by the Municipality, together with moneys on deposit in the Municipality's Redemption
Funds, are not sumcient to cover such debt service. In the particular case of the Municipaliry of Juana
Día¿ it has never been necessary to apply Basic Taxes to pav debt service on general obligation debt of
the Municipality.

ECONOMIC FACTORS A¡{D NEXT YEAR'S BUDGETS AND RATES

The Municipaliry relies primarily on property and municipal taxes as well as federal and state grants to
carry out the governmental activities. Historically, property and municipal taxes have been very
predictable rvith increases of approximately five percent, but for the fiscal year 2015-2016. the property
tax and subsidies from the Commonrvealth of Pueno Rico's General Fund and contributions from the
Traditional and Electronic Lottery sponsored by said Govemment were slightly increased. Federal and
State grant revenues may vary if new grants are available, but the revenue can be also predictable. Those
factors were considered when preparing the Municipaliry's budget for the fiscal year 2015-2016.

FINALCOMMENTS

The Municipality of Juana Díaz is an aüonomous governmental entity whose powers and authority vested
on its Executive and Legislative Branches are specifically established in the Municipal Autonomous Act
approved in August 1991. By virnre of such powers, it provides a wide range of services to its
constituents which includes, among others, public works. education. public safery, public housing, health.
community development, recreation, waste disposal, welfa¡e and others. The Municipality's principal
sources of revenues are derived from property taxes, sales taxes, municipal license taxes, subsidies from
the Commonwealth of Pueno Rico's General Fund and contributions from the Traditional and Elect¡onic
Lottery sponsored by said Government.

Since the Municipality is significantly dependent on lhe intergovernmental grants and contributions
received from lhe govemment of the Commonwealth of Pueno Rico and from propeny tax advances
received from CRIM, the municipaliry could suffer a significant financial burden for cenain scheduled
intergovemmental revenues that could not be collected during the fiscal year 2015-2016, and accordingly,
management is continuously evaluating alternatives for the permanent financing of the operations of the
general fund and the Municipaliry.

In order to achieve its budget con¡rol and cost reduction objectives, management is cunently trying to
manage the Municipality within its cash and budget constraints, including the periodic review and update
of its cash flows projections, actual vs. budget comparisons for budget adjustments as needed, and the
monitoring of the execution of the collections.
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MLT\'ICIPALITY OF JUANA DÍAA
COMMONWEALTH OF PT]ERTO RICO

Management's Discussion and Analysis
Fiscal Year Ended June 30,2015

The success of the forcgoing plans and strategies to reduce the general fund's accumulated deficit, to
improve the cash flows and liquidity of the Municipality and to achieve excess revenues over
expenditures in the general fund of the Municipality cannot be assured, as it is significantly dependent

upon events and circumstances which outcome c¿rnno¡ presently be determined- However, management is

committed to undertake whatever actions may be necessary to prevent operating deficiencies in the future,

but without affecting its fiduciary duty with is citizens regarding services and cify improvements.

RX,QUEST FOR INFORMATION

The Municipality's financial statements are designed to present users (citizens, taxpayer, customers,

investors and creditors) with a general overview of the Municipality's finances and to d€monstrate the

Municipality's accountability. If you have questions about the report or need additional financial
information, contact the Municipality's Chief Financial Officer at P.O. Box 1409, Juana Díaz, PR 00795,
or call (787) 837-2185.
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COMMONWEALTH OF PI]ERTO IUCO
MUNICTPALTTY oF JUANA DIAZ

Statement of Net Position
June 30, 2015

Govemmertal Busiress-typ.

áctivities ¡ctiviües Total

Assets

Cüñent assefs¡

Cash i'l comnrcrcial banks

Cash in fscal agent

Accounts receivabb, rEt of albwance for doubtfif accoutts:

Propefty taxes

Intergoverünental

Sabs tax

Munfoipal license

Interest

Orher

Real estate heH for sab

Other current ass€ts

Total cuÍent assets

Noncurrent ,ssets:

Capiial assets, net of accunulatEd depreciation aÍd

amortization of $4221&475 and$32§-7» for

govemrnental and h§irEss-qle acriviies, respectively

Total fpncurrem asses

Total assets

Deñrred outf,orÁ of resources:

Defened oufbws for persbm

Tot¡l deñrrcd outfor6 ofrcsources:

63543ó75 695.485 64239.t@

63.543.675 695.485 6423e,1&

$ 80.92¿ll5 $ 981,644 $ 81,903,759

$1.625.82$-§t§25,8'72
$ló25§72$-$1,625,872

6§24,942 $ 273116

4)372@

2&618

s291548

2t4208

5$16

4,131

55,802

816915

'7947

4:7%

,u6,19t7 )78.440

$ 68e8J58
433'726¡

2&6r8

5291,548

21428

5,016

4l3l
63J49

816915

4,7

r7§64.5»
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CoMMoNU,EALTH oF PUERTo Rrco
MUMCTPALITY OF JLIANA DTAZ

Statement of Net Position
June 30, 2015

Govemmental Business-type

activities activities Totel

Currefi Li¡b¡lities (due within otre year):

Accounts payable

Inte¡gover¡nE¡Ial @)abbs

Accrued interest pelabb on long-te¡m debl

Accn¡ed christ¡rns bomses of empbyees

I IneanEd revenres

Cürrent pofion of brig-tErm obliSations:

Bods payable

Notes palabb

Compemated absences

Total curent liabiliti s

Noocurlrnt liabilitics (due in more than one year):

Bonds palable

Not€s payabb

Compe¡sat€d absences

N€t pension lbbility

Total cu¡renr liabilitÉs

Total lilbittbs

Deft rred inloqE of rtsources:

Deferred infbws for pemiom

Total de&rrcd itrfow ofrtsouraes:

Net position:

Invest€d i¡ capital assets, Det of reht€d debl

RestrttEd for:

Debl servbe

oú€r specifEd purposes

Umestrbted rEt liabilitbs

Tolal rct position

$ 254332 s 254332

$254332$-$21332

$ 43Jl¿590 s, (424,4A\ $ 43,088,128

3551,525

1268,51r

(313't'1,t06l

$ 16J37,058

243A9o

$ (180,972)

$ tJs79t2

520236

3',76367

191527

¿530,028

¿404,0m

613,192

1,000,000

9)932Á2

lz? r0,000

s213,698

l176818

31,781,841

56182363

$ 65575,625

4L6r,9 $ 1,800,581

- s20236

- 376)67

- 9t5n
- 2530,022

- 2,404,000

43,731 656923

86 400

t§762t6

1,o162t6

-g-lgls-

9A79,62

12710,000

6289914

1,476,818

31J81,847

5'1258,579

s 6J3824t

3,557,525

\025,41
(r r,377,r06)

$ 167l&030

The accompanying notes to the basic linancial statenents are ¡n integrrl part of this statement.
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CoMMoNWEALTH oF Pl)ERTo Rlco
MlrNrcrPAr,rr'r' ()F JtTANA DlAz

Statement of Activities
Fiscal Year Ended June 30. 201 5

Pro[rañ Rewnues Nef lExDense) RcrEnue snd Chance in Net Positioo
Operafing

(--h¡rges for g ra[ts and
serüces conlrihutions

(l¡fital
grants rnd

contributions
(;olernmertal Busincss-tylc

actiüiies actiüties 'lbtel¡'unctions/frogr¡ms

(;owrnmenta¡ act¡üfies :
(ieneral govemñelrl
Urban and economic devebpnre¡l
I laallh and san¡1r¡tion

Public sal¡1y
l'ublic housi»g arrd rvcllárc
(lu lturc. recreati()n ánd edücation

lDlcrcsl on long-term obligation
'lblal gov crDnrcntal acl iv il iss

Busincss-tyfr ocfiüfies :

Public housing and *cllárc.
including irrlerest s on krng
term ohligation ol $ 80.934

'I otal busincss-typc aclivilics

_@_

$ ó.907.m7
6,749,51t)

1,920,t45

2.168.5'71

I,926321
9.657.445

$ 15.275

2|.730
85.897

2.O18

195.202

r.3(n.975

$ 30,63t,740 $ 5t0"llr2 $ 7,tt92,1r33 $ 3,070,065 $ (t9,158,660)

s (6.726.215\
(3,552,505)

(r,5ti7,450)
(2,069.92t)

(41li.562)
(3.502.972)

(r.300.975)

§ 16.726.215)
(3,552,505)
( 1,s87,4s0)
(2.069.»\)

(4t8,562)
(3,502"972\

(1,300.97s)

$ ( t9,158,660)

5,702.595

2,319,210

2.455.5t I

t, t5 t,719
I r.6119,035

5,216,193

52,021

717.431 2.944 720.375

t?ó?4ós0 3310 t t?-6?sJ)r,)
(1,483,980) (74.83r) (1.558,8t t)
t8,202,010 (106,141) 18,095,869

$ t6,718,030 $ (t80.972) $ 16.537,058

166-3s7 $

127,O9t)

t2t,765
12,153

1.505.687

5.t)59.271

3,070,065

$ 53?,576 $ r5.ee2 S 443.413 $ - $ - $ (7{r.r7r) $ (78,r7r)

$ 537.576 $ 15.992 $ 443.413 $ - $ - $ (78.t71) $ (78,17t)

C,]nemlRcvenues:
'laxes:

I'R)perly laxes

Mu¡ricipal liccDsc taxcs

Sales taxes
(lonstruction cxcisc taxcs

'fofalta¡(es

Cranls and confributions. nol resfr¡cted to specilic pnrgrarns
lntcresls on dcposits
Miscellaneous

'l'otal gene¡al revenues
('hangcs in nct position
Ne1 position at begi¡lning ol the year, as reslalcd

Net position al the end ofthc year

- 5.702.595
- 2.379.210

- 2.4ss.s11

l.l5t-719
- I t,689,035
- 5,216,193

3q6 52,417

The accompanying notes to the basic linancial statements are an integral part of this statement,
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COMMONWEALTE OT PIJERTO IUCO
MUN'ICIPALITY oF JUANA DIAZ

Balance Sheet - Govemment¿l Funds
June 30, 2015

ASSETS

cash m comrErcill banl§

cash m fscal ageÍ
Account receivable. net of

douhtfii accormts:

Propeny la)€s

Mrnicipal li:eÍse
Sales tax
lnterest

Other

Due from other finds
Due from golemrrenÉl €ntaies

Total assets

LL{BILITIf,S
Accoun6 palable

IntergolemnEntal
DrE to other fimds

Ma¡¡red bor* due a¡d paFbb

Ma¡¡red interests due and p4¿bb
Total l6b ities

DI,FERRED INI'LOWS OF RESOURCES

Uftalaüble revenue

Total deferred inflows of resources

FUN'D BALANCE
Flmd bahnce:

Restrict€d

Coünitt d
Ur¿ssE ed

Tolal fund bahrE€s (defrr)
TOTAL LLABILITIE§ DEFERRED INTLO\»§
OF RESOURCES AN'D FA]ND BALA.NCE (Df,FICTI)

MAJOR FUNDS

Capúal Other Total

Ceneral Deba S.rvice H€ad Sta¡t Impro¡r'elrEnt Nonmaior Cú\'ernnEnlal

Füü Fulrc Fund Bord Fltrd Furds 
--¡1§-

$2,770,755 $ - §47892i $ 578 $33?4,686 § 6,44942

7923 3,123.$2 - 1958i72 1473]3 43312fi

- 28,618

5pr6
t42.683 71.525

413r
55,684

tlm554 - 154223 1274:7n

4,922J8j _j- --------:- -------------:- 
368.963 529198

'.",'*'...ry..g-ry.ryry

28.618

spl6
214208

4,131

- l l8 55,802

$1, 9ó76 $
90

97
1,701,586

- 1,t07,000

$ 146323 $ 20.155

70.807 t4)74
1,793

s 471,7s8 $ \.75791?
- 5n236

1,189,199 1274,777

5«,649 2,530928

- I,107,000

- r1A t^7 - 176 Y\7

3 J4l 895 t48]J67 478.9¡ 34.529 2227ñ 1,ffi)b

-l%fi- -------------:- - --------------:-- - 4's2'sss

792j I,739,838

t19 - 1,817,6&7 1,996,9s3

764.85r r,739,838 __-____:___)89_ 1.817-687 s34739',1

$q02qjlt $ 323205 S4789¡ $ lp59j50 $4.0452e1 S 17.836J02

r,05,021 - 2m182

The accompanying notes to th€ b¡sic linanci¡l statements are an integral part of this statement
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COL&{ONWEALTH OF PUERTO RICO
MUMCIPALITY oF JUANA DIAZ

Statement ofRevenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances (Deficis) - Govemmental Funds
Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2015

MAJOR FTINDS

Capital

Head Starl Iriprovem€nt Nonma¡r Govemrnental

Fltrd BoúFrtrü Fuüs Frmds

Rf,VENUES

Taxes:

Property taxes

Municipal lierse
Co6tructir €xcke taxes

Sales tax

ClErges of serv¡e
Intergove¡rünental grartrs ard cor'1rfofi»s:

Federal govermrErú

Sote goveÍm€rf
IrNestrnent eamhgs

MiscelhrEot§
Total Reverues

EXPENDITURES

Crnrent:

C-Er¡eral govemmenl

Uñan ard ecornrnic deve@rEnt
Heahh ard saniátin
Pubh safety

Arbli housñg arid welfare

Cukt¡re, recreatbn ard ed.Ealbn

D€bt serv¡e:
Prircipal

Interest
Capúal oúlays

Total Exp.ndiEes
Revenrs o¡r'er (wder) ep€rdiEres

orHER FTNANCTNG SOURCES (tiSES)
Tral§fer in from other ñ¡¡s
Trarlsfer out to oúer ñ.mds

PreeeG fton deh issuance

To(al OthÉr F anciE Sor¡rces (usÉs)

NET CHANGE IN T'UND BAI-ANCES (DOFICITS)

FIIND BAI-ANCE (IIEFICTD AI BEGINNING
OF YEAR

sJ8392t

1.18r.628 388.956

(4r6.rn) r3s0.882 __________j_ ___IEL&L 1.7%.n6 3@726

$ 764,85r $ r,739,838 $ - $ 1,025,021 S t§r7.6t7 $ 5)4',t39

Debt Service

C'€ñeralFnü Flmd

$ 3,958,685

23792t0
1,151J19

t:74ó.1

28/.914

5,688,770

48,m9

$ rl439r0 $ - $

'7c9_31'.7

- 5,783,021

2582

- s - § 5,m2595

\379210
t,l5l,?19

- r t3084 391_98

- 2,485508 8 8529
- 25lq408 &19,178
483 %7 5\02t

- l15ll7 7,7AJs9
- l3l8jr0 5J26.408

- 19,883 t772)5t
- 71_864 tn8597
- tr6t.43'1 t926 j27
- 1,4t0 6963

- t50,m 1257,0m

- 242313 rJ00.975

____j§lJz_ .................- -________:_ -___________:_ 2t6443 82e.6ts
15,810,6?3 2455,809 5,783,021 4$ $86)* 29,4X)76

7587.3¿2

4.107,898

ús2,44
1:706j33

26489)
919565

- 1,107,m0
_ t,018,602

(106,824) m9ll tiu§71

RrND BAr-ANcE (DEFrcm§

The accompanying notes to the basic linancial statements ¡re an integrrl part of this statement.
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CoMMoNU,EALTH oF I'UERTo Rrco
MUNICIPALITY OF JLIANA DIAZ

Reconciliation ofthe Balance Sheet - Govemmental Funds
and the Statement ofNet Position - Proprielary Fund

to the Statement ofNet Position
June 30, 2015

Govcmrncrtal Bus¡nass-type

¡.tlvltLa ,.tiviti.3 Tot !

Tha ar¡oúifr ofgovemnErf¿l and h.§rEss-q?€ activias r€poled in the statement of
pGiilr arc difrercnt !o the arriormts repoícd ñ úE bah¡Ee shact - gor€rññentál ñ,fl&

and th€ stat€nEr¡ ofposi¡n - proprietary fi¡¡ü, respectivcly, for dE fo¡lowiB rcásorb:

T@l fuid babrce and furd rEt po6t¡n repoled in dE bahrre sltet - 8oleÍiÍi€ntal
ñufs a¡d ttE sratcrrm ofposiim - frad.táry ñ¡d, respectiv€ly. S 534fin (180,9?2) S 5,166"125

Add (Ded¡f,t):

Capial asset held for sale reponed in gorrmrneÍal activiÉs are rút corisü€r€d

alaihble ftrErEal resources a! fscal year-end lhErcfore, a¡e Dot reporEd in the

govemm€ al furüs Th¡ 6 the carrying ariount ofcapial asset held fo. sale a¡ June

30,2015. tl69l5 816,915

Capaal ass€6 used h goleñmental activitbs arc not coris¡dered alaihblc firBncial

rcsources at f6cal year-end, therefüe. are m! rcpor¡ci ñ the governmental ñrds
Th¡ b the carryiE amomt ofcapñsl assc§, rEt of accu¡ulacd deprecátix a¡ú

ammiaún of §42218.4?5 a¡ Jmc 30. 2015

Ccriain defened hflol}s ofr€sdrccs in úlc gowññcnlál ñrids a¡e rEcognad as

re\rrtrrs h t$e sta¡eílefi ofactiviis. Th¡ b úle d€ferrcd ñflows ofresourc€ (e¿rrEd

a¡d uÉttüHc reveri¡¡cs) for relrcnrE strea¡ns tl¡at arr nc¿sl¡'¡bE htr rút a\¡¿ibbb a¡

JUrr :q 2015 (ilt.rgovenxne al gB¡ts arid coritrhfbns).

63543.ó75 6r5/.3675

4,92\5ES 4 5t5

Defened odbws for perÉixs are rcpoled i¡ th. sl¡tanÉft of riet positjm bú áre riot

reportcd o úe goirnmental ftrds I ,625,8n \A5.*72

Dcfened infbws for pemsns are report€d in úr státemerü of riet posidon hf are not

rcported in ¿E golrmmenral ñflts (21332) (254)32)

Thc folbvriu lábiities are rút drE (ma¡¡re) h úE curfcú f6cal y€ar. t]Ercfore. áre rioa

rEported h ttt gol/ernrÍeúal fimds at JúE 30,20151

Bmds payab¡e (19,m7,0O) (19,m7,0m)

Not€s p.yable (5.82ó3S) (5, ,ts)
Compensaicd áhsences (2,476318) (¿476,t1t)

Netperlsirolabliy (31,7t1,t4?) (31,?81,t47)

AccnEd ctúbftas bon¡§es (191527) (l9l52n

Net pGitixr - governnental ond h¡siÉss-type activiÉs, as rcported in staieñen¡

of pcnnn MJlqolo { 180.972) $ 16ll¿058

The accompanying notes to the bssic fin¡nci¡l statements are an integr¡l p¡rt of this statement
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COVMO\WEALTH OF PUERTO RICO
MT'\ICIPALITY oF JL.A\A DIAZ

Reconciliation ofthe Statement ofRevenues. Expenditures and Changes in
Fund Balances (Deficits) - Governmental Funds and the Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes

in Fund Net Position - Proprietary Fund Io the Statement of Activities
Fiscal Year Ended June 10, l0 l5

Govemm€ntal Büsiness-§pe
activiti€s activities Tot¡l

Ttle amounls of govemrnental a¡d busi¡€ss-§pe aclivitbs repoled in dÉ GWFS

sEte¡nen¡ of activhbs and the statements of revenrcs, expendin¡res\expense§ and

changes in ñmd balances\net posnion - govemmental fi¡rds and proprbtary fun4 are

differen! for ¡he folkñ{ing reasons:

Total net change m fi¡nd balances\rEt positon reported in the sfatement ofrevenr¡es,

expendinrres\expenses a¡d changes in ñud balances\net position - governm€ntal

ñ¡n& and proprÉtarr' ñmd S 1.484.671 (74.831) $ l.'109.8'10

Add (Deduct):

Certain revenue streams recor&d ir the statenient of actÚ[És do not necessari!

provide current lmancial re soulces. lhere fore, sometimes are de fered in the

govemmenfal fimd§. This h tlE net change in defered inflo\rs ofresou¡ces items.

that are measurable bú nol available at fscal !€ar end. (288116) 1288,616)

Govefln€nfal ñmds report sale of real estate held for sale a5 inter8olernmental

grant and cont¡ibutions due to progIam income restrictbís. However in üe

st4tement of activities, proceed ofthose asse§ sab reduce rhee amount iNested in

realesEte held for sale.

Govenrnental funds report capitalol¡tlals as expenditures- Ho\rever in the

statEment of activfas the cGt of those assets b allocated over úeir eslimated

useñf lives as deprec ration and amortization experse. Thb b the anrount by whrch

deprecralion and aÍrcrtizatbn erp€nse (S3,707,378) exceeded capilal outlays

expendinres ($1.768.141) for tlÉ f6cal-vear endedJune 30.2015 (1.939.237) - (1.939.237)

Retirement conlrüutions to defm€d beDef[ pe mi]n plans in the cunent fscal]ear
are not inclu(bd on tlle sfatement of actú0as 541.073 541.073

Persbñ e\p€nses ¡eported in tl|e slatement ofactivitbs do not require th€ use of
cr¡rrent lmanclal resources. therefore- are not repoñed as expenditures m the

govemmental ñ¡nG. Tht b the ner change in net pensior lbbiliry. 11.8».642) t1.U2,642\

Repalnient of prmcipal of long-term obligatons b reported as an expenditu¡e m tfÉ

govern¡nental fi¡nG, lb\¡ever, the rep¿yrEn! reduces long-lerm liabilitts in the

staternen! ofnet positbn. 2.439-04/J ' 2,439.04

Some expenses reported in the statement of ac¡ivifbs do not require the use of
cr¡rreff lnancial resources, tlrerefore. are no¡ repor¡ed as expenditures in the

governnental fimds. Th¡ h the net change in labiíies ofthe rehted

expeNes\expenditures accormis 146.580 - 146,580

lssuance of Iong term clebt pmvile cu¡rent fmancal resouces to goverúnental

ñm&, but bsuing such debt increases long-term labil[ts in the shteñent of riet

Change m net posittJrl as reported in st¿teirÉnt of activitts s (1.483.980) (74.831) $ (1.558.811)

The accompanying notes to the basic Iinancial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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CoMMo\WEALTH oF PUERT0 RICo
MUNICIPALITY OF JUA\A DIAZ

Slatement of Net Position
Proprietary Fund

June 30, 2015

Restricted Assets

CurI1ent assets:
Cash in commercial banks (inctuding cash

for operations of $96,252)

Tenants accounts receivable

Accormt receivable from HUD
Prepaid insurance

Other assets

Total current assets

Non-current assets:

Depreciable capital assets, net of accumulated

depr e ciatiot of $3,232,7 22

Non-deprec iable capilal assets

Total non-current assets

Total assets

Liabilities and frlnd net assets

Current liabilities (due within one year):
Accoulrts payables and accrued liabilities

Current portion of mortgage notes payable

Total current liabilities

Non-current liabilities, excluding curre nt portion
Mongage notes payable - due in more than one year

Total liabilities

Fund net position:
Invested in capital assets, net of related debt

Restricted for oüler pur'poses

Total restricted ner position

Bus iness-T¡rpe Activities
Ente rprise Fund

Villas del Parque
FmHA Pr0ject

No. 63-033-0690660049

§ 273At6
1,179

6,768

2,47t
') ?)<

,s6,r5,

600,065

9512O

6esy'8s

__$__2§1É11_

s 42ñ9
43,731

86,,100

t,o76216
1,162§16

(424,462)

24349O

-L@r
The accompanying notes to the basic financial statements are an integral part of this statement.

27



C0MMoNITALTE oF PUERTO TUCO

MUNICTPALITY OF JUANA DIAZ
Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Fund Net Position

Proprietary Fund
June 30,2015

O¡rc rating rtve nuc s :

Intergovern¡nental grants and conl¡ibúions - te¡ants assbtance

paym€nts from U.S. Department of Ho¡rsing and Urban Devebprrcff

Charge for services - rental income from tenants

Misce llaneous

Total operating revenues

Oper¡thg expeases:

Ceneral and administrative

UtilftÉs

Mainternnce

Taxes and insurance

Interest on mortgage r¡otes payable

Depreciatbn of capital assets

Total operating expe¡ses

Operating income (loss)

Nonope rating income (expe¡se):

Interest on deposifs

Total mmperating income (expense)

Change in resrricred fimd net positbn

Nct position at b€ginnirg offscal y.ar
Net position ¡t €rd ofñscal ye¡r

Busi¡ess-typ€ Activities-Ente rpris e Ftrtrd

Villa del P¡rque FmHA
Pmjcct No. 63{33-

0690660049

443413

t5,992

2,944

462349

tstA32
19,4&

87,013

37,738

80,934

160,99

537 5'76
(7s22'7\

396

3%

(74.83 r)

I 106.l4l)
$ (180872)

The accompanying notes to the basic linancial statements ar€ an integral part of this st¡tement-
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CoMMoNWEALTH oF PI]ERTo ITCo
MUNICTPALITY OF JÜANA DIAZ

Statement of Cash Flows
Proprietary Fund

June 30, 2015

Cesb fo*s ftom opcr¡titrg ¡ct¡vities:
Receip6 from rent

Interest received

Payments to suppliers and employees

Payment of mortgage interests

Nel cash provided (used) by operating activiies

Cesh fors ftom investing ectivities:
Interest deposited on rephcement reserve

Increase in other reserves

Deposit to repacement reserve

Acqubition of capital assets

Net cash provided (used) by investing activities

Cásh foqs ftom fnancing activities:
Principal payments on mortgage

Net cash used by capitaland related ftrancing activitbs

Net change in cash ard cash equivalents

Cash and Cash Equivrlents - Beginning
Cash and Cash Equivalents - Ending

Dbpbyed on statement ofnet assets as:

Cash in commerchl banks

Reconcilirtion ofopereting income (loss) to nct crsh
prcv¡dcd (uscd) by operating activit¡es:
Operating income (hss)

Adjustments to reconcile operating hcome (lo6s) to

net cash provided (used) ry operathg activiries:

Deprecbtion expense

Bad debt expense

Loss on asset dbposÍbn
Increase (Decrease) in:

Accounts receivabb

Prepaid expenses

Accounts payable and accrued payroll taxes

Total adjusünenls

Net cash provided lused) by operacing activitbs

Business-¡¡p€ Activities-Enterprise Fund

Villa del Parque FnHA
Pmject No. 63-033-

oó90óó0049

§ 4ó2374

396
(293433\
(80934)

88,903

(351)

(15J80)
(te§2o)
(6562\

(42,n3\

(38.765)

(38J65)

8,025

88227

962s2

962s2

(74,83 r )

t60»9
43

353

ll50
( l,l l7)
2,W

163J34

88,903

Th€ rccompanying notes to the b¡sic financiel statements are ¡n integral p¡rt of this statement.
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Mt'\tcIPALITY oF JLA\*A DiAz.
Co}tUO\\¡ E.\LTH OF PUERTO RICO
Notes to Basic Financial Statements

Fiscal Year Ended June 30. 2015

Summary of Signilicant Accounting Policies

The Municipaliry of Juana Día¿ Commonlvealth of Pueno Rico (the Municipality), is a local

municipal govemment constituted in 1798 in the Commonwealth of Pueno Rico. The Municipality
has full legislative, fiscal and all other governmental powers and responsibilities expressly assigned

by Law No. 8l of Augusl 30, 1991, as amended, known as Aulonomous Municipalities Act of the

Commonwealth of Puerto.Rico (Act No. 8l). The Municipality is one of seventy-eight municipal
governmenis legally separated from the state government of lhe Commonwealth of Pueno Rico (the

Commonwealth).

The Constitution of the Commonwealth provides for the separa¡ion of powers of the executive.

legislative and judicial b¡anches of the Commonwealth and the municipalities. However, the

Municipality's govemmental system consists of execu¡ive and legislative branches only. A Mayor,
elected every four years by the citizens, exercises the executive power of the Municipality. The

legislative power of the Municipality is exercised by the Municipal Legislature, whose members are

also elected every four years. The judiciary power is exercised by the General Justice Court System

of the Commonwealth, which has jurisdiction over the Municipality.

The Municipaliq assumes either partial or full responsibility for providing services to its citizens

related to public housing, welfare, public safery, health, sanitation, education, culture, recreation,

urban development, economic development, and many other fiscal, general and administrative
services.

$ Financiol Repo¡ling Model

The accompanying basic financial statements present the financial position of lhe governmental

aclivities, the business-type activities, each major governmental and proprietary funds, and the

aggregate remaining fund information of the Municipality at June 30, 2015, in conformity with
Accounting Principles Generally Accepted in the United States of America (GAAP), as

prescribed by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB). In addition, the

accompanying basic financial státements present the changes in the financial position (results of
operations) of the govemmental activities. the business-type activities, each major governmental

and proprietary funds, and the aggregate remaining fund informalion for the fiscal year ended

June 30,2015 in conformiry with GAAP. Funhermore, the basic financial statements referred to

above present the cash flows of the business-typ€ activilies (propriemry fund) for the fiscal year

ended June 30, 2015 in conformity with GAAP.

According to the financial reporting model established by GASB Statement No. 34, Basic

Financial SÍatemen¡s - and Management's Disctusion and Analysis - for State and Local
Governments (GASB No. 34), the required basic financial statement presentation applicable to
the Municipality is composed of the following elements: ( l) govemment-wide financial
statements (GWTS), (2) governmental and proprietary fund financial statements (FFS), (3) notes

to basic financial statements, and (4) required supplementary information (RSI).
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M[NICIPALTTY oF JtiANA DÍAz,
COMVO\WT-{LTH OF PUERTO IIICO
Notes to Basic Financial S¡alements

Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2015

A financial reporting entity consists of a primary govemment and its component units.

Accordingly, for financial reporting purposes, the primary govemmenl is the Municipality of
Juana Díaz. In accordance with GASB St¿tement No. 14, Tfte Financial Reporting Enliy" as

amended by GASB Slatements No. 39 and No. 61, the criteria used to determine whether

organizations are to be included as component units within the Municipality's financial reporting

entity are as follow:

o The organization is legally separate enlity:

. The Municipality appoints a voting majority ofthe organization's board;

o There is a financial benefilburden relationship between the Municipality and the organiztion
or the Municipaliry is able to impose its will on the organization.

Organizations meeting the above criteria are included in the Municipality's financial reporting

enti¡y as discretely presented component units- Entities which meet any of the following in
addition to the above criteria are considered to be blended component units ofthe Municipality:

. The organization's goveming body is substantively the same as the Municipaliry's governing

body and (l) there is a financial benefit or burden relationship between the Municipality and

the organization, or (2) management ofthe Municipalit) has operational responsibiliry for the

organization;

o The organization provides services entirely. or almost entirely, to the Municipality, or
otherwise exclusively, or almost exclusively, benefits the Municipality even though it does

not provide services directly to i1;

. The organization's total debt outstanding, including leases, is expected to be repaid entirely
or almosl entirely with Municipaliry resources.

Legally separate organizations that do not otherwise meet the criteria for inclusion as a
component unit may be included in the financial repofing entity if it is determined that their
exclusion would render the financial sa¡ements misleading. This determination is bases on the

nature and significance ofthe organization's relationship with the Municipality.

The Municipality's management has concluded thal based on the aforementioned criteria, there

are no legally separate entities or organizalions that should be reported as component units ofthe
Municipality as of and for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2015.

c) Governmznt-Wide Finsnciol Sfatements

The accompanying GWFS are composed ot (l) the statement of net position and (2) üe
statement of activities. These financial statements report information of all govemmental and

business-type nonfiduciary activities of the Municipality as a whole. These statements are aimed
at presenting a broad overview of the Municipality's finances by reporting its financial position
and results ofoperations using methods that are similar to those used by most private businesses.
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ML-NICIPALITY OF JTIA\-A DÍAZ,
CO\IVO¡i}EALTH OF PT,ERTO IüCO
Notes to Basic Financial Statements

Fiscal Year Ended June 30.2015

The accompanying statement of activities presents the Municipality's results of operations by

showing, how the Municipalify's net position changed during the fiscal year ended June 30, 2015,

using a net (expense) revenue format. This statement presenls the cost ofeach function/progam

as *ill u. the exrent to which each of the Municipality's functions, programs or otler services

eiiher contributes to or draws from the Municipality's general revenues (such as property taxes,

municipal license taxes, construction excise tanes, etc.).

A function/program describes a group of activities that are aimed at accomplishing a major

service or regulatory responsibility. The functions/programs reported in the accompanying basic

financial statements are: ( I ) general government, (2) urban and economic development, (3) public

safety, (4) health and sanitation. (5) culture. recreation and education and (6) public housing and

welfare. The governmental operalions of the Municipality's departrnents and operational units

are classified within the fotlowing functions/programs in the accompanying basic financial
statements:

General government:
Municipal legislature
Mayor's office
Department of finance
Department of human resources
Department of municipal secretary
Department of internal audit
Offi ce of communicafions
Ofñce of adm inistrative services
Department of purchases

Urban and economic development:
Department of public works
Department of planning and development
Federal programs office

Public safeff:
Department of emergency management - civil defense

Department of municipal police

Health and sanit¡tion:
Depatment of recycling services
Municipal enterprises
Department ofhealth

Culture, recreation and education:
Department of sports and recreation
Department ofa , culture and tourism
Head Stan program office

Public housing and welfare:
Department of c¡tizen affairs
Section 8 program office
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MU\ICTPALITY oF J[TANA DiAz,
C0MMo¡-WEALTH oF PtlERTo RICo
Notes to Basic Financial Statements

Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2015

RS1 consists ot (l) a Management's Discussion and Analysis (MD&A), (2) a general fund
budgetary comparison schedules reconciling the statutory to the generally accepted accounting
principles fund balances at fiscal year-end and, (3) a pension plan and employer trend information
related to the net pension liability and employer contribut¡ons. RSI is unaudited supplementary

information required by GAAP presented along with, but separate from, the Municipality's basic

financial statements. MD&A is a narrative report that introduces the accompanying basic financial
statements and provides an analytical overview of the Municipality's financial activities for the

fiscal year ended June 30. 2015, based on the Municipality's knowledge of lhe transactions,
events and conditions reflecled in the basic financial statements. The MD&A also highlights
certain key fiscal policies that control the Municipality's operations.

In addition to the required financial reporting requirements referred to above, the accompanying
basic financial statemenrs are accompanied by additional supplementary information consisting of
a budgetary comparison schedule - general fund and the notes to lhe budgetary comparison
schedule - general fund, rvhich have been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the

audit ofthe accompanying basic financial statements as ofand for the fiscal year ended June 30,
2015, and a pension plan and employer trend information related to the Municipality's
proportionate share of¡he net pension liabiliq and annual contributions.

b) Financial Reporting Entiry

The accompanying basic financial satements include all depanments, agencies and municipal
operational units that are under the legal and administrative control of the Mayor, and whose
financial resources a¡e under the legal custody and control of the Municipality's Director of
Finance. as prescribed by Act No. 81.

The accompanying basic financial statements include the financial statements ofVillas del Parque
(FmHA Project No. ó3-033-0ó90660049), an opera¡ional unit and a business-type activity
(proprierary fund) of the Municipaliry which single audit repot reflect tolal assets, liabilities, net
position. revenues and expenses of §981.644, §1,162,61ó, (S180,972), 5462,745 and $537,576
(including depreciation expenses of $ I ó0.999), respectively, as of and for the fiscal year ended
June 30,2015. The financial position, results of operations and cash flows of Villas del Parque as

ofand for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2015 are reported in the accompanying statement ofnet
position - proprietary fund. the statement of revenues. expenses and changes in fund net position

- proprietary fund, and the shtement ofcash florvs - proprietary fund, respectively.

Villas del Parque is a housing development project consisting of eighty-four (84) dwelling units
located in Juana Díaz. The project is owned by the Municipality, but its operations are carried
out by a private management agent unrelated to the Municipality. The housing development
project of Villas del Parque has been designed to assist various segments of the general public in
obtaining adequate and reasonable priced rental housing. The project operates under financing
through the Section 8 New Construction and Substantial Rehabilitation Program of the U.S.
Department of Housing and Urban Development and the Section 515 Rural Rental Housing
Loans Program of the U.S. Departmenl of Agriculture. The purpose of Villas del Parque is to
provide adequate housing to low-income residents ofthe Municipality. Separate audited financial
statements of Villas del Parque can be obtained directly from the management agent's offices at
Professional Center Building, Suite 302, San Juan, Pueno Rico 00927.
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The focus ofGWFS is on the operational accountability ofthe Municipality as a single economic
unit and not on compliance with budgets, regulatory requirements or on the use of available or
currently expendable financial resources (refened to as fiscal accountability). Operational
accountability is the Municipaliry's responsibiliry to report to the extent to which it has met its

operating objectives efficiently and effectively, using all resources available for úat purpose. It
focuses on the Municipality's principal operating objective. which is to provide services to is
citizens.

The accompanying statement of net position provides short-term and long-term information about

the Municipality's financial position by presenting all of the Municipaliry's assets, deferred

outflow of resources, liabilities and deferred inflow of resoutces, with the difference between

these items reported as "net position". This sla¡ement assists management in assessing lhe level

of services that can be provided by rhe Municipality in the future and its ability to meet its

obligations as they become due. In addition, this statement reports the extent to which the

Municipalit_v has invested in capital assets and discloses legal and contracrual restrictions on

resources.

Net position is classified in úe accompanying statement of net position within the following three

categories:

. Invested in capital assets, net of related debt - This net asset category consists of capital

assets, net of accumulated depreciation and amortization, reduced by the outstanding balances

of bonds payable, notes payable and o¡her debts that are attributed to the acquisition,

conslruction or improvement ofthose assets. For the purposes of determining the outstanding

debr attribured Io capital assets, the total long-term debt related to the acquisition,

construction or improvement of capital assets has been reduced by any related unspenl debt

proceeds and any related unamonized debt issuance costs.

. Restricted net position - This net ¿rsset calegory consists of net resources restricted by

external parties (such as creditors, grantors. contributors, laws or regulalions of other
governments, elc.), or nel position for which constraints are imposed by constitutional
provisions or enabling legislation. Enabling legislation consists of legislation that authorizes

the Municipality Io assess, lerl, charge or otherwise mandate payment of resources (from

extemal resource providers). Enabling legislation establishes restrictions if it includes a
legally enforceable requirement that those resources be used only for the specific purposes

stipulated in the legislation.

. Unrestricted net position - This category consists of the net resources that are neither

extemally nor legally reslricted. neither invested in capital assets. However. assets reported

within unrestricted net position often ar€ designated to indicate that management does nol
consider them to be available for general operations. Assets reported within this category

often have consraints that are imposed by management but can be removed or modified.

When both restricted and unreslricted resources are available for use, iI is the Municipality's
policy to generally use restricted resources first, and then unrestricted resources as they are

needed.
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The accompanying statement of activities presents the Municipality's results of operations by

showing, how the Municipaliry's net position changed during the fiscal year ended June 30,2015,
using a net (expense) revenue format. This statement presents the cost ofeach function/progam
as well as the extenl to which each of the Municipality's functions, programs or other services

either contributes to or draws from the Municipality's general revenues (such as property t¿LYes,

municipal license taxes, construclion excise taxes, etc.).

A function/program describes a group of activities that are aimed at accomplishing a major

service or regulatory responsibiliry. The functions/programs repoled in the accompanying basic

financial statemens are: (l) general govemment, (2) urban and economic development, (3) public
safety, (4) health and sanitation. (5) culture. recreation and education and (6) public housing and

welfare. The govemmental operations of the Municipality's departments and operational units
are classified within the following functions/programs in the accompanying basic financial
statements:

General government:
Municipal legislature
Mayor's office
Department of finance
Depanment of human resources
Department of municiPal secretary
Deparlment of intemal audit
Office of communications
Office of administrative services
Department of Purchases

Urban and economic d€velopment:
Department of public work
Depanment of planning and development
Federal programs office

Public safe§:
Department ofemergency management - civil defense
Department of municiPal Police

Ilealth and sanitation:
Department of recYcling services
Municipal enterprises
Departmen¡ of health

Culture, recreation and education:
Department of sports and recreation
Departmenl of art. cuhure a¡d tourism
Head Start program office

Public housing and welfare:
Departmenl of citizen affairs
Section 8 program office
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The statement of activities demonstrales the degree to rvhich program revenues offset direct
expenses of a given function/program or segmen6. Direct expenses are those that are clearly
identifiable with a specific function, segment or operational unit. This statement repons revenues
in three broad categories: ( I ) program revenues, (2) general revenues and (3) special items.

. Program revenues - These revenues are generated directly from a program itself or may
come from parties outside the Municipality's taxpayers or citizens. In the statement of
activities, progr¿rm revenues reduce the costs (expenses) ofthe function/program to arrive at:
(l) the net cost ofthe function/program that must be financed from the Municipality's general
revenues or (2) the net program revenue that contributes to the Municipality's general
revenues. The accompanying statement of activities separately reports the following
categories of program revenues:

o Cbarges for services - These revenues generally consist of exchange or exchangeJike
¡ransactions involving charges to customers or applicants who purchase, use or directly
benefit from ¡he goods, services or privileges provided, or are otherwise directly affected by
the services. These revenues include fees charged for specific services, rent, charges for
licenses and permits, and fines and forfeitures, among others.

. Program-spccific operating and capital grants and contributions - These revenues
consist oftransactions that are either mandatory or voluntary non-exchange transactions with
other governments, organizations, or individuals ¡hat restrict the resources for use in a
panicular program. Operating grants and contributions consist of resources that are required
to be used to finance the coss of operating a specific program or can be used either for
operating or capital purposes of a specific program. Capiral grants and contributions consist
of revenues or resources that are resricted for capital purposes - to purchase, construct or
renovate capital assets associated with a specific program. Restricted operating and capital
grants and contributions are program revenues because they are specifically attributable to a
program and reduce the net expense of that program to the Municipality. They are reported
net of estimated uncollectibl€ amounts.

General revenues a¡e the default category for revenues. It includes all revenues and gains that do
not meet the definition of program revenues. Property taxes, municipal license taxes, construction
excise úaxes and sales and use t¿,xes are reponed as general revenues. All other nontax revenues
(including unrestricted interest on deposits, grants and contributions not restricred for specific
programs and miscellaneous revenues) that do not meet the definition of program revenues are
classified as general revenues. Resources thar are dedicated intemally by the Municipality are
reported as general revenues rather than ¿rs program revenues. All general revenues are reported
net ofestimated uncollectible amounts, which are recorded as reduction ofrevenues rather than as
expenses.

Special items consist of revenues arising from significant transactions or other events within the
control ofmanagement that are either unusual in nature or infrequent in occurrence.

Extraordinary ilems consist of revenues arising from significant transactions or other events that
are borh unusual in nature and infrequent in occurrence.
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The generol govemment ñtnctionlprogram repoled in the accompanying statement of activities
includes expenses that are. in essence, indirect or costs of other functions/programs of the

Municipality. Even though some of these costs have been charged to certain funds in the FFS as

indirect cost allocations permitted under some federal programs, the Municipality has reported
these indirecl costs as direct expenses of the general govemment funct¡on. Accordingly, the
Municipality generally does not allocate general govemment (indirect) costs to other functions.

The effects of all inter-fund governmental activities (revenues, expenditures and other financing
sourceVuses among govemmental funds) have been removed from the accompanying statements
of net position and activities.

The Municipaliry classifies the most significant ponion of its activities as governmental activities
in the accompanying GWFS. These are activilies generally financed through taxes,
intergovemmental revenues and other non+xchange revenues lhat can be used to support the
Municipality's programs or services. These governmental aclivities are also generally reported in
the FFS. On the other hand, the operations of Villas del Parque are reported as business-type
activities in the accompanying GWFS. These activities are primarily financed from g¡ants and
contributions and charges for services. These business-type activities are also reported in the
FFS.

The Municipality has no fiduciary activilies, which are those in which the Municipality would be

holding or managing assets for specific individuals or other extemal panies in accordance with
trust agreements or other cuslodial íurangements.

The Municipality has operations and activities that are financed and operated in a man¡er similar
to private business enterprises. where the costs of providing goods or services to the general
public (expenses, including depreciation) is financed primarily through user charges; and where
the goveming body has decided that periodic determination of revenues eamed, expenses
incured, and/or net income is appropriate for capital maintenance, public policy, management
control, accounlability. or other purposes.

d) Fund Financial Stalements

A fund is a fiscal and accounting enti§' consisting of a self-balancing set of accounts used to
record assets, liabilities and residual equities, deficits or balances, and changes therein, which are
segregated for the purpose of carrying on specific activities or attaining certain objectives in
accordance wilh GAAP and/or special regulations. restrictions or limitalions.

The accompanying FFS are composed of: (l) the balance sheet - governmental funds, (2) the
statement of revenues, expenditures and changes in fund balances (deficits) - govemmental
funds, (3) the statement ofnet position - proprietary fund, (4) the statement of revenues, expenses
and changes in fund net position - proprietary fund, and (5) the statement of cash flows -
proprietary fund.
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These financial statements report the financial position and results operations of the
Municipaliry's govemmental and proprietary funds and fund typ€s by presenting sources, uses
and balances of cunent and non-current financial resources. Some of these financial statements
have a budgetary orientation and focus primarily on: (l) the Municipality's major govemmental
fund and fund types, as defined below. (2) the fiscal accounmbility and (3) the individual pans of
the Municipality's government. Fiscal accountability represents the Municipal§'s responsibility
to justi! that ils actions in lhe curent fiscal year have complied with public decisions conceming
the raising and spending ofpublic moneys in the short term (generally one fiscal year).

The accompanying FFS segregate governmental funds, proprietary funds and fund types
according to their intended purpose and are used in demonslrating compliance with legal,
financial and contractual provisions. The minimum number ofgovernmental funds and fund types
is maintained consistent with legal and self-imposed managerial requirements established by the
Municipality. For financial reporting purposes, the Municipality classifies its govemmental and
proprietary funds within the follorving categories:

c Gene¡al fund - The general fund is the Municipality's main operating fund and a major
governmental fund, as defined below, used Io account for all financial resources and
govemmental activities not accounted for and reponed in anolher fund. It is presumed that
the Municipality's govemmental activities have been reponed in the general fund except for
transactions for which one of the following compelling reasons has required the use of
anolher fund: (l) legal requirements, (2) GAAP requirements or (3) the demands of sound
financial administration requiring lhe use ofa governmental fund other than üe general fund.

o Debt senice fund - The debt service fund is a major govemment¿l fund, as defined below,
used by the Municipality to account for all financial resources that are restricled. committed,
or assigned to expenditure for principal and interest for (l) bonds payable for which debt
service payments are legally mandated Io be accounred for in a debt service fund údlor (2)
bonds payable or any general long-term debt for which the Municipality is being
accumulating financial ¡esources in advance to pay principal and interest payments maturing
in future years. During the fiscal year ended June 30, 2015, the financial activity accounted
for in the debt service fund was specifically related to bonds payable.

The outstanding balance ofgeneral long-term obligations for which debt service payments do
not involve the advance accumula¡ion of resources (such as notes payable) are only accounted
for in the accompanying shtemenl of net position. The debt service payments of such debts,
as applicable, are generally accounted for as debt service - principal and debt service -
interest expenditures in the general fund, except for certain notes payable to HUD, which are
accounted for in the community development block grant fund.

o Special ¡evenue fands - The special revenue funds are major and non-major govemment¿l
funds, as defined below, used by the Municipality to account for the proceeds of specific
revenue sources that are restricted or committed to expenditure for specified purposes
other than debt service and capital projects. The uses and limifations of each special
revenue fund are specified by municipal ordinances or federal and state statutes. However,
resources restricted to expendilure for purposes normally financed from the general fund are
reponed in the Municipality's general fund provided that all applicable legal requirements are
appropriately satisfied. In this case, a special revenue fund lo account for such kind of
transactions will be used only if legally mandated.
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. Capital projecls funds - Capital projects funds are major and non-major govemmenhl funds,
as defined below. used to account for all financial resources that are restricted, commitfed, or
assigned to expendirure for capital outlays. Significant capital outlays financed from
proceeds ofgeneral obligation, public improvement or special obligation bonds are accounted
for also in the capital projects funds.

The use of the capital projects funds has been reserved only for major capital acquisitions,
construction or improvemenl activities that would distort financial resources trend data if not
reported separately from the other Municipality's operating activities. The routine purchases

of minor capitalizable assets (such as fumiture, omce equipment, vehicles and other minor
capital assets or improvements) have been reported in the governmental fund from which
financial resources rvere used for the payment.

. Ptopfietary fuzd - Proprietary fund is a fund used to reporl the financial position, results of
operat¡on and cash flows of Villas del Parque (FmHA Project No. ó3{33-0690660049),
which are aclivities for which the intent of management is to recover, partially through user
charges for services (rent) and mostly through federal grants, the cost of low-income housing
services to the general public.

The activities of Villas del Parque have been reported as a proprietary fund since GAAP
permits the use of enterprise funds to repon any activit_v for which a fee is charged to extemal
users of goods or services, regardless of whether the govemment intends to fully recover the
cost oflhe goods or services provided. Thus. it is common to use proprietary fund reporting
to account for services where the government intends to recover only a portion of its costs
through fees or user charges.

As required by GASB No. 34. the proprietary fund of the Municipality applies all
pronouncements issued by the Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) and is
predecessor bodies, such as the Accounting hinciples Board (APB) and the Commiftee on
Accounting Procedure, issued on or before November 30, 1989, provided those
pronouncements do not conflict with or contradict the standards of the Governmental
Accounting Standards Board. However, the Municipality has elected to continue following
more recent FASB guidance. provided it neither conflicts nor contradicts GASB
pfonouncements.

The focus of the FFS is on major governmental funds, proprietary funds and fund types, which
generally represent the Municipality's most import¿nt funds. Accordingly, the Municipality is
required to segregate governmental funds, proprietary funds and fund types between major and
non-major categories within the FFS. Major individual governmental and propriehry funds and
fund types are reported individually ¿rs separare columns in the FFS, while data from all non-
major governmental and proprietary funds are aggregated into a single column, regardless of fund
type.
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By definition, the Municipality's general fund is always considered a major governmental fund
for financial reporting purposes. In addition, any other govemmental fund is classified as a major
govemmental fund in the FFS if its total assets, deferred oufflow ofresources. liabilities, deferred
inflow of resources, revenues or expenditures of that individual govemmental fund are at least l0
percent of the corresponding element total (assets plus defered outflow of resources, liabilities
plus defened inflow of resources, revenues or expenditures) for all governmental funds. ln
addition, the same element lhat meets the l0 percent criterion must be at least 5 percent of the
corresponding element total for all governmentál and enterprise (proprietary) funds combined.
For the pu4)oses ofapplying the aforementioned major fund criteri4 no eliminations of inter-fund
balances have been made. Total revenues for lhese purposes means all revenues, including
operating and non-operating revenues (net of allowances for uncollectible accounts). except for
other financing sources. Total expenditures\expenses for these purposes mean all
expenditures\expenses, including operating and non-operating expenditures\expenses, except for
other financing uses.

Based on the aforementioned criteri4 the Municipality's major governmenral funds repofed in
the accompanying FFS are: ( l) the general fund, (2) the debt service fund, (3) rhe head start fund,
and (4) the capital improvement bond fund. In addition, Villas del Parque has been reported
separately from governmental funds as the only proprietary fund ofthe Municipality.

The head start fund is a special revenue fund used to account for the receipts and disbursements
of the head start progrÍrm grant administered by the Administration for the Integral Care and
Development of Children of the Commonwealth of Puerto Rico, as a pass-through entity of the
U.S. Department of Health and Human Services.

The capital improvement bond fund is a major capital projects fund used to account for proceeds
of general obligation, public improvement or special obligation bonds. These proceeds are used
for the acquisition, consfruction or improvement of major capital facilities and other asses.

The accompanying FFS are accompanied by other statements and schedules required by GAAP:
( I ) the reconciliation of the balance sheet - govemmental funds to the statement of net position,
and (2) the reconcilialion ofthe statement ofrevenues, expenditures and changes in fund balances

- governmental funds to the statement of activities.

e) Measarcmen Focus and Basis ofAccounting

Government-wid€ financial statements ¡nd proprietara fund - The accompanying GWFS and
proprietary fund are prepared using the economic resources measurement focus and the accrual
basis of accounting. Subject to the additional rules and limitations detailed below, revenues
(including interest on deposits and rent) are generally recorded when eamed and expenses are
generally recorded when a liability is incurred, regardless ofrhe timing ofrelated cash flows.

All revenues, expenses, gains, losses, assets and liabilities resulting from exchange and exchange-
Iike ¡ransactions are generally recorded when the exchange takes place. In exchange transactions,
each party to the transaction receives and gives up essentially equal values. An exchangeJike
transaction is one in which there is an identifiable exchange and the values exchanged, though
related, may not be quite equal.
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Nevertheless, the exchange characteristics of the exchange-like transaction are strong enough to
justiry feating it as an exchange for accounting purposes (examples include cenain charges for
services and miscellaneous revenues, which are recorded as revenues when collected because

they are generally not measurable until actually received).

All revenues, expenses, gains, losses and assets resulting from non-exchange transactions are

recorded using the criteria set forth by GASB Statement No.33, Accounting and Financial
Reportingfor Non-exchange Transaclions (GASB No. 33). GASB No. 33 established accounting
and reporting standards for non-exchange transactions involving cash and financial or capital
resources (for example, most taxes, grants and private donations). In a non-exchange transaction,
the Municipality gives (or receives) value without directly receiving (or giving) equal value in
return. This is different from an exchange transaction, in which each parfy receives and gives up
essentially equal values. According to GASB No. 33, the Municipality goups its non-exchange
transactions into the following four classes in the accompanying basic financial statements: (a)

derived tax revenues, (b) imposed non-exchange revenues, (c) govemment mandated non-
exchange transactions, and (d) voluntary non-exchange transactions.

Proprietary funds distinguish operating revenue and expenses from non-operating items.
Operating revenue and expenses generally result from providing services and producing and
delivering goods in connection with a proprietary fund's principal ongoing operations. Revenue
and expenses not meeting this definition are reported as non-operating revenue and expenses. The
major operating revenue of the Municipality's enterprise fund is from rent charges collected
principally from a Section 8 New Construction and Substantial Rehabilitation Program housing
assistance grant agreement with U.S. Depanment of Housing and Urban Development.

In the case of derived lax revenue transactions, which result from assessments the Municipality
places on exchange transactions, receivables and revenues are recorded when the underlying
exchange has occurred.

ln the case of imposed non-exchange revenue transactions (such as property taxes and municipal
license taxes), which result from assessments made by the Municipality on nongovemmental
entities, including individuals, other lhan assessments on exchange transactions, receivables are
generally recorded in the period when an enforceable legal claim has arisen. Property taxes and
municipal license are generally recorded as revenues (net of amounts considered not collectible)
in the fiscal year when resources are required to be used or the first fiscal year that the use of the
resources is permitted.

Govemment-mandated non-exchange transactions (such as grants and contributions) result when
a government at one level (such as the federal or state government) provides resources to the
Municipaliry and the provider govemment requires the Municipality to use those resources for a
specific purpose or purposes established in the provider's enabling legislation. In these rype of
transactions, receivables and revenues are generally recorded when all eligibility requirements
imposed by the provider have been met. For the majoriry ofgrants, the Municipality must expend
resources on the specific purpose or project before the provider reimburses any amounts-
Revenue is, therefore, generally recognized as quali!ing reimbursable expenditures are incurred.
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Voluntary non-exchange transactions (such as donations and certain grants and entitlements)
result from legislative or contractual agreements, other than exchanges, willingly entered into by
two or more parties. In these types of transactions, receivables and revenues are generally
accounted for in the same manner as goveffrment-mandated non-exchange transactions discussed

above. Events that are neither exchange nor non-exchange transactions are recorded when it is
probable that a loss has been incurred and the amount of loss is reasonably estimable.

Receipts of any type of revenue sources collected in advance for use in the following fiscal year

are recorded as uneamed revenues.

According to GASB No. 34, all general capital assets and the unmatured long+erm liabilities are

recorded only in the accompanying statement of net position and the statement of net position -
proprietary fund. The me¿Lsurement focus and the basis of accounting used in the accomPanying

GWFS and the proprietary fund differ significantly from the measurement focus and basis of
accounting used in the preparation of the accompanying govemmental fund financial statements.

Therefore, the accompanying governmental fund financial statements include reconciliations, as

detailed in the accompanying table of contents, to betler identi§, the relationship between the

GWFS and the govemmental fund financial statements.

Governmental fund fin¡ncial statements - The accompanying govemmental fund financial
statements are reponed using the cunent financial resources me¿¡surement focus (flow of current
financial resources) and the modified accrual basis of accounting. Accordingly, the

accompanying statement of revenues, expenditures and changes in fund balances (deficits) -
govemmental funds, repons changes in the amount of financial resources available in the near

future as a result of transactions and events of the fiscal year reponed. Therefore, revenues are

generally recognized as soon Írs lhey are both measurable and available. Revenues are considered

to be available when they a¡e collectible within üe current fiscal year or soon enough thereafter
to pay liabilities of the current fiscal year. For this purpose, the Municipality considers most
revenues to be available if collected generally within 120 days after June 30, 2015, except for
property taxes for which the availability period is 60 days.

Revenue sources not meeting this availability criterion or collected in advance are recorded as

defened (eamed and unavailable) inflow ofresources at June 30. 2015.

The principal revenue sources considered susceptible to accrual include property hxes, municipal
Iicense taxes, sales and use Exes, construction excise taxes, intergovernmental grants and

contributions. interest on deposits and charges for services. These principal revenue sources meet

both measurability and availability criteria in the accompanying governmental fund financial
statements, except for amounts recorded as deferred (eamed and unavailable) inflow of resources.

In a manner similar to the GWFS, but subject to and limited by the availability criteria discussed
previously, all revenues, expenses, gains, losses, assets and liabilities resulting from exchange
and exchangeJike transactions are also generally recorded when the exchange takes place.

Accordingly, certain charges for services and miscellaneous revenues a-re recorded as revenues
rvhen collected because they are generally not measurable until actually received.
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All revenues, expenses. gains. losses and assets resulting from non-exchange transactions are
recorded in a similar manner to the GWFS, using the previously discussed criteria set fonh by
GASB No. 33 for non-exchange transactions, but subject to and limited by the availability criteria
discussed above. Accordingly. properfy tax and municipal license tar receivables are also
generally recorded in the fiscal year when an enforceable legal claim has arisen while property
ta"x and municipal license tax revenues (net of amounts considered not collectible) are also
generally recorded in the fiscal year lvhen resources are required to be used or the first fiscal year
that the use of the resources is permined. Receivables and revenues from federal and state granls
and contributions, donations and entitlements are also generally recorded when all eligibility
requirements imposed by the provider have been met (generally, as qualifuing reimbursable
expenditures are incurred for expenditure-driven grants).

Interest on deposits is recorded u,hen earned only if collected wirhin 120 days after the fiscal
year-end since these revenues would be considered both measurable and available.

Pursuant to the provisions of GASB Interpretation No- 6. Recognition and Measurement of
Certain Liabili¡ies and Expenditures in Goternmental Fund Financial Stafements (GASBI No.
6), in the absence of an explicit requirement (i.e.. the absence of an applicable modification,
discussed below) the Municipality generally accrues a govemmental fund liabiliry and an
expendilure (including salaries, professional services, supplies, utilities, etc.) in the period in
which the government incurs the liability, to the extent that lhese liabilities are normally expected
to be liquidated with current available financial resources. GASBI No. 6 modified the
recognition criteria for certain expenditures and liabilities reported under the modified accrual
basis of accounting prior to GASB No. 34. and clarified a number of situations in which the
Municipality should distinguish between governmental fund liabilities and general long+erm
liabilities. Therefore. the accompanying balance sheel - govemmental funds generally refl€cts
¿¡ssets that will be converted into cash to satisry current liabilities. Long-term assets (except for
accounts receivables and inter-fund advances) and those assets that will not be convened into
cash to satisfr current liabilities are generally nol accounted for in the accompanying balance
sheet - governmental funds. At the same time, long-term liabilities (generally, those unmatured
that will not require the use of current financial resources to pay them) are not accounted for in
lhe accompanying balance sheet - governmental funds.

Modifications to the accrual basis ofaccounting in accordance with GASBI No. 6 include:

o Principal and interest on bonds payable are recorded when they mature (when payment is
due), except for principal and interest due on July l, 2015, rvhich have been recorded as
governmental fund liabilities at June 30, 2015, which is the dare when resources are available
in the debt service fund (generally. June 30).

. Notes payable, obligations under capital leases, compensated absences, and amounts subject
to accrued claims and judgments under litigation are recorded only when they mature (when
payment is due).
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. Certain accrued Iiabilities not due and payable or not normally expected to be liquidated with
current available and expendable financial resources a¡e recorded in the accompanying
slatement of net position. Such liabilities are recorded in the govemmental funds when they
mature-

. Executory purchase orders and contracts are recorded as assignments of fund balance in the
governmental funds FFS.

The measurement focus of the govemmental funds financial sEtements is on decreases of net
financial resources (expenditures) rather than expenses. Most expenditures a¡e measurable and
are recorded when the related govemmental fund liability is incurred. Allocation ofcosts. such as
depreciation and amortization, are recorded in the accompanying statement of activities and the
statement of revenues, expenses and changes in fund net position - proprietary fund, but are not
recorded in the accompanying governmental fund financial slatements.

O Stewutdship, Compliance and Accountabiliql

Budsetarv Control

According to Law No. 81, the Mayor and its Administrative Cabinet prepare annual budgets each
fiscal year for the Municipaliry's general fund and debt service fund. Such legally adopted
budgets are based on expected €xpenditures by program and estimated resources by source. The
annual budgets are developed using elements of performance-based program budgeting and zero-
based budgeting, and include estimates ofrevenues and other resources for the ensuing fiscal year
under laws and regulations existing at the time the budgets are prepared.

The Mayor must submit, for each fiscal year commencing on July l, an annual budgetary
resolution project (the Project) to the Commissioner of Municipal Affairs of the Commonwealth
(the Commissioner) and the Municipal Legislature no later than the immediately preceding May
31. The Commissioner preliminarily verifies that the Project complies with all the applicable
laws and regulations and may provide comments and suggestions to the Mayor on or before the
immediately preceding June 15.

The Municipal Legislature has l0 business days, up to the immediately preceding June 13, to
discuss and approve the hoject with modifications. The Municipal Legislature may amend the
budgets submined by the Mayor but may not inoease any items so far to cause a deficit without
imposing taxes or identi§ing other sources of revenue to cover such deficit. After the Municipal
Legislature modifies and preliminarily approves the Project, the modified Project is sent back to
the Mayor for his approval or rejection within six (6) days. The Mayor may decrease or eliminate
any line item but may not increase or insen any new line item in the budgets. The Mayor may
also veto the budgets in their entirefy and return it ro the Municipal Legislature with his
objections. If the Mayor rejects the Project, the Municipal Legislature will have up to eight (8)
days to adopt or reject the recommendations or objections ofthe Mayor. The approved hoject is
sent again to the Mayor, which then would have three (3) days to sign and approve it.
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If the budgets are not adopted prior to the end of the deadlines referred Io above, ihe annual
budges for the preceding fiscal year. as approved by the Legislature and the Mayor, are
automatically renewed for the ensuing fiscal year until the Municipal Legislature and the Mayor
approve new budgets. This regulation permis the Municipality to continue doing payments for its
operalions and other purposes until the new budgets are approved.

The annual budgets may be updated for any estimale revisions as well as fiscal year-end
encumbrances. and may include any additional information requested by the Municipal
Legislature. The Mayor may request subsequenl amendments to the approved budgets, which are
subject to the approval ofthe Municipal Legislature.

The Municipality's Department of Finance has the responsibility to ensure that budgetary
spending control is maintained. For day-to-day management control purposes, expenditures plus
encumbra¡ces may not exceed budgeted amounts at the expenditure-type level ofeach cost center
(activity within a program within a fund). The Mayor may ransfer unencumbered appropriations
within programs within funds. The Municipal Legislature may transfer amounts ¿Imong progr¿¡.ms

within and among funds.

The legal level of budgetary conrol (i.e.. the level at which expenditures may not legally exceed
appropriation) is at lhe function/program level (general government. urban and economic
development. public safery. health and sanitation, culture. recreation and education, and public
housing and welfare) rvithin a fund.

Under the laws and regulations of the Commonwealth, the appropriations made for any fiscal
year shall not exceed the total revenue, including available surplus, estimated for said fiscal year
unless the imposition of taxes sufficient to cover said appropriations is provided.

Budset¡ry Accountins

The Municipality's annual budgets are prepared using the budgetary (statutory) basis of
accounting. which is not in accordance with GAAP.

According to the budgetary basis of accounting, revenue is generally recorded when cash is
received. Shon-term and long-lerm borrowings may be used to finance budgetary excess of
expenditures over revenues.

The Municipality uses encumbrance accounting to record the full amount of purchase orders,
contracts and other commitmens of appropriated resources as deductions from the appropriation
prior to actual expenditure. In the governmental funds, encumbrance accounting is a significant
aspect of budgerary control. Accordingly, expenditures are generally recorded when the related
expenditure is incurred or encumbered. Available appropriations and encumbrances are
established to lapse one fiscal year after the end of the fiscal year. Amounts required to settle
claims and judgments against the Municipality, and cefain other liabilities, are not recognized
until they are encumbered or otherwise processed for paymenl Unencumbered appropriations
and encumbrances lapse at fiscal year-end. Other appropriations. mainly capital projects
appropriations, are continuing accounts for which the Municipal Legislature has authorized that
an unspent balance from the prior year be carried forward and made available for current
spending.
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The accompanying budgetary comparison schedule - general fund provide information about lhe

general fund original budget, its amendments, and the actual results of operations of such major
govemmental fund under ¡he budgetary basis of accounting for the fiscal year ended June 30,

2015. Further details ofthe Municipality's budgetary control at the legal level may be obtained

from the Budgetary Liquidation Report for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2015.

Because accounting principles applied for the purposes of the developing data on a budgetary

basis differ significantlv from those used to present the govemmental fund financial statements in
conformiry with GAAP, a reconciliation of the differences betrveen lhe general fund budgetary

bases and GAAP actual amounts are presented a¡ the bottom of the budgetary comparison

schedule.

g) Deposits

The Municipaliry's deposits are composed ofi (l) cash on hand, (2) demand deposits in
commercial banks. (3) demand deposits in the Government Development Bank for Puerto Rico
(fiscal agent) and (4) cash equivalens in commercial bank.

The Municipality follows the practice of pooling cash. The balance in the pooled cash account is

available to meet current operaling requirements and any unrestricted excess, ifany, is invested in

certificates of deposit with commercial banks. Any deficiency in the pooled cash account is

assumed by the general fund and covered through future budgetary appropriations. At June 30,

2015. the cash available in the pooled cash account amounted to §3,750,630, rvhich has been

recorded within major and non-major govemmental funds.

Under the laws and regulations of the Commonwealth, public funds deposited by the

Municipality in commercial bánks must be fully collateralized for the amounts deposited in

excess of the federal depository insurance generally provided by the Federal Deposits lnsurance

Corporation (FDIC). All securities pledged as collateral are held by agents designated by the

Commonwealth's Secretary of the Treasury, but not in the Municipality's name.

Cash in fiscal agent in the general fund. amounting to $7,923 consists principally of unspent

proceeds of bonds for payment of the statutory expenditures. Cash in fiscal agenl in the debt

service fund consists of cash related to propemy tax and sales and use tax collections amounting
to §3,123,062 which are restricted for the payment of the Municipality's debt service of bonds

payable, as required by law. Cash in fiscal agent in the capital improvemenl bond fund and other

governmental funds. amounting to $1,058.972 and S147,303. respectively. consists principally of
unspent proceeds of bonds and federal public assislance grants funds, which are restricted for the

acquisition. construclion or improvement of major capital assets.

Cash in commercial banks of the head starr fund, amounting to S478,923, represents the balance

of a non-interest bearing account resÍicted to finance the operations of this federal financially
assisted program. Cash in commercial banks for other governmental funds, amounting to

§3,3?4,686, represents the balance of interest bearing and non-interest bearing accounts restricled
to finance the operations ofcertain federal, state and local funded programs.
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Cash in commercial bank of Villas del Parque (proprietary fund), amounting fo §273,416,
represents the balance of interest and non-interest bearing accounts restricted to finance the
project operations. Villas del Parque is required to set amounts for the replacement of propeny
and other project expenditures, as approved by the U.S. Department of Housing and Urban
Development. Accordingly, Ihe restricled cash balances of Villas del Parque include a

replacement reserve of S135,251, a cash balance for operations of 596,252, tenams' security
deposits of$7,251 and a cash balance reserved for taxes and insurance of$34,662.

Accoants Receivoble

Accounts receivable consist of all revenues earned but not collected at June 30.2015. These
accounts receivables are stated net of estimated reserved for doubtful accounts, which are
determined based upon past collection experience, historical trends, current economic conditions
and the periodic aging ofaccounts receivable.

Activities among governmental funds that are representative of lending/borrowing arangements
outstanding at the end of the fiscal year are referred to as either "due to/from other funds".

Real Estate Heldfot Sole

Real estate's held for sale in the accompanying statemenl ofnet position consist of purchased and
redeveloped foreclosed and abandoned homes and residential propenies with the resources
granted by the Neighborhood Stabilization Program (NSP), a component of the Community
Development Block Grant (CDBG). This real estate's held fo¡ sale is carried at the lower of the
estimated fair value or historical cosl. Subsequent declines in the value of real estate's available
for sale are charged to expense.

ühet Currenl Assets

Other current assets in the accompanving statement of net position - business-type activities and
the statement of net position - proprietary fund consist principally of prepaid costs, which are
capinlized rather thal charged to operat¡ons.

Capital Assets

Capital assets used in govemmental and business+ype aclivities include land and land
improvements, buildings, structures and building improvements, machinery and equipment
(including equipmenl held under capital leas€s), fumiture and fixtures, licensed vehicles,
construction in progress. and infrastructure. These assets are capitalized and reported in the
accompanying statement of net position and the statement of net position - proprietary fund.
lnfrastructure assets are generally stationary in nature and include roads, bridges. streets and
sidewalks, drainage systems and other simila¡ assets.

i)

k)
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For financial reporting purposes, the Municipality defines capital ¿§sets as assets with an

individual cost basis of$100 or more at the date of acquisition, construction or improvement, and

with useful lives extending beyond one year. All assets with individual costs under $100 or with

useful lives not exceeding one year, are charged directly to expense in the govemment-wide

Staiement of activities and the st¿tement of revenues, expenses and changes in fund net position -
proprietary fund. In the governmental funds, alt capital assets are recorded a5 capital outlays

iexpenditures), while all assets with individual costs under $100 are recorded as expenditures in

the corresponding functior/program identified with the asset-

In the statement of net position and lhe statement ol net position - ploprietary fund, all capital

assets are recorded at cost or estimated historical cost if actual cost was unavailable, except for

donafed capital assets, which are recorded at their estimated fair value at the date of donation.

Eslimated historical cosls based on deflated current costs were used Io value a portion of the

infrastrucrure constructed or acquired prior to June 30, 2003 and certain lands, buildings,

structures and building improvements. The method used to deflate the current costs with an

approximate price index was used only in the case of certain items for which the historical cost

documentation was not available.

Actual historical costs were used to value the infrastructure acquired or constructed after June 30.

2003 as well as, construction in progress, machinery and equipment and licensed vehicles

acquired prior or after such date.

Major outlays for capital assefs and improvements are capitalized in the statement of net position

as projects are constructed. The costs ofnormal maintenance and repairs that do not add value to

the asset or materially extend capital asset lives are not capitalized.

Depreciation and amoñization expense is recorded only in the govemment-wide s1¿tement of
activities. However, there is no depreciation or amortization recorded for land and construction

in progress. Depreciable capital assets are generally depreciated or amortized over their

estimated useful lives under the straight-line melhod. except for machinery and equipment held

under capital leases which is depreciated over the shorter of its eslimated useful life or the lease

term. The estimated useful lives ofmalor capital asset categories are:

Land improvements
Buildings, strucfures and building improvements
Infrastructure
Motor vehicles
Fumiture, fixtures, machinery and equipment,

excluding those held under capital leases

Office equipment held under capital leases

30 to 50
20 to 50

5

5to20
3to5

Depreciation and amonization expense of capital assets is recorded as a direct expense of the

function/program specifically identified with the asset. Depreciation and amortization of
infrastrucfure is not allocated to various functions/programs but reported as direct expenses ofthe
urban and economic development function.

Years
20
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Unearned Revenues

In the govemmental fund financial statements. uneamed revenue arises when the Municipaliry
receives resources before il has a legal claim to them (reported as "unearned revenue " in fhe

accompanying balance sheet-governmental funds). In subsequent periods, when the revenue

recognition criterion is met, the liability for uneamed revenue is removed and revenue is
recognized.

Uneamed revenues at the govemment-wide level arise only when the Municipality receives

resources before it has a legal claim to them (reported as "unearned revenue" in fhe

accompanying statement of net position).

m) Defened Oatflow/InJlow of Resources

In addition to assets, the statement of net position - governmenfal and business-type activities

and, the governmental funds balance sheet and the statement of net position - proprietary fund

will sometimes repof a separate seclion for deferred outflows of resources. This separate

financial statement element. deferred outflows of resources. represents a consumption of net

position thal applies to a future period(s) and so will not be recognized as an outflow ofresources
(expense/expenditure) until then. The Primary Government have one major item that qualiry for
reporting in this category and that one is the deferred outflows for pensions (i.e., difference

befween actual and expected experience, change in proportion, differences between employer's

contributions and proportionate share of contributions, and contributions subsequent to the

measurement date). reported in the government-wide slatement of net position. There were no

deferred outflows ofresources at the govemmental funds level.

In addition ro liabilities, the statement of net position - govemmental and business-type activities

and, the govemmental funds balance sheet and the statement of net position - proprietary fund
will sometimes report a separate section for defened inflows of resources. This separate financial

statement element. defened inflows of resources, represents an acquisition of net position and

resources that applies to a future period(s) and so will nol be recognized as an inflow of resources

(revenue) until that time. The Primary Govemment has only one type of item arising under the
modified accrual basis of accounting that qualiry for reporting in this category. and that is
unavailable revenue. Deferred inflows of resources at the govemmental fund level arise when

potential revenue does not meet the "available" criteria for revenue recognition in the current
period under the modified accrual basis of accounting. ln subsequent periods, when the applicable
resources become available, the deferred inflor.v of resources is removed from the balance sheet,

and the revenue is recognized. The Primary Govemment also have one item that qualifies for
reporting in this ca¡egory in the government wide Statement of Net Position and that one is the

deferred inflows for pensions (i.e., difference between actual and expected experience, net

difference between projected and actual earnings on pension plan investments, change in
proportion, and differences between employer's contributions and proportionate share of
contributions).
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Compensated Absences

The liability for compensated absences recorded in the accompanying statement of net position is

limited to leave lhat: (t) is attributable to services already rendered on or before June 30,2015
and (2) is nol contingent on a specific event that is outside the control ofthe Municipality and the
employee (such as illness). Compensated absences that relate to future services or are contingent
on a specific event outside the control of the employer or the employee are accounted for in the

period when those services are rendered or lhose events take place.

The liability for compensated absences includes salary-related costs, which are directly and

incrementally related to the amount of salary paid to the employee (such as employer's share of
social security taxes and medicare laxes).

The vacation policy of the Municipality provides for the accumulation of regular vacations at a
ra¡e of 2.5 days per month (30 days per fiscal year) per employee. Employees accumulate regular
sick leave at a rate of 1.5 days per month (18 days per fiscal year). Employees accumulate

compensatory time at a rate of 1.5 ¡imes the overtime worked. All vacat¡on and sick leave days

accumulated by employees in excess of 30 days and 90 days, respectively, are paid to employees

each fiscal year, if not consumed. as required by law. In the case of compensatory time, the

excess of240 hours is paid to employees each fiscal year, ifnot consumed.

Upon termination of emplo-vment. an employee receives compensation for all accumulated unpaid

regular vacation leave aI the current rate. In the case of regular sick leave, if lhe employee

terminates his or her employment before reaching l0 years of services, such regular sick leave is

not paid to the employee, if not consumed. In addition upon terminalion of employment, an

employee does not receive compensation for compensatory time, if not consumed previously.

After l0 years of services, any regular sick leave balance is paid lo the employee. Accumulated
vacation time is fully vested to the employee at any time.

The liability for compensated absences is in the statement of net position. A liability for
compensated absences is reponed in the governmental fund financial statements only when
matured (when payment is due), for example. as a result ofemployee resignalions or retirements.

Long-lerm Debl

The long-term liabilities reponed in the accompanying stalements of net position include the
Municipality's bonds payable, notes payable, accrued compensated absences and accrued legal
claims and judgments (ifany).

All long-term debt to be repaid from governmental resources is reported as liabilities in the
accompanying statement ofnet position. Principal and interest payments on bonds due on July l,
2015 have been recorded as govemmenlal fund liabilities in the debt service fund at June 30,
20t5, when resources were available. In the govemmental fund financial stalements, the face
amount of debt issued (gross debt proceeds) is reported as other financing sources when issued.

o)
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In the governmental activities of the GWFS, and in the GFFS. debt issuance costs, except for any
portion related to prepaid insurance costs, are recorded as expenses\expendilures as incurred.

Non-interest bearing notes payable are accounted for under the provisions of Opinion No. 21,
Interest on Receivables and Pqvables, issued by the Accounting Principles Board (APB No. 2l).
According to APB No. 21, the Municipality has recorded such notes at present value with an

imputed interest rate that approximates the rate that rvould have been used, using the same terms
and conditions. if it had been negotialed by an independent lender. In the accompanying
statement of nel posilion, such notes payable are reported net of the applicable unamortized
discount, which is the difference between the present value and the face amount ofthe notes. The

discount is amortized over the life of the notes using the effective interest method. Amortization
of the notes discount is recorded as part of interesl expense in the statement of activities. In the

GFFS, notes discount is recognized as other financing uses as incurred.

p) Accoanting fot Pension Costs

The Municipality adopted the provisions of GASBS No. 68, Accounting and Reponing for
Pensions - an amendment of GASB Statemenl No. 27, and GASBS No. 71, Pension Transilion
for Contributions Made Subs€quent to the Measurement Date. which amended GASBS No.68.

The Municipality accounts for pension cosls from the standpoint of a participanl in a multi-
employer cost-sharing plan. Accordingly. the net pension liability, pension expense and deferred
outflows/inflows of resources recognized in the accompanying basic financial statements are

equal to the Municipaliry's propoÍionate shares of the collective net pension liability, pension

expense and collective deferred outflows/inflows of resources reponed for the pension plans'
trust by the plan's administrator as of the me¿¡surement date. In addition, if the Municipality's
annual contributions are less than the shtutorily required amounts, a liabiliry is recorded for any
unpaid balances.

For the purpose of applying the requiremens of GASBS Nos. 68 and 71, the Commonwealth of
Pueno Rico is considered to be the sponsor of the Employees' Retirement System of the
Govemment of Puerto Rico and its lnstrumentalities (ERS), a multi-employer hybrid defined
contribution plan in which the employees of the Municipaliry participale. The Municipalitl is

considered a participant. and not a sponsor, of this retirement system since the majority of the
paficipants in the aforementioned pension trust fund are employees of the Commonwealth of
Puerto Rico and the basic financial statements of such ret¡rement system are part of the
Commonwealth's fi nancial reponing entity.

For purposes of measuring the net pension liability, deferred outflows/inflows of resources
related to pensions and pension expense, information about the fiduciary net position of the ESR
plan and additions to/reductions from Ihe ESR plan's fiduciary net position have been determined
on the same basis as they are reporred by the ESR. For this purpose, benefit payments (including
refunds of employee contributions) are recognized when due and payable in accordance with the
benefit terms. Investments are reported at fair value.
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Risk Management

The Municipality carries commercial insurance covering casualty, theft, ton claims and other
losses. Insurance policies are negotiated by the Municipality. The Municipality pays the insurance
premiums each fiscal year through monthly equal paymenls deducted from the Municipality's
gross property ta,y collections made by the Municipal Revenue Collection Center ("CRIM", by its
Spanish acronym), a govemmental entity responsible for billing and collecting property taxes on

behalfofall municipalities of Puerto Rico.

The Municipality carries insurance coverage for death and bodily injuries caused by automobile
accidents. This insurance is obtained through the Automobile Accidents Compensation
Administration (ACAA, by its Spanish acronym), a component unit of the Commonwealth. This
insurance is compulsory for all licensed vehicles used on public roads and highways in Puerto
Rico. The annual premium applicable at June 30, 2015 is $35 per licensed motor vehicle, which
is paid directly to ACAA.

The Municipaliry obtains workers' compensation insurance coverage through the State Insurance
Fund Corporation (SIFC), a component unit of the Commonweahh. This insurance covers
workers against injuries. disability or death because of work or employment-related accidents, or
because of illness suffered as a consequence of their employment. Workers' compensation
insurance premiums are also paid lhrough monthly deductions made by CRIM from the

Municipality's gross property tax colleclions.

The Municipality obtains unemployment compensation. non-occupational disabiliry, and drivers'
insurance coverage for is employees through various insurance programs administered by the
Commonwealth's Department ofLabor and Human Resources (DOL). These insurance programs

cover workers against unemployment and provide supplementary insurance coverage for
temporary disability, or death because of work or employmenl-related accidents or because of
illness suffered as a consequence of their employment. Unemployment compensation, non-
occupational disability and drivers' insurance premiums are paid directly to DOL on a cost
reimbursement basis.

The Municipality also obtains medical insurance coverage from health insurance companies for
its employees. Health insurance coverage and premium options are negotiated each year by the
Municipality on behalfofthe employees. The current insurance policies have not been cancelled
or terminated at June 30, 2015. Premiums are paid on á monthly basis directly to the insurance
company. In the past three years, the Municipality has not settled claims that exceeded insurance
coverage.

Fund Balances

On July l, 2010, the Municipaliry adopted the provisions of GASB Statement No. 54, Fund
Bqlqnce Reporting and Governmentul Fund Type Defrnitions No.54 (GASB No. 54). GASB No.
54, which enhanced the usefulness of fund balance information by providing clearer fund balance
classifications that can be more consis¡ently applied.
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Also. this slatement establishes fund balance classificalions that comprise a hierarchy upon use of
the resources reported in govemmental funds.

According GASB No. 54 provisions, the fund balances are reported in five categories:

. Nonspendable - Amounts that canno¡ be spenl because they are: a) not in spendable form or
b) legally or contractually required to be maintained intact. Due to the nature or form of the
resources, they generally cannot be expected to be convened into cash or a spendable form.

o Resricted - Represent resources thal can be spent only for the specific purposes stipulated by
constitutional provisions. extemal resource providers (extemally imposed by creditor or
granto6). or through enabling legislation (hat is, legislation that creates a new revenue
source and restricr its use). Effectively, restrictions may be changed or lifted only with the
consent of resource providers.

. CommitÍed - Represent resources used for specific purposes, imposed by formal action ofthe
Municipal's highest level of decision making authority (Municipal Legislature through
resolutions and ordinances) and can only be changed by a similar law, ordinance or
resolution. no later than the end offiscal year.

. Assigned - Reprcsent resources intended to be used by the Municipality for specific purposes

but do not meet the criteria to be classified as restricted or committed (generally executive
orders approved by the Mayor). Intent can be expressed by the Municipal Legislarure, the
Mayor or by an official or body to which the Municipal Legislature delegates authority in
conformit¡ with the Law No. 8l of August 30, 1991. as amended, known as Autonomous
Municipalilies Acl of lhe Commonwealth of Puerto Rico (Act No. 8l). In govemmental funds
other than the general fund, assigned fund balance represenls the remaining amount that is not
restricled or committed.

o Unassigned - Represent the residual classification for the Municipality's general fund and

includes all spendable amounts not contained in the other classifications. In other funds, the
unassigned classification is used only to report a deficit balance resulting from overspending
for specific purposes for which amounts had been restricted, commined, or assigned.

Negative fund balance amounts are assigned amouns reduced to the amount that will raise
the fund balance to zero. Consequently, negative residual amounts is resricted, committed
and assigned fund balance classificalions have been reclassified to unassigned fund balances.

The Municipality reports resources constrained to stabilization as a specified purpose (restricted
or committed fund balance in the general fund) only if: ( I ) such resources meet the other criteria
for those classifications, as described above and (2) the circumstances or conditions that signal
the need for stabilization are identified in sufficient detail and are not expecled to occur routinely.

Howevei, the Municipality has not entered into any stabiliz¿tion-like arrangements, nor has set
aside material financial resources for emergencies and has not esrablished formal minimum fund
balance amounts as ofand for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2015.
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When an expenditure is incurred for purposes for which amounts are available in multiple fund
balance classifications. the Municipality uses resüicted resources first, and then unrestricted
resources. Within unrestricted resources, the Municipality generally spends committed resources

first, followed by assigned resources, and then unassigned resources.

At June 30, 2015, the accompanying fund financial statements reponed fund balances as

restricted, commifted and unassigned.

Intet-fand Activilies

The Municipality has the following types of reciprocal and non-reciprocal inter-fund activities
recorded among govemmental funds in the accompanying FFS:

. Inte¡-fund loans - Represent resources (assets) provided by one govemmental fund to other
govemmental fund with a requirement and commilment for repaymenl (reimbursement),
which are recorded as "due from" in the lender governmental fund and "due lo" in fhe
borrower governmental fund. For amounts not expected to be collected, inter-fund
receivables/payables are reduced to their eslimated realizable (settlement) value, and the
portion of the inter-fund loan that is not expected to be repaid is reported as a "transfer-in"
from the govemmenml fund that provided the loan.

. Inter-fund transfers (transfers-in/(ozr)) - Represent flows of assets (permanent reallocation
of financial resources among governmentál funds) without equivalent flows of assets in
return and without a requirement for repayment. Transfers are reported as "other rtnancing
as¿s '' in the govemmental fund making transfers and as "other Jinanc¡ng sources" in fhe
governmental fund receiving transfers.

. Inle¡-fund reimbursemenls - Represent repayments (reimbursements) from the
governmental fund responsible for particular expenditures or expenses to the govemmental
fund that initially paid for them.

In the FFS, inler-fund activify has not been eliminated, as permitted by GAAP.

Use of Estimales

The preparalion of the accompanying basic financial statements in conformiry with GAAP
requires management to make significant estimates and assumptions that affed the reported
amounts of asseis and liabilities, the disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of
the basic financial statements, and the reported amounts of revenue and expenses during the
reporting period. Actual results could differ from those estimates.
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u) New Implemen ation an^ot Faturc Adoption oÍ Accounling Pnnouncemenls

The GASB has issued the following standards that have effective dates after June 30, 2015:

. GASB Statement No. 72 Fair Value Measuremenl and Application (lssued 2/15). The

objective of this Statemenl is to provide guidance for determining a fair value me¿surement
for financial reporting purposes. This Statement also provides guidance for applying fair
value to certain investments and disclosures related to all fair value measurements. The

requirements of this Statement are effective for financial statements for periods beginning
after June 15,2015. Earlier application is encouraged.

o GASB Statemenl No. 73 Accounting and Financial Reporting for Pensions and Related
Assets that are not within the Scope of GASB Statement 68, and Ammendments to Certain
Provisions of GASB Statements 67 and 68 (lssued 06/1 5). The objective of this S¡atement is

to improve the usefulness of information about pensions included in the general purpose

extemal financial reports of state and local govemments for making decisions and assessing

accountability. The requirements of this Statement that address accounting and financial
reporting by employers and govemmental nonemployer contributing entities for pensions that

are not within the scope of Slatement 68 are effective for financial statements for fiscal years

beginning after June 15, 2016, and the requirements of this Statement that address financial
reporting for assets accumulated for purposes of providing those pensions are effective for
fiscal years beginning afler June 15. 2015. The requirements of this Slatement for pension

plans that are within the scope of Statement 67 or for pensions that are within the scope of
Statement 68 are effective for fiscal years beginning after June 15. 2015. Earlier application
is encouraged.

¡ GASB Stalement No. 74 Financial Reporting for Postemployment Benefit Plans other than

Pension Plans (lssued 06/15). The objective of this Stalement is to improve the usefulness of
information about postemployment benefits other than pensions (other postemployment

benefits or OPEB) included in the general purpose extemal financial repons of slate and local
govemmental OPEB plans for making decisions and assessing accounlability. This Statement
is effective for financial sla¡ements for fiscal years beginning after June 15, 2016. Earlier
application is encouraged.

o GASB Sratement No. 75 Accounting and Financial Reponing for Postemployment BenefiB
Other Than Pensions (lssued 06/15). The primary objective of this Statement is to improve
accounting and financial reporting by state and local govemments for postemployment
benefits other lhan pensions (other postemployment benefits or OPEB). [t also improves
information provided by state and local governmenal employers about financial support for
OPEB that is provided by other enlities. his Statement is effective for fiscal years beginning
after June I 5, 2017. Ea¡lier application is encouraged.

o GASB Statement No. 76 The Hierarchy of Generally Accepted Accounting hinciples for
State and Local Governments (lssued 06/15). The objective of this Statement is to identiff-
in the context of the current governmental financial reporting environment-the hierarchy of
generally accepted accounting principles (GAAP). The requirements of lhis Shtement are

effective for financial statements for periods beginning after June 15, 2015, and should be

applied retroactively. Earlier application is permitted.
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. GASB Statement No. 77 Ta,r Abatement Disclosures (lssued 08/15). The objective of this
Statement is to requires disclosure of ta.x abatement information about (l) a repoling
governmentls own tax abatement agreements and (2) those Ihat are entered into by other
governments and that reduce the reporting govemment's tax revenues. The requirements of
this Statement a¡e effective for financial slatements for periods beginning after December 15,

2015. Earlier application is encouraged.

o GASB Statement No. 78 Pensions Provided through Certain Multiple-Employer Defined
Benefit Pension Plans (lssued l2115). The objective ofthis Statemenl is to address a practice

issue regarding rhe scope and applicability of Stalement No. 68, Accounting and Financial
Reporting for Pensions. This issue is associated with pensions provided through certain
multiple-employer defined benefit pension plans and to state or local govemmental
employers whose employees are provided with such pensions. The requirements of this
Statement are effective for reponing periods beginning after December 15,2015. Ea¡lier
application is encouraged.

. GASB Statement No. 79 Certain Extemal Investment Pools and Pool Participants (lssued

l2l15). This Statement addresses accounting and financial reporting for certain extemal
investment pools and pool panicipants. The requirements of this Statement are effective for
reporting periods beginning after June 15. 2015, excepl for certain provisions on portfolio
quality, custodial credit risk and shadow pricing. Those provisions are effective for reponing
periods beginning after December I 5, 2015. Earlier application is encouraged.

. GASB Statement No. 80 Blending Requirements for Cenain Component Units-an
amendment ofGASB Statement No. l4 (lssued 0l/16). The objective ofthis Statement is lo
improve financial reporting by clari§ing the financial statement presentation requirements
for certain component units. The requiremenls of this Statemenl are effeclive for reporting
periods beginning after June 15, 2016. Earlier application is encouraged.

The impact of these statements on lhe Municipality's basic financial statements has not yet been

determined.

2. Deposits

The Municipality maintains its deposits in various commercial bank located in Puerto Rico and the
Govemment Development Bank for Pueno Rico (GDB). Proceeds from all bonds and the funds
related to certain federal grant arvards are required by law to be held with GDB.

On July l, 2004. the Municipaliry adopted the provisions of GASB Statement No. 40 (GASB No. 40),
Deposil and Invesment RisL Disclosure, an Amendment fo GASB Sratemen¡.Ir'o. J. This statement
requires lhat state and local governments disclose essential risk information about deposits and
investments. The disclosure requirements cover four main areas: (l) credit risk, (2) interest rate risk,
(3) custodial credit risk, (4) foreign exchange exposure.
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Credit risk - This is the risk that an issuer or other counterparty to an investment will not
fulfill its obligations. In compliance with the laws and regulations of the Commonwealth. the
Municipality has adopted, as its custodial credit risk policy, the Slatemenl of lwestment
Guidelines for the Government of the Commonv'eallh of Puerto Rico. Accordingly, the

Municipality is only allowed to invesl its obligations of the Commonrvealth, obligations of
the Uniled States of Americ4 certificates of deposit, commercial paper. bankers' acceptances

or in pools of obligations of the Municipalities of Puerto fuco, which are managed by GDB.
According to the aforementioned inveslment guidelines, the Municipality is not allowed to
invesl in marketable securities or any other rype of investments for which credit risk exposure

may be significant. Therefore, the Municipality's management has concluded that the credit
risk related to any possible loss related to defaults by commercial banks on the Municipality's
deposits is considered lorv at June 30, 2015.

Interest rate risk - This is the risk that changes in interest rates of debt investments will
adversely affect the fair value of an investment. The Municipality manages its exposure to
declines in fair values by: (l) not including debt invesments in its investments portfolio at

June 30,2015, (2) limiting the weighted average maturiry of its investments to periods of
three monfhs or less and (3) keeping most of its banks deposits in inlerest bearing accounts
generating interest at prevailing market rates. At June 30, 2015, the interest rate risk
associated with the Municipality's cash and cash equivalent is considered lorv.

Custodial credit risk - In the case of deposits, this is the risk that in the event of a bank

failure, the Municipality's deposits may not be recovered. Pursuant to fhe Slalemenl of
Investmen! Guidelines for the Government of the Commonwealth of Puerlo Rico, the balances

deposited in commercial banks by the Municipality are insured by the Federal Deposit
Insurance Corporation (FDIC), generally up to a maximum of §250.000 per depositor. In
addition, public funds deposited in commercial banks by the Municipality are fully
collateralized for the amounts deposited in excess of the federal depository insurance. All
securilies pledged as collateral are held in the Municipality's name by the agents of the

Commonwealth's Secretary of Treasury. Deposits of GDB, amounting to $4,337,260 at June

30, 2015, are uninsured and uncollateralized. However, no losses related to defaults by GDB
on deposit transactions have been incurred by the Municipality through June 30,2015. It is
management's policy to only maintain deposits in banks affiliated to FDIC to minimize the

custodial credit risk. except for GDB. Therefore. rhe Municipality's management has

concluded that at June 30. 2015. the cuslodial credit risk associated with the Municipality's
cash and cash equivalents is considered low.

Foreisn exchanqe risk - This is the risk that changes in exchange ra¡es will adversely affect
the value of an investment or a deposit. According to the aforementioned investmenl
guidelines, adopted by the Municipality, the Municipality is prevented from investing in
foreign securities or any other types of investments for which foreign exchange risk exposure
may be significant. Accordingly, management has concluded that the foreign exchange risk
related to the Municipality's deposits is considered low at June 30, 2015.
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Municipal Lic€nse Taxes

The Municipaliry is authorized by Law No. 8l to impose and collect municipal license taxes to any

natural or legal person having trade or business activities within the territory ofJuana Díaz. This is a

self-assessed tax generally based on the business volume of taxpayers, measured by gross revenues.

The Municipality establishes the applicable lax rates. At June 30, 2015, the municipal license tax
rates imposed by the Municipality were 1.50 percent for financial institutions and 0.50 percent for
other types of taxpayers. Any ta,xpayers that have been granted with a partial tax exemption under

any of the tax incenlive acts of the Commonwealth ultimately pay municipal license taxes at reduced

tax rates, generally between 60 percent and 90 percent under standard rates.

Each taxpayer must assess the corresponding municipal license tax by declaring the volume of
business through a tax return to be filed and due five (5) working days after April l5 of each yea¡
based on the actual volume of business (revenues) generaled in the preceding calendar year.

Taxpayers with a sales volume of $3 million or more must include audited financial statements with
üeir tax retum filings. The tax can be paid by the t¿xpayer in two equal installments due on July l5
and January 15, subsequent to the filing ofthe declaration before the due date ended five (5) working
days after April l5 of each year. The first installment of the tar covers the six-month period ended

December 31. subsequent to the filing date ofthe declaration. while the second installment oflhe tax
covers the six-month period ended June i0 ofthe subsequent calendar year. If a taxpayer elects to
pay the tax in full on the filing date ofthe declaration (five (5) working days after April l5), a 5
percent discount is granted automatically on the total tax amount due.

Any municipal license taxes collected in advance (that is, pertaining to a future fiscal year) are

recorded in the liabilities section as unearned revenues in the GWFS and the general fund. Uneamed

municipal license tax revenues recorded in the accompanying GWFS and lhe general fund amounted

to §1,701,586 at June 30, 2015. Those unearned municipal license revenues collected in advance
peÍain to the general fund's operating budget of the fiscal year 2015-20'16, therefore, generally
cannot be used to pay obligations ofthe fiscal year 2014-2015.

Sales and Use Taxes

On July 4, 2006, the Commonwealth Legislature approved Act No. I l7 ("Act 117") which amends
the Pueno Rico Internal Revenue Code of 1994 to provide, among other things, for a sale and use lax
of 5.5% to be imposed by the Commonwealth Govemment. Act I l7 also authorizes each municipal
government to impose a municipal sale and use tax of 1.5%. This municipal sales and use t¿\ has in
general the same tax base and limitations (except for unprocessed foods) as those provided by the

Commonwealth's sales and use tax.

On July 29, 2007. the Commonwealth Legislature approved Act No. 80 (Act 80), which amends Act
No. I t7 ofJuly 4, 2006 to impose to all lhe Municipalities of Pueno Rico a uniform municipal sales

and use tax of 1.50lo. Effective August 1,2007, l% ofthe 1.50á is collected by the Municipalities and
the remaining.5olo ofthe 1.5% is collected by the Pueno Rico Department of Treasury (PRDT).

4.
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The amount collected by lhe PRDT, (.5% oflhe 1.5%) is deposited in accounts or special funds in the

Govemmental Development Bank of Puerto Rico (GDB), subject to resrictions imposed and

distributed as follows:

o .2o/o of tíe.5% will be deposited in a Municipal Development Fund to be distributed among

all the municipalities in accordance with a formula created by the Act,

o .2o/o of the .5% rvill be deposited in a Municipal Redemption Fund to finance loans to

Municipalities and.

t .lVo of the .5% will be deposited in a Municipal Improvemenl Fund to finance capital
improvement projects; these funds will be distribured based on legislation from the

Commonwealth's Legislature

Effective January 1,201l, the Commonwealth of Puerto Rico adopted a new Intemal Revenue Code

(2011 PR Code). Subtitle D (Sections 4010 to 4070) of the 20ll PR Code incorporates the

dispositions applicable to the sales and use tax. As stated by Section 4050. the Municipalities may

use lhe sales and use tax proceeds to finance solid waste, recycling. capital projecs, health and public

safety programs as well as any other activify thal promotes sound public administration.

On June 30, 2013, the Commonwealth approved Act No. 40 which, among other things, reduces the

municipal sales and use lax from 1.syo fo lyo and increases the Commonwealth's sales and use tax
from 5.5% to 670 effective December 1, 2013. This Act was subsequently amended to change this
effective date from December l. 2013 to February l. 2014.

In order to address the fiscal and credit crisis of the Commonwealth of Puerto fuco, the GDB
liquidiry and the difncult fiscal situation of the municipalities of Puerto Rico, on January 24,2014,
üe Commonwealth approved Act No. l8 and 19. Those Acts provide for the restructuring and

creation of financing structures from sales and use t¿\ sources to guarantee and pay municipal long-

term debt issuances.

Act No. 18 creates a special fund called the Municipal Adminisfadon Fund (FAM). under lhe
custody of the Govemment Development Bank of Puerto Rico (GDB), which permits the

municipalities to guarantee and pay long term debt and provide funds for its general operations. In
addition, this Act improves the financing capacity of the Puerto Rico Sales Tax Financing
Corporalion (COFINA), a Commonwealth fund administered by GDB and the P.R. Secretary of
Treasury. The Act also includes special provisions for municipalities that do not want to be covered
by the Act.

After July I , 2014, the 6910 corresponding to the Commonwealth's sales and use tax will be deposited
in COFINA. From these funds, the Commonwealth will deposit -5% in the FAM. Distribution to the
municipalities will depend on whether the municipalities signed an agreement to be covered or not
covered by the Act's provisions. The Municipality ofJuana Díaz signed the ágreement to be covered.
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For municipalities covered by the agreement, the .5% will be dis¡ributed as follows:

o .2Yo wlll be deposited in the Municipal Development Fund to be distributed to the

municipalities,

o .2Yo will be deposiled in a Municipal Redemption Fund to then be deposited in the

municipalities general fund (lhe municipalities have the option to maintain funds in the

Municipal Redemption Fund or to transfer funds from the Municipal Development Fund to
increase its debt margin and issue Ioans to be obtained from financial institutions)

o .l% will be deposited in a Municipal Improvement Fund to finance capital improvement
projecs; these funds will be distributed based on legislation from the Commonwealth's
Legislature.

For municipalities not covered by the agreement the .5% will be distributed as follows:

o .2Vo wilt be deposited in the Municipal Development Fund. Section 4 of the Act requires

amounts deposited in the Municipal Development Fund of municipalities not covered by the

Act to be redislributed to the municipaliries covered by the Act.

o .2Yo tvill be deposited in a Municipal Redemption Fund to guarantee and repay long-term

debt through any financial institution (each semester the municipalities may transfer to their
general fund the funds in excess ofdebt service requirements),

¡ .l% will be deposited in a Municipal Improvement Fund to finance capital improvement

projects; these funds will be distributed based on legislation from the Commonwealth's

Legislature.

Act No. 19 creates the Municipal Finance Corporation (COFIM), a public corporation and a
component unit of the Governmental Development Bank of Puemo Rico (GDB) which may issue,

pay or refinance long-term debt of municipalities. Principal and interest ofthese bonds and loans will
be guaranteed with the municipal sales and use ta,\ of l%. The Act also includes special provisions

for municipalities that do not want to be covered by the Act.

After July l, 2014, the l7o coresponding to the municipalities' sales and use tax will be deposited in

COFIM. From these funds coFIM will deposit ro úe coFIM's sinking fund the greater of: .3%o of
the l7o municipal sales and use tax or an Annual Rental Fee (RFA). The RFA for fiscal yeatr 2014-

2015 will be s65,541,281 and thereafter will be l.5olo ofthe RFA ofthe preceding fiscal period. The

excess of the required deposit to the COFIM'S sinking fund (.7o/o of fhe I o/o of the municipal sales

and use tax) will be transferred to the general fund of municipalities covered by the agreement or to

the Municipal Redemption Fund as decided by the municipaliry. Before the transfer ofthe .1yo to fhe

municipalities covered by the Act, COFIM will transfer the loá municipal sales and use t¿x to the

municipalities not covered by the AcI. These municipalities cannot obtain loans guaranteed by

COFIM's sinking fund.
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If at any moment the required deposits to the COFIM's sinking fund were not sufficient to pay the
principal and interest of any outstanding obligation, the deficiency will tre covered by appropriations
ofthe Commonwealth's general fund budget.

Individuals, organizations and entities subject to the collection of the municipal sales and use tax
must file a t¿x return to COFIM. The tar is due on or before the 20th day of each month based on the
t¿x collected in the preceding month. COFIM has provided retailers three alternatives for the filling
of the monthly return: I ) electronic filling through COFIM's internet ponal; 2) in the bank branches

of the financial institution designated by COFIM to be its intermediary, the Popular Bank of Puerto
Rico; and 3) in the collectio¡s offices of the municipalities that have been certified as collection
agents of COFIM.

COFIM established a system of monthly advances for the transfers of the .2%o destined for the
Municipal Development Fund (FDM), the .2oá related to the Municipal Redemption Fund (FRM) and

the 1% of municipal sales and use tax. Each month, the GDB will make the FDM, FRM and I o/o sales

and use tax transfers based on the amounts collected that same month in the preceding fiscal year
(2013-2014)- At the end ofthe year, a settlement will be made comparing the actual collections ofthe
FDM, FRM and the l% sales and use tax with the monthly advances made to each municipality. If
actual collections exceed the total advances received, an account receivable from GDB will be

recognized; if actual collections are less than the total advances, a payable to the GDB will be

recognized and amortized through withholdings from future advances.

For the FDM and FRM ransfers, the advance system became effective on July l, 2014; for the loá
municipal sales and use !ax, the effective date varied depending on the implementation date of
COFIM's collection process in the corresponding municipality. For the Municipality of Juana Día¿
the implementation date was February l, 2015. For ¡he fiscal year ended on June 30, 2015, the
Municipality's total l0á sales and use tax advances amounted $722,345, respectively.

Property Taxes

The Municipality is authorized by Law No. 8l to impose and collect property taxes from any natural
or legal person that, at January I ofeach calendar year: (l) is engaged in Íade or business and is the
owner of personal or real property used in trade or business or (2) owns residential real property with
a value in excess ofS15.000 (at 1957 estimated market prices).

The Municipal Revenue Collection Center (CRIM, by its Spanish acronym) is a govemmental entity
not related to the Municipality which is responsible for the billings and collections of real and
personal property taxes on behall of the Municipalitv and all other municipalities in the
Commonwealth of Pueno Rico. Prior to the beginning of each fiscal year, CRIM informs to the
Municipality the estimated amount of properry taxes expected to be collected for the ensuing fiscal
year. Throughout rhe fiscal year, CRIM advances funds (estimated collections) to the Municipality
based on the initial estimated (forecasted) collection amounts for the fiscal year. CRIM is required by
law to prepare a settlement statement on a fiscal year basis, whereby a comparison is made between
the amounts advanced to the Municipality and the property tax amounts aclually collected from
t¿xpayers on behalfofthe Municipality during the fiscal year.
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This settlement has to be completed on a final basis not later than December 3l following the fiscal
year end. If in any given fiscal year. CRIM remils to the Municipalify properfy lax advances that are

less than the property taxes acrually collected by CRIM on behalf of the Municipality, then CRIM
will increase the amount of the monthly property táx advances during for the next fiscal year.

However, if advances exceed the amount actually collected by CRIM, then CRIM will reduce the
amount ofthe monthly property t¿\ advances during the next fiscal year.

Personal property ta,ves are self-assessed by taxpayers every year using the book value of personal

property assets owned by the taxpayer at January I (assessment date) and reporting such taxable value
ürough a personal property t¿rx retum filed on May 15 subsequent to üe assessment date. The tot¿l
personal property tax rate in force at June 30, 2015 was 8.53 percent (of which taxpayers pay 8.33
percent and the remaining 0.20 percent is paid by the Depanment of Treasury, as a subsidy).

Real property taxes are assessed by CRIM. The assessment on real properry is made every January I
and is based on estimated current values of the property, deflated to 1957 market prices. The total
real property tax rate in force at June 30, 2015 rvas 9.53 percenl (of which 9.33 percent is paid by
taxpayers and the remaining 0.20 percent is also paid by the Department of Treasury, as a subsidy).

Residential real property occupied by its owner (not engaged in trade or business) is exempt from
property taxes only on the first S15,000 of the assessed value (at 1957 market prices). For exempl
amounts, the Department of Treasury assumes the payment of the basic tax (4.00 percent and 6.00
percent for pemonal and real properry. respectively), except for property assessed for less than S3,500
(at 1957 market prices), for which no payment is made by the Depafmenl ofTreasury.

According lo Law No. 81, included within the total personal and real property tax rates of 8.53

percent and 9.53 percent, respectively, Ihere is a levy of an annual special tax of 1.03 percent of the

assessed value of all real and personal properf)- not exonerated from taxation. This special tax is
levied by the Commonwealth ofPueno Rico but is collected by CRIM. Collections ofrhis special tax
are directly remitted by CRIM to the debt service fund ofthe Commonwealth of Puerto Rico, for the
payment ofthe general long-term debt ofthe state government.

In addition, included within the total personal and real property tax rates of 8.53 percent and 9.53
percent, respectively, there is a portion of the tax rate in the amount of 2.00 percent that is restricted
for the Municipality's debt service requirements of bonds. Such amounts are recorded in the
Municipality's debt service fund.

The portion of the property taxes recorded in the general fund is used to finance the operaling
activities of the Municipality, including the payment of: ( I ) the insurance premiums acquired through
negotiations with private insurances companies, (2) the Workers' compensation insurance premiums
provided by the State Insurance Fund Corporation (SIFC), a component unit of the Commonwealth,
(3) the monthly contributions to CRIM, which are statutorily required as üe Municipality's share of
CRIM's operating expenses and, (4) slatutory conlribulions to the Puerto Rico Health Services
Administration (PRHSA), as the Municipality's share of the cost of the public health insurance
coverage provided to qualiffing low-income citizens. The 0.20 percent of unrestricted personal and
real property taxes paid by the Puerlo Rico Department of Treasury as a subsidy is recorded in the
Municipality's general fund.
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The Additional Lottery System of the Commonwealth of Puerto Rico (the Additional Lottery) is an

operational unit reported as an enterprise fund in the Commonwealth of Puerto Rico's basic financial
statements, which currently operates several betting altematives to the citizens of Puerto Rico. The

Additional Lottery is required every fiscal year to distribule a porlion of ils excess of revenues over
expenses as follows:

. Thirty five percent of its net eamings (defined as lhe excess of revenues over expenses less an

amount earmarked for the Fund for Rent and Home Improvement Subsidy Program for the Low-
Income Qualifoing Elderly) is earmarked to the municipalities of the Commonwealth of Puerto

Rico, of which a maximum of $26 million, on an annual basis, is distributed to the Municipal
Equalization Fund held by CRIM to cover operating expenses and permanent improvements of
the municipalilies.

. An additional amounl not exceeding $16 million. on an annual basis, is disributed to the

Municipal Equalization Fund. provided it is within the thirty-five percent corresponding to the

municipalities of the Commonwealth of Puerto Rico. When the accumulated municipal
appropriations from the municipalities' Pueno Rico Health Reform are covered up to June 30,

1997, these resources will be assigned to PRHSA.

At June 30. 2015, property taxes receivable ¡ecorded in the debt service fund amounted to $28,618.

Accounts Payable and Accrued Liabilities

The composition of accounts payable and accrued liabilities balances at June 30, 2015 and for the

fiscal year Ihen ended is as follorvs:

vrior gov.rúm ért¡l fuDd3

D.ba
Gcn€r¡l sni(¡

Bqd C.pi..t Orh¿r
st rt iDp.ov.Eelt úo¡ñ¡jor

l,16 323

126.131

20.1i5 11t 158 s 1.751.9t2

Toaál

DscriDiion3: fund 6úd füñd bobd ñúd ñ¡tr& fü[d§
Accounts payable S 993.i45 - 146.313 20.155 171.758 S 1.631.781

A..tued li¿biliiies 126.l3l

Total S lXr.6%
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7. Intergovernmentel Receivables end Peyables

Intergovemmental receivables and payables recorded in the accompanying GWIS and GFFS are as

follows:
M¡jo¡ Oth.r lot l

govarnma¡tal govamñant l gotamma¡t¡l
furdr ñ¡ods ft¡rdr

sl¡fcr¡a¡l
ofD.l

poaitio¡

I nt¿rgoveñne nla¡ rece bable s :

Granb and contributions:

U.S. Dapa¡tment of Housing and Urban Devclopmen¡ $

Puerto Rico Departn€nr oftábor
Arcno RicÁ D€pa(ment ofEduca¡ion

Municipal RcvcnuÉ Colle.tion Center

Pu€rto Rico Tr.¿sury Dep¿Ímmt - gcneral fund

Muñicipalú of Sa¡ Juan

4,t33.627

88.958

146,816

121,299

4.67A

l,tó,81ó f 146,816

121299 121,299

96,t10 96,170

4,833§27 4,t33,627
88.958 tt,95t
4,67t 4,618

Tol¿l inErgovemmental rct€ivables

I n I e rgov mtv n tal W ob I e s :

Payroll withholdings (gencrál turd):

U.S. Dcpa¡trn.nt ofTrcssury - Intemal Rcvcnuc Serv¡cc

Puério Rico Treasury D€partm.it

Puerto Rico Child suppon Ag€ncy

Eñploye€s Association ofth€ Gov€rnmcnt of!h.
Common\¡Éalth of fuerto Rico

Employe€s Retirem€nt SlstEú ofthe Govemmcnt of
thc Common\¡r¡llh of Puerto Rico

Utilities (g€neral ñmd):

Purrto Rico Ele.tric Posrr Authority

Miscellaneous (g.n€ral ñ$d):
Puerto Rico Dcpartsñent oftábor

Ccncral Services Adminis¡rdion

Total intÉrgovcmmmtal payables

_______lÉq.2§t_ 5r9r.548 $ 5.29t 54ts 4-922-585

$ 60,107

7,?25

4,37t

20,t73

t 05,600

t0,435

6,269

304,619

3 60,307

7,725

4,318

20,813

t 05,600

! 0,435

6,269

304,619

@,307

7,725

4,37t

20,t73

r 05,600

10,435

6,269

304,619

$ 52023ó - 520236 $ 520.236

Intergovemmental receivables and payables represent the pending settlements of the aforementioned
intergovemmental transactions-

At June 30,2015, the eamed and unavailable intergovemmental grant and contribuüons reported in
the defened inflow of resources section in the accompanying balance sheet-general fun4 amounted o
§4,833,627.
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8. Inter-fund Transactions

The composition of inter-fund balances at June 30, 2015
follows:

and for the fiscal year then ended is as

Du. fron:

G€ñ€ral
fund

Otb€r

fu¡ds

Totrl
govcmmetrtal

funds

s 397

14.374

70.807

1.189.199

Ma.lor govemmen¡al liud§:

General tund

Capiial imp.ovem€nt bond ftmd

Head Sta¡t tund

Non-mator govenmenral fu nds:

Total

s-397
14.37.1

70.807

1.035.371 151.826

s l.truJ-r l54rr3

Tot¡l
Geo€rál govertrn€nt¿l
ftrnd fDrds

Major sovernmenral funds:

Debt service fund

Non-major governmenlal fil¡ds

s 58.749

190,000

ro¡ar __L_:1!t9_ ____l__l1glf_

The principal purposes of inter-fund receivables and payables are:

o Recognize in the general fund the outstanding balance ofthe loans granted to head start fund
(S70,807), capital improvement bond fund ($14,374), and non-major funds (§1,035,373) to
temporarily cover the payroll and other operating costs of several federally and state funded
programs-

. Recognize in the non-major funds the amounts due from general fund ($397), due from and
due to non-major funds ($153,826) mostly for errors in the disbursements and deposits
process.

The principal purpose ofinter-fund transfer is to:

¡ Make a non-routinary transfer of unrestricted cash from the general fund, amounting to
S58,749, to the debt service fund to pay debt interest.

o Make a non-routinary transfer of unrestricted cash surplus from the general fund, amounting
to $190,000. to the other nonmajor funds to cover capital improvements.

Inter-fund receivables and payables represent the pending settlements of the aforementioned transfers,
which are considered by management to be fully realizable at June 30, 2015.

s 58,749

Tráosfer to:
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MnücrPALrrY oF JUA\A DiAz,
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Notes to Basic Financial Statements

Fiscal Year Ended June 30. 2015

Capit¿l Assets

Capital assets activity for the fiscal year ended June 30. 2015:

a) Gove menlal Activities

Cost

besis ¡t
b€girnirg of
fisc¡l year Additions

Reductions/

RÉclxssilicrtions

Cost

b¡s¡s at
end of

fiscsl y€¡r

Cost basis:

Capital ass€ts, not being depreciated:

Land

Construction in progress

Total capial assets. nol being depreciated

Capital ass€ts, being depreciated:

Buildings, strucrures. and improvements

Inllastructlre
Machinal and equipment. and fumiture

and fixtures

Lic€nsed vehicles

Total capital assers. being depreciated

Total cost basis of capital assets

Accumulated depreciationl

Buildings, súuctures. and improvements

Infrastrucn¡re

Machi¡ery a¡d equipment, and

ñrniture and fixtures

Licensed vehicles

To¡al accumula1ed depreciation

Net capital assels. govemmental activities

$ 2.453.035
iq1s7?

3,M7,0t2

78,685,007

8.270,978

7.024.920

6.966,092

w.146.rr1
$103.rr400,

143.000 (593,977)

2.453.035

143,000

143,000 1593.9t7) 2,596,035

1.203.432

41,736

t94.868

| 85, r05

r fr5J4t
1J6&141

§ol q?? 80.482.4t6

8.312,714

7.219.788
'7,151,t97

593,977 103.166,115

$ r05,?6¿150

Accumulated
Dcpreci¡tion

et end of
fisc{l yerr Additions

Accuñulated
Depr€cietion

Reductions/ at €nd of
Reclassifrcrtions fiscrl yeár

$ 21,851,579

3.171.621

6,384.405

6.503,492

385 L.or?

2.7 53.460

406.691

312,t48

234,i13

$ 24.605,039

4.178.318

6,69'.7,253

6,731,86s

3,707.378 42,2t8,475

$65.482.912 (1-939-237\
__!___É11§..,É75_

The Municipality did not have complete and accurate accounting records of capital assets at June
30, 2015.

The infrastructure assets recorded in the accompanying statement of net position for $4,134,396
(net of accumulated depreciation of 54,178,318) do not include a substantial portion of the
Municipality's general infrastructure assets that were consfucted or acquired by the Municipality
irom 1980 tkough June 30, 2015.

65



MTNICIPALITY OF JUANA DÍAA
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Notes to Basic Financial Statements
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Several real properfy assels, including buildings, structures, land and land improvements have not
been recorded in the accompanying statement ofnet position at June 30, 2015.

Depreciation and amonization expense of govemmental activities for the fiscal year ended June

30, 2015 was charged to functions/programs in the accompanying statement of activities as

follows:

Functions/prog¡ams Amoünt

$ 90.748

24.725

995,661

13.040
2,583204

Total depreciation and a¡nolizalion cxpense

b) Business-tvpeActivities
Cost

brsis,l
b.gin¡ing of

§ 3,707,378

General govemment

Public safery

Economic a¡rd urba¡ delelopmen¡

Health and sanitation

Cülture- recreation, and education

B u si,'¿l s-Dp e ac dt ili e s :
Cost bas¡s:

Capital ass€ts. nol being deprecrated - land S 95,420

Cost

basb ¡t
.trd of

fisc¡l y.{r Incrclsc Dccrc¡s¿ lisctl ye¡r

- $ 95.420

Total capital assets, nolbeing depreciated 95,420 95,Q0

Capital asse¡s, being deprec iated:

Buildings, structures, and improvemenrs 3.4%.338 3.211 11,177) 3.498,312

Machinery and equipmena. and fumiture

and fixtures ll4,5ij 3,351 (3.491) 334.415

Tolál caprl¿l ¿lsers ben)e ¡leprecrat€d I 810 8ql ójó2 {4 óó& t3t118i
Tolalcosr basrsofc¿prhlasse6 $ ]rrojll ójó, (4óóS, 5 IrrS roi

Accümuláted Accuñulrt€d
d.pr€ciation Dcpreci¡tio¡
¡t b.ginn¡ng ,t etrd of
offisc¡ly.er Imrcase Decr.ásc lisc¡l ycrr

Accumulat€d depreciation and amonizátion:

Buildings, struclures. and improvements $ 2,761,082 149,116 - $ 2,944,198

Machrnery and equipment. and

tumiture and lixtures 2A4,956 11.883 (4,315) 291.524

Tolal accumulated depreciation 160,999 - 3,D2.722
1,076,018

Net capital assets, business-wpeacrivilie§ __§____!¡glll- _____!J!$lL __ll!L __$_______É9!.Í!L

Depreciation and amortization expense of business-type activities, amounting to $160,999 for the
fiscal year ended June 30, 2015, was charged to the public housing and welfare function in the
accompanying statemenr of activities.
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10. Unearned Revenues

At June 30, 2015, uneamed revenues recorded in the liabilities section of the GWFS and the
govefiirnental fund financial statements are as follows:

c€ftr¡l Hced surt
futrd rutrd

\onmrior
funds

Borrowitrgs

Additions

ToÍel
governmantal

Stat.m!trt
ofn.f

positio¡

11. Long-Term Obligations

The general long-term debt activity for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2015 is as follows:

Uneamed re,¡em¿s:
Municipallicenses
Irtergovemmental grants

and contributions
Total u¡eamed revenues

§ 1.701.586

261.793

$ 1,701.586 261.793

(R.st¡t.d)
B¡lanca at

b.gitrtritrg of
fi$rl v.er

t.70t.586 $ t.70t,586

566.6,t9 828.442
566.649 2,510,028 $ 2,530,028

Páyñ!úts
.trd

drdnriions

Brl¡ñr ¡t
.nd of

fiscal yrer

B¡lenc€
du. within
onc ycer

Gove tmental activities:

Bonds p¡y¡ble:
General obligalior¡ serial bonds

Public improvement serial bonds

Not.s p¿yeble:

Sec¡ion I0S loan guarantee notes
s€ries 201 5-A ( former senes 2004-A )

Puerto Rico Aqueducr and Serv€r Authority
installment payment plan

Municipal Revenue Collection Center:

láwNo 146 ofoctober I1.2001

Cleims &ndjudgemcnt§

Nct p.nsiotr liebility

Compens¡ted ¡bsences

To¡als for govemnenlal activiaies

Basin ess-i,pe tcfivili es :

\{orq¡gr notcs pey¡blcr

Section 515loan no 001

Section 515 loan no 002

Tolals for business-tlTe activities

$ 19.i64.000

773,000

4,9i0.000

r90,925

1.097.156

29.505,789 2.216.058

2.424.026 1,068,501

$ 58J043% 528r3r0

31.781.847

2376,818 1,000,000-l6o,rrrjs5 -3 4'or?Je

1.t05.000 1.107-000

221,000

150,000

3,884

1.097.156

$ r9.562.000

552,000

4,800,000

839,849

r 87,04 t

$ 2.167.000

237,OtX

200,000

408.940

4 252

839,849

1,015,71r

$ 1,045.787

l 12.925

5 r¡-sJD

35,553

3.212
$ 1.010,234 $ 18,504

109.713 3.548

$ tJrr,r4? -J 4r!-t38,765

Historically, the general fund has been used to liquidate the notes payable to CRIM, the Puerto Rico
Health Services Administration and the Puerto Rico Department of Treasury, claims and judgnents,
compensated absences, and any other Iong-term liabilities other than bonds.

828,142
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MU§CIPALITY OF JUA\A DÍAA
COV}TO\\TTALTH OF PUERTO ITCO
Notes to Basic Financial Statements

Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2015

Debl Limitafion

The Municipal Legislature is legally authorized to approve the contracting of debts of the

Municipality. Nevertheless. the laws and regulations ofthe Commonwealth of Puerto Rico also
provide that:

o Direct obligations ofthe Municipaliry (evidenced principally by bonds) are backed by the full
faith, credit and taxing power ofthe Municipality; and

. Direct obligations are not to be issued by the Municipality if the amount of the principal of,
and the interest on. such bonds and bond anticipation notes (and on all bonds and notes issued

thereafter) rvhich are payable in any fiscal year, together with any amount paid by the

Municipaliry in the preceding fiscal year on account of bonds or bond anticipation notes

guaranteed by the Municipality. exceed l0 percent ofthe total assessed value ofthe properry
located within the Municipality plus lhe balance of the ad valorem taxes in the debt service
fund, for bonds payable and bond anticipation notes to be repaid with the proceeds of
property taxes restricted for debt service.

Bonds Payable

The Municipaliry issues general obligation and public improvement serial bonds to finance the

acquisition. construction and improvement of capital ¿ssets, ¿rs well as, to finance certain

operating needs, including the payment to suppliers in certain circumstances.

The laws and regulations of the Commonwealth provide that the Municipality's public debt will
conslituIe a first claim on the available revenue oflhe Municipaliry. Public debt is composed of
bonds payable. The good faith, credit and taxing power of the Municipality are irrevocably
pledged for the prompt payment ofthe principal and interest of bonds.

As more fully described in Note 5. the Municipality levies an annual additional sPecial property
tax of I .75 percent of the assessed value of personal and real property. The proceeds of this
additional special tax are deposited in a sinking fund established at the Government Development
Bank for Puerto Rico, fiscal agent, whereby sufficient funds are set aside to redeem the bonds
payable of the Municipali§ in minimum annual and semiannual principal and interest payments.

The collections ofthis special tax are recorded in the Municipality's debt service fund.

As more fully described in Note 4, the Municipality impose a sales and uses laxes of one ( I )
percent, which are deposited in COFIM to guarantee the payment of long-term bonds. The excess

of the required deposit to the COFIM's sinking fund (.7% of the l% of the municipal sales and
use tax) will be transferred to the general fund ofthe Municipality.

b)
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For financial reporting purposes, the outstanding balances of bonds represent the total principal to

be repaid. Bonds payable is composed as follows at June 30, 2015:

Outstanding
balance

Gener¡l Obligation Bonds:

I996 serial bonds (face amount of $1,180,000) due in annual principal

installments ranging from $25,000 to $l 10,000; plus interests due in
semiannual installments at variable rares (6.58%o at June 30, 2015)
through July, l, 2016.

1999 serial bonds (face amount of $2,270,000) due in annual principal
installments ranging from S45,000 to $215,000; plus interests due in
semiannual installments at variable rafes (6.29yo at June 30, 2015)
through July, l, 2019.

2003 serial bonds (face amount S900,000) due in annual principal
inslallments ranging from 515,000 to $75,000; plus interests due in
semiannual installments at variable rates (4.80% at June 30, 2015)
through July l, 2026.

2003 serial bonds (face amount of $215,000) due in annual principal
installments ranging from §5,000 to $15,000; plus interests due in
semiannual installments at variable rates (4.80%o at June 30, 2015)
through July l, 2026.

2003 serial bonds (face amount of$1,510,000) due in annual principal
installments ranging from $25,000 to §120,000; plus interests due in
semiannual installments at va¡iable rates (4.53''/o at June 30, 2015)
through July l, 2027.

2004 serial bonds (face amount of $785,000) due in annual principal
installments ranging from $15,000 to 565,000; plus interests due in
semiannual installments at variable rutes (4.53%o at June 30, 2015)
through July 1,2027.

2005 serial bonds (face amount of $875,000) due in annual principal
inslallments ranging from $10,000 to $65,000; plus interests due in
semiannual installments at variable rates (4.53yo at June 30, 2015)
through July l, 2028.

2007 serial bonds (face amount ofS2,180,000) due in annual principal
installments ranging from $30,000 to §185,000; plus interests due in
semiannual installments at variable rates (l.52Yo at June 30, 2015)
through July l, 2031.

s 215.000

9 t0,000

6r5,000

145,000

1,070,000

555,000

640,000

69
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MLNCIPALITY OF JUA\A DÍAZ!
CoMvo§lEALTH OF PUERTO RICO
Notes to Basic Financial Statements

Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2015

2007 serial bonds (face amount of$1,9[0,000) due in annual principal
installments ranging irom $25,000 to 5160,000; plus interests due in
semiannual installments at variable rafes (l.52yo al June 30, 2015)
through July l, 203 l.

2008 serial bonds (face amount of S255,000) due in annual principal
installments ranging from 55,000 to 520,000; plus interests due in
semiannual installments at variable rates (l.52Yo at June 30, 2015)
through July l, 2032.

2008 serial bonds (face amount of $4,642,000) due in annual principal
installments ranging from $83,000 to $390,000: plus interests due in
semiannual installmenls at variable rafes (l.52yo at June 30, 2015)
through July l, 2032.

2010 serial bonds (face amount of$2,970,000) due in annual principal
installments ranging from $50,000 to $230,000; plus interests due in
semiannual installments at variable rates {6%o át June 30, 2015)

through July l, 2034.

201 1 serial bonds (face amount of $835,000) due in annual principal
installments ranging from $10,000 to $75,000; plus interests due in
semiannual installments at variable rafes (60/0 at June 30, 2015)
through July l, 2035.

201 I serial bonds (face amount of S1,060,000) due in annual principal
instállments ranging from S120,000 to $185,000; plus interests due in
semiannual installments at variable rates (6Yo at June 30, 2015)
through July l, 2017.

201I serial bonds (face amount of S640,000) due in annual principal
installments ranging from $75,000 to $110,000; plus interests due in
semiannual installments at variable rates (6.00% al June 30, 2015)
through July l, 2035.

201I serial bonds (face amount of $755,000) due in annual principal
in$allments ranging from $5,000 to $65,000; plus interests due in
semiannual installments at variable rates (6.00% at June 30, 2015)
through July l, 2017.

201I serial bonds (face amount of $875,000) due in annual principal
installments rarging from $10,000 to 575,000; plus interests due in
semiamual installments at variable rutes (6yo at June 30, 2015)
through July l, 2035.

0utstanding
balance

1,620,000

220.000

4,047,000

2,685,000

520,000

310,000

710,000

780,000

70
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2012 serial bonds (face amount of $135,000) due in annual principal
installments ranging from §5,000 to $10,000; plus interesB due in
semiannual installments at variable rafes (6yo at June 30, 2015)

through July l, 2036.

2013 serial bonds (face amount of $ó85,000) due in annual principal

installments ranging from $30,000 to $80.000; plus inlerests due in
semiannual installments at variable rates (6% at June 30, 2015)
through July l, 2025.

2014 serial bonds (face amount of $ 1,105,000) due an annual principal

lump sum of $1,1050,000; plus, interests due in semiannual

installments at variable rates (6% at June 30, 20l5) througlr August I l.
20t 5.

Total general obligation bonds

Public Imorovement Bonds:

1995 serial bonds (face amount of$1,758.000) due in annual principal

installments ranging from $44,000 to $142,000; plus interests due in

annual installments at variable rales (5.620/0 at June 30, 2015) lhrough
January l, 2016.

1995 serial bonds (face amount of $615,000) due in annual principal

installments ranging from $10,000 to $55,000; plus interests due in
semiannual installments at variable rutes (8.21y" at June 30, 2015)

through July 1, 2018.

1996 serial bonds (face amount of $835,000) due in annual principal

installments ranging from $18,000 to §58,000; plus interests due in
annual installments at fixed rate of4.50% through January l, 2019.

Total public improvemenl bonds

Outst¡nding
balance

r20,000

625_000

1,105,000

19,562,000

142,000

195,000

215,000

Total bonds payable

552,000

s 20,114,000

Variable interest rates on serial bonds are reviewed periodically by GDB and are based on the

fluctuation of GDB's weighted average rate for its commercial paper program. Under this
program, GDB issues commercial paper: (l) in the taxable and tax-exempt markets ofthe United
States of America, (2) in the Eurodollar market, and (3) to corporations having tar exemptions

under the Commonwealth's Industrial Incentives Acts and, which qualif for benefits provided by
the former Section 936 ofthe U.S. Internal Revenue Code.
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Interest expense on bonds payable amounted to S1,018.602 for the fiscal year ended June 10,

2015- Annual debt service requirements of maturiry for bonds payable are as follows:

Fiscal year
ending

June 30, Principal Interest

20t5-2016
2016-2017
20r 7-2018
2018-2019
2019-2020
2021-2025
2026-2030
2031-2035
2036-2040

Totals

1,227,940
1,137,82 r

1,060,021
996,284
227,002

3.812,901
1 ,484,709

463,479
750235,000

$ 20,1 14,000

s 2,404.000 $

1.232,000
1.200,000

968,000
925,000

4.400,000
5.0ó0,000
3.690,000

t0.4t 0.907

c) Section 108 Loan Guarantee Notes Payoble - Seúes 2015-A (fome¡ Series 2004-A)

On June 30, 2004, the Municipalify entered into a loan guarantee commitment of$5,500,000 with
the U.S. Department ofHousing and Urban Development (HUD) pursuant to an application under

Section 108 ofthe Housing and Community Development Act of 1974 (Section 108). Section 108

commitments are required to be supported by a credit subsidy appropriation pursuant to the

Federal Credit Reform Act of 1990 (Credit Reform Acl) and implementing guidance issued by
the U.S. Office of Management and Budget (OMB). Therefore, in connection with its guarantee

of these notes, HUD obligated appropriated funds to cover the credit subsidy cost of the loan
guamntee, as required under the Credit Reform Act. Under the Credit Reform Act procedures,

such funds are disbursed into a financing account as loan proceeds are disbursed by the Iender (a

comme¡cial bank). The financing account is in some respects equivalent to an intemal loss

reserve for the federal government. Each disbursement into the financing account is equal to the

loan advance times the credit subsidy rate, which is pan of HUD's budget approved by OMB and

the Congress.

The proceeds of $5,500,000 of the loan guarantee commitment are used by the Municipality to
finance the construction of the Fine Arts Center and to provide low-income communities with
another source of financing for the economic development, housing rehabilitation, public
facilities and large-scale phvsical development projects. The notes on the loan guarantee

commitment bear interest at various rates ranging from 3.50 percent to 6.70 percent. The
proceeds and uses of the loan guarantee commitment are accounted for in the Section 108 loan
guarantee, a non-major capital projects fund. The loan guarantee commitment is repaid with grant

awards received from the Community Development Block Grants - Entitlement Grants Program
(CDBG), administered by HUD. Principal and interest on these notes are accounted for in the
Section 108 loan guarantee fund, a non-major capital projects fund. At June 30, 2015, the
outstanding principal balance ofthe loan guarantee commitment amounted to S4,800,000.
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Interest expense on the Section 108 loan guarantee notes payable amounted to S282,373 for the

fiscal year ended June 30, 2015. The principal and interest maturities on the Section 108 loan

guarantee commitment are as follows:

Fiscal year
Ending
June 30, Principal Int€rest

2016
20t7
2018
2019
2020

2021-2025
Totals

s 200.000
i00.000
400.000
450_000
450.000

3,000,000

§ 64,282
93,990
90,885
86,032
78,810

199,690

s 4,800,000 s 613,689

d) Notes Payable lo Municipal Revenue Collectian Center

The Municipality had the following notes payables to Municipal Revenue Collection Center
(CRIM, by its Spanish acronym) at June 30, 2015:

. @_1Í!É - On September 24, 2002, CRIM, on behalf of the municipalities of Puerto

Rico, entered into a financing agreement with GDB pursuant to the provisions of Law No.
146 of October 11,2001, as amended (Law No. 146). The purpose of this financing
agreement was lo extinguish in advance certain bonds payable issued by Public Finance

Corporation (PFC). a subsidiary of the Govemment Development Bank for Puerto Rico,
rvhich rvere originally issued to pay certain property tax receivables owned by the

municipalities of Puerto Rico through 1996. which were acquired by PFC with recou¡se.

The original face amount ofthe note allocated by CRIM ro the Municipality was $736,727,
for a rcrm not exceeding 30 years. The note bears interest at 6.50 percent during its first five
years. Subsequently, from years 6 through 30, the loan shall bea¡ variable interest at a rate

of 125 points over the s-year LIBOR rate, which will be adjusted every five years. During
the first five years ofthe note, commenced on July 1,2003, the Municipality shall pay only
interest, except for propeny tax receivables collections related to the transact¡on explained
in the above paragraph, which will be applied as principal payment to reduce the debt
balance.

At the end ofthe first five years ofthe note, the repayment terms and conditions ofthe note
shall be renegotiated to allow the Municipality to pay the outstanding balance of the note in
equal installments of principal plus interest. though maturity. Interest payments on ¡his
financing agreement are accounled for in the general fund. The outstanding principal of the
note payable to CRIM amounted to §187,041, at June 30, 2015. Interest expense on these

notes amounted to $10,447 for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2015.
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e) CompensaledAbsences

At June .30, 2015, the govemment-wide statement of net position - governmental activities

includes a liability amounting $2.476,818, of which S1,538,172 represents accrued sick leave

benefits, and S938,646 represents accrued vacation benefits, representing the Municipality's
commilment to flrnd such costs from future operations.

Í) Mo gage Notes Payable - Section 515 (business-ftpe activifies)

The long-term debt of Villas del Parque (FmHA Project No. 63-033-0690660049) consist of two
mofigages notes, collateralized with land and buildings, payable to the U.S. Department of
Agriculture Rural Development in monthly installments of §8,880 and $1,094, respectively.
including interest at an annual rate of 8.00% and 10.00%, respectively, (reduced to 7.00yo and

9.00oá, respectively) through December 2031.

At June 30, 2015, the outstanding principal balance of the two mortgage notes amounted to

$1,010,234 and $109,713, respectively. The mortgages notes are subject to various positive.

negative and restrictive covenants that the Municipality has complied with at June 30, 2015.

Accrued interest payable on these notes amounted to $6,684 at June 30, 2015 which is recorded

as part of business-type activities in the accompanying statement ofnet position and the statement

of net position - proprietary fund. lnterest expense on these notes amounted to $80,934 for the

fiscal year ended June 30, 2015, which is recorded in the accompanying statement of activities
and the stalement ofrevenues, expenses and changes in fund net position - proprietary fund.

Employees' Retirement Systems

a) General Information about the Retirement Plan

As ofJune 30. 2015, regular employees ofthe Municipaliry contribute to a cost-sharing multiple
employer hybrid defined benefit and defined contribution retirement plan administered by the

Employee's Retirement System of the Govemment of Pueno Rico and its Instrumentalities
(ERS). ERS covers all regular full-time public employees working for the central govemment, the

municipalities of Puerto Rico and certain public corporations not having their own retirement
systems. The system provides retirement pensions, death, and disability benefits. Retirement
benefits depend upon age at retirement and number of years of credited service. Benefits vest

aÍler ten years of plan participation. The pension plan operates under Act No. 447 of May 15.

1951, as amended, Act No. 305 of September 24, 1999 (System 2000 Reform) and Act No. 3 of
April 4, 2013.

Under Act 447, retirement benefits were determined by the application of stipulated benefit ratios

to the member's average compensation. Average compensalion was computed based on the
highest 36 months of compensation recognized by ERS. The annuity, for which a plan member
was eligible, was limited to a minimum of $200 per month and a maximum of 75olo of the average

compensation. For active participants of the contributory defined benefit programs under Act No.
447, all retirement benefits accrued through June 30,2013 were frozen. Thereafte¡ all future
benefits will accrue under the hybrid pension plan established by Act No. 3. Participants will
receive a pension at retirement age equivalent to what they had accrued under Acf 447 up to June

30, 2013. and a supplemental annuiry corresponding to contributions made after July 1, 2013.
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Participants under the defined contribution plan established by Reform System 2000 will receive

a lifetime annuity calculated at retirement based on a factor thal will incorporate the individual's
life expectancy and a rate of return. New participants under the hybrid plan established by Act
No. 3 will receive a lifetime annuity based on the accumulated balance of rheir individual
accounts (employees' contributions plus a return on investment). The minimum monthly pension

for current retirees is $500.

Disability benefits previously provided by Act No. ,147 and Reform System 2000 were eliminated
by Act No. 3 and substituted for a mandatory disability insurance policy. Beginning July l, 2013,

each employee must contribute to this insurance plan .25Yo of his or her monthly salary, up to a

monthly marimum of $5,000. Therefore, the maximum monthly employee contribution will be

Sl2.s0 (§s,000 x.25%).

Beginning July l, 2013, all employers must contribute 12-27 5yo of eñployee con[ibution with an

additional l% annually up to June 30, 2016; after July l, 2016, an additional 1.25olo annually for
each of the five yean thereafter, reaching an aggregate contribution rute of 20.525o/o effective
July l, 2020. For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2015, the employe¡ contribution rate was

13.2'1syo and fhe lotal required annual contribution amounted to $381,843.

As required by Act 32 of June 25, 2013, the Additional Uniform Coniribution (AUC) was

established for the purpose of solving the cash flow deficit of the System. For each fiscal year,

beginning on July 1,2013, the ERS rvill: l) determine the portion ofthe AUC attributable to each

participating employer based on lhe perceffage each employer's contributions represent of the

total employer contributions established for that fiscal year; and 2) send to the director of the P.R.

Office of Managemenl and Budget (OMB) and to each public corporation and municipality
whose employees are covered by this Act, a certification of the AUC owed by each employer.
The Municipality's AUC for the fiscal yer 2014-15, amounted to §l I1,817, of which §l I1,817
(100%) was subsidized by the OMB.

b) Pension Liabilities, Pension Expense, and Defened OatJlows/Inllows of Resources Relafed to
Pensions

As per the requirements ofthe GASB Statements No. 67 and 68, ESR is required, as the pension

plan's administrator. to provide to each of its participating employers audiled actuarial and

financial information used in the calculation oftheir proportionate share ofthe plan's net pension

liability, pension expense and deferred oufflows/inflows of resources related to pensions as ofthe
measurement date. For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2015, the measurement date is June 30.
2014. In addition, the ESR has to provide all the required actuarial and histo¡ical data to be

reported in the notes to the financial statements of the Municipality and as Required
Supplementary Information (RSI).

However, the ESR has not provided to the Municipality the audited actuarial and financial
information; instead provided unaudi¡ed actuarial and financial information necessary for the
proper recognition and reponing of its net pension liability as of June 30, 2015, and therefore, the
Municipaliry complied with the accounting and financial reporting requiremenls for pensions that
are provided to the employees of state and local govemmental employers through pension plans

trusts, as required by the criteria set forth in the GASB Statement No. 68.
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The Retirement Systems issue financial reports, which are publicly available and include the basic

financial statements. the required trend information, and any other required supplementary

information. These repons may be obtained by *'rinen requesl to Ihe Administration at PO Box
42003. Minillas Station. San Juan, P.R. 00940.

13. Postemployment Benefits

In addition to the pension benefits described in note 5, the Municipality is required to cover annually
the 3%o increase in the retirement plan of its retired employees, as required by Commonwealth's laws.

Also, the Municipality is required to finance costs related to the application of certain "Special Laws"
issued by the Commonwealth Govemmen¡. Those Special Laws granted increases in pensions and

other benefits to retired employees of the Municipality such as medicines bonus, Ch¡istmas bonuses

and death benefits. However. beginning July l, 2013, Act No. 3 of 2013 eliminated all Special Law
benefits to future retirees.

For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2015. the costs related to these post-employment benefits amounted
to $156,763, ofrvhich §108,541 was subsidized by OMB. These benefits are recorded as expenditures
in the general fund.

14. Landlill Closure and Postclosure Care Costs Obligations

The Municipalit¡ owns a municipal solid waste landfill. However, the Municipality has not adopted

the required provisions of Statement No. 18, Accounting for Municipal Solid l|aste Landfill Closure
and Postck¡sure Care Cos,s. issued by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB No.
l8) and the regulations set forlh by the U.S. Environment Protection Agency (EPA) in its "Solid
Waste Disposal Facility Criteria", issued on October 9, 1991. According to these standard and

regulations. the Municipality is required to place a final cover on the Municipality's solid waste

landfill site rvhen it stops accepting waste. and to perform certain maintenance and monitoring
functions at the site for 30 years after closure. The Municipality has not performed an independent
study of the activities that need to be implemented at the Municipality's solid waste landfill to
guarantee the maximum yield of available space and to comply with applicable state and federal
regulations and, accordingly, the accompanying statement of net position does not include the
required liability for closure and postclosure care costs of the solid x,aste landfill using current costs

allocated based on the actual landfill capacity used at June 30,2015.

15, Commitments, Contingencies end Utrcertainties

Claims ¡nd Judqments

The Municipality is defendant in various legal proceedings pert¿ining to malters incidental to the
performance of routine governmental operations, including allegations of improper actions. and other
legal matters that arise in the ordinary course of the Municipaliry's activi¡ies. Under Act No. 104 of
June 25, 1955, as amended, persons are allowed to sue the Municipaliry only for causes ofactions set

forth in said Act Io a maximum amount of$75,000 or $150,000 if it involves actions for damages to
more than one person or rvhere a single injured part_v is entitled to several causes of action. Under
certain circumstances, as provided in Act No. 9 ofNovember 26, 1975, as amended, the Municipality
may provide its officers and employees with legal representation, as well as assume the payment of
any judgment that may be entered against them. The¡e is no limitation on the payment of such
judgment.
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With respects to another pending or threatened litigation, the Municipality has reported no liabilities
as ofJune 30, 2015. Management believes, based on the advice ofthe legal counsel, thal the potential

claims against the Municipality not covered by insurance will not materially affect the financial
resources for its payment.

Construction Commitments

The Municipality had commitments at June 30, 2015 by approximately $1,550,000 for the

construction, improvements, or renovation of several buildings and infrasÍucture capital assets.

Encumbrances

The Municipality has recorded, outstanding encumbrances amounting to $179,266 in the general

fund at June 30, 2015. The Municipality intends to honor these encumbrances, which will continue
to be liquidated under the current year's budget during a lapse period that extends into the subsequent

fiscal year.

Federal Financiallv Assisted Proqrams

The Municipality receives financial assistance from the federal government in the form of grants and

entitlements. Receipts ofgrants are generally conditioned upon compliance with terms and conditions
of the grant agreements and applicable federal law and regulations, including the expenditure of
resources for eligible purposes. Substantially all grants are subject to audit under Circular A-133 of
the Office of Management and Budget of the United States of America (OMB Circular A-133).
Disallowance as a result ofthese audits may become liabilities ofthe Municipaliry

Manaqement Aereement of Villas del Paroue (FmHA Proiect No. 63-033-0690660049)

The Municipality maintains entered into a management agreement with GR Management Corp., for
the adminisÍation of Villas del Parque (FmHA Project No. 63-033-0690660049). Management fees

amounted io $46,368 for the fiscal year ended June 30. 201 5 and consist of a monthly fixed payment

established in the Administrative Notice PR AN No. 125 (Inst. 1930-C).

This Space Has Been Leff Blank Intenlionally
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1ó, Fund Balance (Deficit)

As ofJune 30,2015, fund balance (deficit) is comprised ofthe following:

D.br C.pir¡l O.ber
G.rer¡l Slrvicc lmprov.o.rt ¡oim.jor

c€ner¿l goveñm€n¡
Uóa¡ ánd economic d€velopm€nt
Public housing .¡d 1relfare

Culture a¡d r¿creatio¡ and €ducalion
Capi¡al ouilays
D€bl sen'ic€

cener¿l gov€ment
Urban and cconomic d€v€lopm.nt
H€ahh ánd sannaion

Public safs§
Public housing ard welfare
Culorre and recreaüon a¡d cducation
Capitál oudays

To¡al ñmd bala¡ces {d€6ci¡)

7.923 6.70.{
4ó6,8Et
I18,m7
i ró,205

3J91-

85,4t8
187,121
il,E59

287,45.1
9l.llt

l-739.838
r.025.02r

14.617
4óó.881
I t 8,807
5ró,205

t.028.8t5
1.739.838

lJ7.ó02
2t 9,806

68,529
6.6tt
1.426

295,161
134,t50
s77,66)

s 5,347,197

72.164
32,38:
t6.ó70
ó.óE6
t.4ló
'7,907

4t,0:9
577,62

s 764,85 | t,7ls,8l8 r.025.021 t,8t7,ó87

17. Accounting Changes and Rest¡t€ments

During fiscal year ended June 30. 2015. the Municipality implemented the GASB Statement No. 68,
Accounting and Financiol Reporting for Pensions; an amendment of GASB Statement No. 27. This
Statement establishes standards for measuring and recognizing liabili¡ies, asses. deferred outflows of
resources and defened inflows of resources, and expense/expenditures for pensions provided to
employees of the primary government. It requires the Municipaliry to record the Municipal§'s
proportionate share ofthe net pension liability in the govemment-wide financial statements.

GASB Statement No. 68 was implemented simultaneously with the provisions of GASB Statement
No. 7l- Pension Transilion for Conlribulions Made Subsequent to the Measurement Dale: and
amerulment of GASB Statemen ¡r'o. ó8. This standard allowed govemments to record all beginning
deferred inflows and deferred outflows associated with the pension. If all beginning balances could
not have identified practically, governments should only report defened oufflows for its pension

contributions, if any, made subsequent to lhe me¿surement date of the beginning net pension liability
but before the stan of the government's fiscal year. The Municipality implemented the Standard by
recognizing only the employer contributions made between the measuremenl date and before the stal
of the govemment's fi scal year.
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As a result of the implementing these new st¿ndards, numerous changes were made to beginning
balances. The following schedule rcconciles the total net position balance at June 30, 2014, as

previously reported by the Municipality, to the beginning net position, as restated in the

accompanying GWIS:

Nct position -
govcrtrDetrl¡l

activitics

$ 82,225,2ú

Assels:

As previously Bpoñed in the audited furancial sarements ar June 30, 2014

Add:/(deduct): prio¡-period adjustnerts

Total net assets at June 30, 2014. as .estated

Defened ou$lotes of ¡esources:

As previously reported in the audited finarcial stateme¡ts at June 30, 2014

Add:(deduct): prior-period adjusrñents

Toral deferrcd outflows ofresources at June 30, 2014, as resrated

Liabilili¿s:

As previously rcpoled in rhe audited financial sraÉmenls at June i0, 2014

Add:(deduct)i prior-period adjusÍn€n¡s

Total liabilities at Jutte 30, 2014, as rcstared

Defe ed irrÍolts of ¡esourcet:

As prcviously reporred in the a¡¡dited financial sfatemens ar Iune 30, 2014

Add:(deducr): prior-period adjusüerts

Toral defer¡ed inflows of rcsources al Ju¡¡e 30. 20 I 4, ¿s rcsbred

__!__q2¿42!q_

$-
377,05t

¡ l1z,0r

$ 34,894,452

29,505,789

_)__gjN2!_

Nd posilion:

As previously rcported in the audited financial statements al June 30. 2014 $ 47,330,74E

Add:(deduct): prior-period adjustments 29,128.738

Totalnet position at Juíe 30,2014, as restáted $ 18,202,010

1& Subsequent Events

a) Transition to Value Added T¡¡

On May 29, 2015, the Commonwealth of Puerto Rico enacted Acr 72-2015 ("Act 72"), which,
among other things, increased the sales and use tax ("SUT") by 4.5%, in addition to the then-
applicable 7% SUT, and provided for a transilion to a value added tax ("VAT"), subject to certain
conditions.
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Since July l, 2015. transactions subject fo rhe lyo SUT a¡e now subject 1o an aggregafe I l.5o/o

SUT (10.5%. of which 0.5% goes to a special fund for the benefit ofthe municipalities, and I o/o

separately collected by the municipalities). The transition from the SUT to the VAT is scheduled

for March 31. 2016; Act 72 permits the Secretary of Treasury to extend the implementation date

for up to 60 days.

In addition, since October 1,2015 and until March 31,2016, taxable business to business

transactions are subject to an aggregate I 1.5% SUT and certain business to business services and

designated professional services that rvere previously exempt from SUT are subject to a
Commonwealth SUT of 4% (with no municipal SUT applying to these services).

After March 31, 2016 (or the extended implementation date for the VAT al the disoetion ofthe
Secretary of Treasury), all Úansactions subject to the SUT will be subject to a new aggregate

VAT of 10.5% plus a l% municipal SUT. The new VAT will also apply to the introduction into
Puerto Rico oftaxable articles and on taxable transactions which relate to the sale in Puerto fuco
of goods and services by a merchant, the rendering of a service by a nonresident to a person in
Pueno Rico. and combined transactions.

Act No. 72 exempted the follorving services, among other exemptions. from the business to
business SUT: (i) services offered by the Commonwealth govemment and instrumentalities, (ii)
education, (iii) interest and other financing charges. (iv) insurance. (v) health and hospital
services. and (vi) services offered by merchants with a volume of business not exceeding

ss0,000.

On September i0, 2015, the Governor of Puefio Rico signed inlo law Act 159-2015, which
expanded the services exempt from the 4% SUT to include certain legal services, advertising
services. services rendered to a person engaged exclusively in the storage or handling of fuel in a
foreign trade zone. services rendered to bona fide farmers, designated professional services

rendered to labor unions, ard ocean, air and ground ¡ransportation of goods, among other
services.

b) Puerto Rico Fiscal and F,conomic Growth Plan

On June 29, 2015, the Governor of Puerto Rico created the Puerto Rico Fiscal and Economic
Recovery Working Group (the "Working Group") to evaluate the measures necessary to address

the fiscal crisis of the Commonwealth. including lhe measures recommended in the Krueger
Report. The Working Group was responsible for developing and recommending to the Govemor
of Puerto Rico the Puerto Rico Fiscal and Economic Growrh Plan (the -FEGP"). The FEPG was

released on September 8, 2015 and updated on January 18. 2016, and propose the implementation
of the following measures, wirhin others: l) Labor Reform. 2) Enerry Rates Stabilization, 3)
Corporate Taxes Fostering Growth, 4) Reduction of the Cost of Doing Business in Puerto Rico,
5) Investment in Infraslructure, 6) Transition to the Value Added Tax System, 7) Improving
Supervision and Monitoring of Taxpayers, 8) Reduction in Govemmental Operational Costs, 9)
Reduction of Government Subsidies. l0) Downsizing of¡he Public Education System, ll) Cost
Control of the Commonwealth's Health Program. l2) Promotion of Public-Private Partnerships.
13) Installalion of New Accounting Systems, 14) Centralization of the Depanment of the
Treasury's Functions, l5) Bettermenl ofthe Fiscal and Economic Decision Making Systems. and
l6) Enactmen¡ ofNew Budgetary Rules and Creation ofa Fiscal Oversight Board.
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c) New Guidelines for the Calculation ofthe Contribution In Lieu ofTaxes ("CELI")

On October 16, 2015, the Puerto Rico Commission of Enerry ('CEPR") approved the new
guidelines for the energetic subsidy (contribution) received by the 78 municipalities of the

Commonwealth from the Puerto Rico Electric Power Authoriry (PREPA) in lieu of the payment

of municipal license taxes C'CELI). These guidelines limit to the subsidy to be received by the

municipalities, by establishing a maximum threshold amount ofenerry consumption charges that
can be incurred by the municipalities. Any charges in excess of that maximum threshold will be

paid by the municipalities based on the prevailing service rates in effect during the billing period.

If the municipalities do not pay the amounts billed, they are subject to a possible service

cancellation by the PREPA.

In addition to these enerry consumption limits, the CELI will not be applicable to every
municipal property or insr¿llation. lt will only be available for those facilities used for the

rendering of not-for-profit services to ¡he community; for corporations thar provide public health

services; and for the consumption charges incurred by the public lighting infrastructure. Those

municipal installations and properties used for for-profit activities or occupied by not-for-profit
entities that do not provide municipal services or by persons and businesses that are not municipal
entilies arc excluded from the CELI subsidy.

Finally, the guidelines require that the municipalities implement efficiency and conservation
measures for a reduction of I 5o/o in the enerry consumption to be incurred in the next three fiscal
years. All of these requirements are effective beginning November 16, 2015 (fiscal year 2015-
l6).

Obam¡ Administration's Proposal to Help Puerto Rico Solve its Economic and Fiscal Crisis

On October 21, 2015, the Obama Administration released a proposal to address Puerto Rico's
urgent fiscal crisis. The proposal makes the following recommendations: (i) Congress should

extend Chapter 9 of the U.S. Bankuptcy Code to Puerto Rico, and also provide a broader legal

framework to allow for a comprehensive restructuring of Puerto fuco's liabilities, (ii) Congress

should provide independent fiscal oversight to ensure Puerto Rico adheres to its recovery plan

and fully implements proposed reforms, (iii) Congress should provide a long-term solution to
Puerto Rico's historically inadequate Medicaid freatmenl, and (iv) Congress should extend to
Puerto Rico cenain proven measures to reward work and stimulate growth, such as lhe Earned
Income Tax Cred¡I. Both houses of U.S. Congress have conducted hearings on Puerto Rico's
fiscal crisis and are evaluating various alternatives that include establishing a fiscal oversight
board and providing a Commonwealth-wide restructuring regime.

Voluntary Pre-Retirement Program

On December 8,2015, the Commonwealth ofPueno Rico enacted the Act No. 2l l-2015 to create
a Voluntary Pre-retirement Program. This Act, among other provisions, establishes that
employees who started contributing to the ERS before April I, 1990 with at least 20 years of
service may be eligible to paficipate in the program. Those who participate in the program would
be paíd 50% of their average salary (except police officers, which would be paid 60%). These
payments will be made until the employee becomes eligible to receive payments from the ERS.
Other benefits would include the payment ofthe participant's health care plan during the first two
years ofthe program.

d)

e)

8l
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Budgcted.mounts
Actu¡l.mourts Vsri¡rc.üth

(budgct¡ry iDelbudget-
b&sb) ovcr (undcr)Rcvcnucs:

Propery- taxes
Munhipal liceñse ta\es
Sales ta\es
Comtnrctbn excise taxes
Iñergoveñunental grants aryi contribtf k)ns

Ifferest on deposits
Charges for services
Misce llaneous

Totalrevenues

Expc ndit¡¡rc s :

CÉneral goveñment
Urban and ecorDmb deveklpmeñ
Health a¡d sanitation
Publ¡ safety
Public hoNing and welfa¡e
Cuhure. recreatL)n and edrrcatkrn
Capirál outlays

Total expendin¡¡es

Excess (def¡ciency) of revenues over

expendin¡res and encurnbrances

Oahcr francing sou¡las (uses):
Prrreed from deb! issuance

t6.6ó0.71l 15.i63.554 14.716,0+1 U7,{7

(997.151) 100,m0 884,608 7U,&a

t,097, t 57

§ 15.ó00,655

210018
2,044,U9

_l__!4iié2,

§ 14.774,7%

(t79.2f6)
645,581

190,000
1242,783

$ róó71,894

2,M72AO
t.9cÁ276

565.750
5.455.689

86,500
480.000
3? 1.000

§ 4.72&0i9
2,ú7,280
1.9o9.216

565.?50
5.455.ó89

86.500
480.000

s 3.958.685
2277,133
t.746.194
l. t5l,7l9
s580229

48,m9
284914
553,172

r 5,600,655

5.713.964
4,137,458
1.769. t38
t.7 t3,42t

267 316
921.472
127 218

$ (16§374\
210153

(ró3,082)
585,9ó9
t2454o
(38fel)

( r 95,086)

7355.534
44t9.t76
r.836.062
t,797.913

303.348
q)5.6t8
43_m0

6.334.723

4)tL9t1
t.819.489
1,143,563

276.910
940.415
t35.4 t7

______19$»L

5ó0,759
175159
50J51
30JA
9ó54

13,003

8,139

Transfer out to other golemmental limds ( 1m.000) ( 100.m0) (58,749) 41,251

Total other fmancing sou¡ces (uses) 991.L57 ( 100,m0) (58,749) 41251

Nca ch¡ngc in ñrnd b¡l¡nc€ (defcit) $-$-$825,859$825,85e
Rcconcili¡tion of dift rcpces:

Sources/inflows of finarEial resources:
Actual amounts (budgetar, basis) "available for appropriatixs"
from the budgeiary comparison schedule
Differences - budgetary basis to GAAP:

Differerrces in bases of accoúting:
GAAP adjl.§tñent to revenues
Non-budgeted proceed from debr Lssuance

Total revenues and Earsfer in from other ñ¡rds as reported on the
revenLEs. expeñditures a¡d changes in l'und bahnces

Uses/or¡rfloivs of t_rf|ancial resources:
Actual amounts (budgetarj basb) 'lotalcharges to appropriatiors"
from the budgetary comporison schedule (inch¡ding rraisfer out to otlPr fiüds)
Differences - budgerary basis to GAAP:

Tirning differences:
Cu¡rent year encumbrances recorded as expenditures for budgetary purposes

Prbr year encumbrances recorded as erpendirures for GAAP purposes

Entit, dffererices:
Non-budgeted transfers to other fi¡rds
Non-hdgered er?endirures

Total expenditures and lransfer out to olher fimds as reported on tlre

slatement ofrevenr.Es. expeñdin¡¡es and cha¡ges in ñ¡rd bahnces
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A. Budgetary Control

The Municipality's annual budget is prepared on the budgerary basis of accounting which is

not in accordance with GAAP, and represens depafimental approprialions recommended by
the Mayor and approved by the Municipal Legislature prior to the beginning of the fiscal
year. Amendments to the budget require the approval of the Municipal Legislature.
Transfers of appropriations within the budget, known as Mayor's Resolutions, do not require
the approval of the Municipal Legislature.

The Municipality prepares is annual budget including the operations ofthe general fund.

For budgetary purposes, encumbrance accounting is used. The encumbrances (i.e., purchase

orders, contracts) are considered expenditures when incurred- For GAAP reporting purposes,

encumbrances outstanding at year+nd are reported as reservations of fund balances and do
not constitute expenditures or liabilities because the commitments will be honored during the

subsequent year.

The unencumbered balance of any appropriation at the end ofthe fiscal year will lapse at the
end of such fiscal year. Other appropriations, mainly capital project appropriations, are

continuing accounts for which the Municipal Legislature has authorized that an unspent

balance from the prior year be carried forward and made available for current spending.

The annual budget as presented in the Budgetary Comparison Schedule-General Fund is the

budget ordinance at June 30, 2015 representing the original budget, and. supplemental

appropriations for the year ended June 30, 2015.
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MUMCIPALTry OF JUANA DÍAZ
Schedule ofthe Municipality's Proportionate Share ofthe Net Pension Liability

Puerto Rico Govemment Employees Retirement System - Municipality's Employees Only
Last l0 Fiscal Yea¡s

2015

Muricipalily's proportion ofthe nel pension liability 0.105620/o

Mudcipaliry's proporionate share ofthe ner pens¡on liab¡lity $ 58¿762

Muricbaliry's covered-employee payroll $ 3.790,354

M unichality's p¡oportionare shrrc ofthe rct pension liability as a percentage of
the covered-emp byee payroll l53T/o

Phn l'rduciary nel position as a percenlage ofth€ tolal pers¡on liability

Notes to Schedule:

1) The Puerto Rico Govemment Employees Retirement Syslem includes the Municipality in
its definition of municipal employees.

2) Per GASB Statement No. 68, govemments should prcsent information for those yea¡s for
which information is available. If information is not available, the govemment may
implement them prospectively.
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COMMO¡IWI'AL-TH OF PI]ERTO IUCO
MUNICIPALITY OF JUANA DÍAZ

Schedule of the Municipality's Contributions
Cost-Sharing Multiple Employer Defined Benefit Pension Plans - Employer Contributions
Puerto Rico Govemment Employees Retirement System - Municipality's Employees Only

Last l0 Fiscal Years

Contr¿crually requi¡ed c¡ntnlúion $ 541,073

Conlributions in relalion to the contradually required contribution (541,073)

Contribution de¡rciency (el<crss) _!____----:-

Munbipality's covered-empb¡.ee payroll $ 3,790,354

Municipalfy's contributions as a percentage of the cove.ed-€mployee pay roll 14.215Vr

Notes to Schedule:

1) The Puerto Rico Govemmenl Employees Retirement System includes the Mmicipality in
its definition of municipal employees.

2) Per GASB Stat€ment No. 68, govemments should present information for those years for
which information is available. If information is not available, the govemment may
implement them prospectively.
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Section 8 Housing Choice Voucher Program
Financial Data Schedule

Fiscal Year Ended June 30,2015
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CO!IIIONWEALTH OF PI,'ERTO RICO
MUUCIPALITY OF JUANA Di.{Z

Financial Data Schedule
Year Ended June 30, 2015

Li¡e Iacm
No-

Housing Choit.
Vouchcrs

Dcscripaion (CFDA NO 14.871)

7060tI{10

ro@20
706l)0431

70600

7t4tm{10

]l40c020

7tlll)0

Tlslm
72flX1.010

@
72mO

70000

91I00

9lt)0
91600

91000

92100

92300

92$0

96210

96900

97mO

973tm{5{)

97300

97350

974/,,t

90000

lo{mo

Incoma Sf¡tamcnt

Housing assistance payments

Ongoing administrative fees earned

FSS Coordinamr

HUD PHA op.r¡tirg gra¡¿3

Housing Assistance Payment

Adñinistrative Fee

Fnud ircovary

Other rE\€nue

Housing Assistance Payme

Administratirc F€e

Invcsamctrt incomc - restricted

Tot.l R.venu.

Administrative sala¡ies

Employee benefi t connibutions - administrative

Oflica Expenses

Tot¡l Op.i.tir¡g--{dñiristr¡tivc

Te¡a¡t services - sala¡ies

Emplolee benefit contribul¡ons - tenanl s€rvices

Tot¡l Op.r¡aing-Tetrsnts

Compensated absences

Tot¡l Opcr.tirg Erpcnses

E¡ccss Rcvcnuc Over Opcr¡ti¡g Erpattac3

All Other

Housing ¡!sist¡nc. p¡lmanti

HAP Porrrbili§-¡n

Depreciation expense

Toa.l Expctri.i

Erc.ss (D.ñcicncy) ofRevenue Ovcr (Undcr) Erpcns.s

§ 562,999

43.474

21,622

668,(D5

2,3E2

16ó433

53

53

836,963

l,l9l
I l9t

72,432

17,328

t7,to?

106,867

19,974

1,644

21,42

223

l2a,7l2

7ffi¿sr

6t9,944

619,944

rss'3rs

999

9M,970

90
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COMMOIiVEALTH OF PUERTO RICO
MI}NICIPALITY OF JUANA DIAZ

Financial Data Schedule
Year Ended June 30, 2015

Lire ll.m
No.

Itl
ll3
100

124

l2E

l2E.l

r20

150

164

r66

r60

lE0

tm

322

333

310

351

354

35()

300

tl8.l
5l t.l
5r2.1

513

600

Housing Choic.
Vouchcr§

De.riptior (CED¿IIO !4.821L

Er!rE§§.§h!!!
Cash-unrcst icted

Cashrther restricred

Tot¡l C.!h

Account receivable - other govemment

Fraud rccovery

Alloi+znce for doubtful accouns - fraud

Tot¡l rrc.iv¡b16, ¡cl of ¡llos¡¡cc for doubtfúl ¡ccouDl§

Tot¡l CuÍcrt Ass.ti

Furñiturc. equipment artd machinery - administration

Accumulaled deprcciation

Tot l capit¡l rsscts, tr.t of.ccumulatcd dcprcci¡tio¡

Toa¡l Notr{[rrc¡t Asrct!

Tot¡l A$.ts

Accrued compensated absences - cunent portion

Accounts payable - other goveÍunent

Tot l Curlrna Li¡biliti.3

Non-current liabilities - other

Accrued compensated absences- Non-cu¡rcnt

Tottl Nor{urrcra li¡biliti.s

Tot¡l Li¡biliti.s

Invested in cápital sssets' net ofrclatcd debl

Resl¡icted Net Assets

UffEstrict€d Net Assets

Tot¡l Equity/N.t Arscts

Tot¡l Li¡biliaics ¡¡d Eqoity/Nct rsscas

8,732

84,74

93,172

5,13ó

ll8

5¿54

98,726

70,218

(58,353)

I1,865

I1,865

lt0,59t

13,317

E,462

2t,719

6ó.393

18,856

E5,249

t07,028

ll,865

tt,,ltt7

126,7091

3,563

I10,591

89



COMMONWEALTH OF I}T]ERTO RICO
MUNTCIPALITY OF JUANA Di.{Z

Financial Data Schedule
Yea¡ Ended June 30,2015

Linc Itcm

@0¡!s
7060GO20

7t)ó0tl-03r

7(b00

@!0
4l00J2s

7t400

7tslto

22@44
72000{20

72000

7fino

9l100

9rflo
9r600

9r000

92100

92300

92500

962r0

969110

97m0

923@J§0

97300

97350

97.ú00

90000

t 0000

Hoüsiug Choicc
Vouchar§

D.scriptio¡ (CFDA No 14.871)

I@.S!4!em!4!

Housing assistance payments

Ongoing administrat¡ve fees ea¡ned

FSS Coordirator

HIID PHA opcr¡airg gr¡Dtr

Housing Assista¡ce Payment

Administralive Fe€

Fr¡úd rccovary

Other revenue

Housing Assistance Payment

Administrative Fee

Irvcstmena i[corrc - Estricted

Totd RavaDuc

Adminisrative sala¡ies

Eñployee benefil c¡ntributions - adm¡nisrralive

OIIic€ Expenses

Tot¡l Op.rrting-Admin¡srrÍivc

Tenadt services - salaries

Employee benefil contributions - renaíl s€rv¡ces

Tot.l Opcr¡titrg-Tc¡¡nt3

Compensated abs€ric€s

Tot¡l Opcr¡tirg §rpcnsas

E¡cc$r Rcvanua Ovcr Opcr¡tirg E¡pars€s

All other

Ilousirg ¡ssisl¡rcc p¡ym.rts

ILAP Port¡bility-iD

Depreciation expense

Tot¡l ExprNca

Excess (Dcliciency) ofRevcruc Ovcr (Uúdcr) Erpcns.§

$ 562,999

83174

21,622

668.tD5

1,191

l,l9l
2,3,E2

166,433

53

53

&t6,963

72,432

t7,32t

t7.to7

106,867

19,974

1,644

21.622

223

128,112

70Er5l

619,944

6t9,9U

l55Jl5

999

m4970

90

(ó8,007)



COMMONWEALTH OF PTIERTO RICO
MUMCIPALTTY OF JUANA DÍAZ

Financial Data Schedule
Year Ended June 30, 2015

Lire Item
Housing Choice

Vouchers
Descriptio¡ (CFDANO l4.E7r)

I1030

11!Z@1
rrr7G0l0

ru¿0r21
I rl70{45

1!.120{50

11!20051

11!@
11U0lE0
11170-tD0

11!20J95

I I170-r r0

!!!0{0z
1!.120-001

lll70

!1!!0¿0r
I I t80-010

IrrS(){)ls
I I180-020

lllS(H)21

lllSH)25
I I l8t!030

I118M80

ll l8tL100

lllEfH)02

r r r80-(m3

1llEo

I t 19fL2t 0

r tr90

l12l0

Begi¡ning equity

Administrative Fee Equiry- Beginning Balance

Administrative Fee Revenue

FSS Coordinalor Grant

Fmud Recovery Revenue

Other Revenue

Comment for üher Revenue

Tohl Admin Fee Re!€nues

Tol¿l Operating Expenses

Depreciation

Housing Assistance Pon¿bility In

Total Expenses

Net Administrative Fee

Administra¡ive Fee Equity- Ending Balance

Adúi¡istr.tivc Fee Equity

Housing Assist¿nc-€ Payments Equity - Begining Balance

Housing Assistance Payment Revenues

Fraud Recovery Revenue

Othe¡ Revenue

Comment for Other Revenue

Investment Income

Total HAP Revenues

Housing Assisrance Payments

Total Housing Assistance Payments Expenses

Net Housing Assistance Payments

Hous¡ng Assistance Payments Equity-Ending Balance

Homing Assistance P.yr¡rcnts Equity

Total ACC HCV Unifs

Unit MoDths Available

Utrit Months Leesed

$ 71,570

(2,058)

83,474

2t,6»
l,l9l

165,953

Poñ¿bility Move In
Collecfons

)122.40

128,712

999

155,3 t5

285,026

(12,786'l

(14,844)

____§_____M,!11L

$ 73,628

562,999

I,l9l
480

Expired Checks
(outstanding more

rhan I year)

53

564.723

619,944

619,944

(55,221)

t8,407

______§______l!/ql

t,380

l J80

rJ6r
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COMMO¡I1VEALTH OF PUERTO RICO
MUNICIPALTTY OF JUANA D|AZ
Notes to Financial Dara Schedule

Year Ended June 30, 20 I 5

NOTE A - BASIS OF PRESENTATION

The accompanying Financial Data Schedule (FDS) is a trial balance of the Section I Housing
Choice Voucher Program, administered by the Municipality. The FDS was created in order to
standardize the financial information reported by Public Housing Authorities (PHA) to the Real

Estate Assessment Center (REAC), as required by the Uniform Financial Reporting Standa¡ds
(tlFRS). REAC is the US Department of Housing and Urban Development ([ILID) national
manager center created to assess the condition of HUD owned and assisted properties. The UFRS
are rules to implement requirements of 24 CFR, Part 5, Subpart H, for the electronic filing of
financial information to HUD.

In accordance with the guidelines for reporting and atlestation requirements of UFRS, the
accompanying FDS is included as information supplement¿ry to the financial statements. It was
prepared using the accrual basis ofaccounting, ¿l:; required by REAC regulations.

92



Schedule of Expenditures of FederalAwards
Fiscal Year Ended June 30r 2015
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COMMONWEALTH OF PUERTO RICO
MT]NICIPALITY OF JUANA D1AZ

SCHEDULE OF EXPEI\DITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2015

Federal
Federal Grantor / Pass-Through Grantor / CFDA Entity Identifying Federal

Proqram or Cluster Title Number Number _ Expenditures

U.S. DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE:

Pass-through the Depafment of Education of
the Commonwealth of Puerto Rico:

Child and Adult Care Food Program

Total U.S. Department of Agriculture

U.S. DEPARTMENT OF HOUSING ANI)
URBAN DEVELOPMENT:

Direct Programs:

Community Development Block Grants/
Entitlement Grants

Emergency Solutions Grant Program

Section 8 Housing Choice Vouchers

Pass-through the office ofthe
Commissioner of Municipal Affairs of the
Commonwealth of Puerto Rico:

Community Development Block Granls/
State's Program

Pass+hrough the Municipaliry of San Juan,

PR:

Housing Opportunities for Persons with
AIDS

Total U.S. Deparhnent of Housing and
Urban Development

U.S. DEPARTMENT OF
TRANSPORTATION:

Pass+hrough the Transit Safe§ Commission
of the Commonwealth of Puerto Rico:

Alcohol Impaired Driving Countermeasures
Incentive Grants I

Total U.S. Ilepartment of Transportation

10.558 CCC-250 490,197

| 4.2t8

| 4.231

14.87 |

490,197

962,391

15,975

ó68,095

14.228 NSP t,230

N/AV
14.24t 78,534

1,726,225

20.60 I N/AV 7l ,864
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COMMOI\IWEALTH OF PUERTO RICO
MT]NICIPALITY OF JUANA DíAZ

SCHEDULE OF EXPEI\IDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS (CONTINUtrD)

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR f,NDED JIJNE 30, 2015

Federal
Federal Grantor / Pass-Through Grantor CFDA Entity Identifying Federal

/ Progr¿m or Cluster Title Number Number _ Expenditures

U.S. DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AIYD
IIUMA]TI SERYICE:

Pass-Through the Departmenl ofthe Family
of the Commonwealth of Puerto fuco

Community Services Block Grant 93.569 N/AV

Pass-Through the Administration for

39,938

Integral Care and Development ofChildren
ofthe Commonwealth of Puelo Rico:

Child Care and Development Block Grant 93.575 241-2015-000065 123,914

Head Start

Pass-Through the Municipality of Ponce,

241-2014-000132
93.ó00 241-2015-000149 5,783,021

P.R.

HIV Emergency Relief Project Grant 93.914 N/AV 2,074

Total U.S. Department of Health and
Iluman Service

U.S. DEPARTMENT OF HOMELAND
SECURITY:

Pass-Through Govemor's Office -
Govemor's Authorized Representative
(GAR)

Disaster Grants - Public Assistance

Total Department of Eomeland Security

TOTAL EXPENDITURE OF FEDERAL AWARDS

97.036 N/AV 1,852

1,852

__§__!¿t2J!5

3,948,947

See accompanying Notes to Schedule ofExpenditures ofFederal Awards
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COMMOITWEALTH OF PUERTO RICO
MIINICIPALITY OF JUANA DÍAZ

NOTES TO THE SCIIEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JI]NE 30, 2015

NOTE 1_ GENERAL

The accompanying Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards includes the federal grant activify of the

Municipaliry of Juana Díaz, Puerto Rico (Municipality) and is presented on the modified accrual basis.

The information in this schedule is presented in accordance with the requirements of OMB Circular A-133,

Audits of States, Local Governments, and Non-Profit Organizalions. Therefore, some amounts presented in
this schedule may differ from amounts presented in, or used in the preparation of, the general-purpose

financial statements. The reporting entity is defined in Note (l) (A) to the general-purpose combined

financial statements.

NOTE 2 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The accompanying Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards is prepared from Municipality's
accounting records and is not intended to present financial position or the results ofoperations.

The Municipality in accordance with the terms records the financial transactions and conditions of the

grants, which are consistent with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America-

Expenditures are recognized in the accounting period in which the liability is incurred. if measurable or
when actually paid, whichever occurs first.

NOTE 3 - FEDf,RAL CFDA NUMBER

The CFDA numbers included in this Schedule are determined based on the program n¿rme, review of grant

con¡act information and the Office of Management and Budget's Catalogue of Federal Domestic

Assistance.

NOTE 4 _ PASS-THROUGH GRANTOR'S NUMBER

State or local govemment redistribution of federal awards to the Municipality, treated as if they were

received directly from the federal government. OMB Circular A-133 requires the schedule to include the

name of the pass-through entiry and identiling number assigned by the pass+hrough entity for federal

awards received as a sub recipient. Numbers identified as N/AV are not available.

NOTE 5_ MAJOR PROGRAMS

Major programs are identified in the Summary of Auditor's Results Section ofthe Schedule ofFindings and

Questioned Costs.
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V iuinn n V élc z C ar r asquillo
Ce¡ lifie il P ublic A c c ounlanl

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL
REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN AUDIT OF

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE WITH GOWRNMENT
AUDITING STANDARDS

To the Honoreble Mayor and
Members of the Municipal L€gislature
Municipality of Juana Dí¡2, Puerto Rico

I have audited, in accordance with the auditing slandards generally accepted in rhe United States of
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Governmenl Auditing Standards

issued by the Comptroller General ofthe United States. the financial statements ofeach major fund, and the

aggregate remaining fund information of Municipaliry ofJuana Díaz, Puerto Rico (Municipality), as of and

for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2015, and the related notes to the financial statements. I was engaged to
audit the financial statements of the govemmental activities. These financial statements collectively
comprise the Municipaliry's basic financial statements and have issued my repof thereon dated March 30,

2015. The report on the governmen¡al fund financial s¡atements was unmodified. In addition, I did not

express an opinion on the govemmenlal activities of the Municipality because I was unable to obtain

competent evidential matter related Io the capit¿l assets including the infrastructure, the liability related to

the solid waste landfill. and information related to the net pension liability, deferred outflows/ inflows of
resources and pension expense. My report includes a reference to other auditors who audited the financial

sratements of Villas del Parque, as described in my report on the Municipality's financial statements. This

report does not include the results of the other auditors' testing of intemal control over financial reponing

or compliance and other matters that are reponed on separately by those auditors.

Int€rnal Control ov€r Financid Reportins

In planning and performing my audit ofthe financial statements. I considered the Municipaliry's intemal

control over financial reporting to determine the audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances

for lhe purpose of expressing my opinions on the financial statements, but not for the purpose of expressing

an opinion on the effectiveness of the Municipality's internal control. Accordingly, I do not express an

opinion on the effectiveness ofthe Municipality's intemal conÍol.

My consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the preceding paragraph and

was nol design to identi! all deficiencies in internal control that might be material weaknesses or

significant deficiencies and therefore. material weaknesses or significant deficiencies may exist that were

not idenlified. However, as described in the accompanying Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs, I

identified certain deficiencies in internal control that I consider 10 be material weak¡esses and significant

deficiencies.

A defciency in intemal control exisfs when the design or operation of a control does not allow management

or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, lo prevent or detect and correct

misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or combination of deficiencies, in

internal control such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misst¿tement of the entity's
financial statemens will not be prevented, or detected and corrected on a timely basis. I consider the

deficiencies described in the accompanying Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs to be material

weaknesses. Findings 20 I 5-003, 20 I 5-004 and 20 I 5{05.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL
REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN AUDIT OF

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE WI"IH GOWRNMENT
AU D I TI NG S TANDAR D S (CONTINUED)

A signifcant defciency is a deficiency. or combination of deficiencies, in intemal control that is less severe

than a material weakness, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with govemance. I
consider the deficiency described in the accompany Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs to be

significant deficiencies. Finding 2015-001 and 2015-002.

Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the Municipaliry's financial sEtements are free of
material misstatement, I performed tesls of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations,
contracts and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on üe
determination of financial statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on compliance with those

provisions was not an objective of my audir, and accordingly, I do not express such an opinion. The results

of my tests disclosed instances of noncompliance or other matters that are required to be reported under

Government Auditing Standards and which is described in the accompanying Schedule of Findings and

Questioned Costs as item 2015-001.

Municinelitv's Resnonse to Findines

Municipality's response to the findings identified in my audit are described in the accompanying Schedule

of Findings and Questioned Costs. Municipaliry's response was not subjected to the auditing procedures

applied in the audit ofthe financial statements and, accordingly I express no opinion on it.

Puroose of this Reoort

The purpose of this repon is solely to describe the scope of my testing of intemal control and compliance
and the results of that testing. and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity's intemal

control or on compliance. This report is an integral pan of an audit performed in accordance with
Government Auditing Standards in considering the entity's intemal control and compliance. Accordingly,
this communication is not suitable for any other purpose.
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V iuinn a V élez Cnrr asquillo
C e r fif ie il Publie A ce ounlant

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT ON COMPLIANCE FOR EACH MAJOR PROGRAM
AND ON INTERNAL CONTROL OV[,R COMPLIANCI, RI,QUIRED BY OMB CIRCULAR

A-133

To the Honorable Mayor and
Member of the Municipal Legislature
Municipali§ of Juana Día4 Puerto Rico

Report on Compliance for Each Maior Federal Proeram

I have audited Municipatity of Juana Díaz. Pueno Rico (Municipatity) compliance with the types of
compliance requirements described in fhe OMB Circular A-133 Compliance Supplement fhat could have a

direct and material effect on each Municipality's major federal programs for the fiscal year ended June 30,

2015. The Municipality's major federal programs are identified in the summary of auditor's results section

ofthe accompanying Schedule ofFindings and Questioned Costs.

The Municipality's basic financial statements include the financial statements of Villas del Parque (FmHA
Project No. 63-033-0690660049) (Viltas del Parque). a proprietary fund, which received federal awards,

which are not included in the Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards. Other auditors audited the
compliance of Villas del Parque, with the types ofcompliance requirements described in the OMB Circular
A-133 Compliance Supplement that are applicable to the major program of Villas del Parque for the fiscal
year ended June 30, 2015. This report does not include üe results of the other auditors' tesling of
compliance or intemal control over compliance that are reponed separately by those auditors.

M¡naeement's Resoonsibilitv

Management is responsible for compliance with the requirements of laws, regulations, contracts, and grants

applicable to its federal progr¿rms.

Auditor's Responsibilitv

My responsibility is to express an opinion on compliance for each of the Municipaliq-'s major federal
progr¿rms based on my audit of the types of compliance requirements referred to above. I conducted my
audit of compliance in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United St¿tes of
America; the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued

by the Comptroller General of the United States; and OMB Circular A-133, Audits of States, Local
Governments, and Non-Profit Organizations. Those standards and OMB Circular A-133 require that I plan

and perform the audil to obtain reasonable assurance about whether noncompliance with the types of
compliance reqürements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on a major federal
program occurred. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence about the Municipality's
compliance with those requirements and performing such other procedures as I considered necessary in the
circumstances.

I believe that my audit provides a reasonable basis for my opinion on compliance for each major federal
program. However, my audit does not provide a legal determination of Municipality's compliance.
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INDEPENDENT AI]DITOR'S REPORT ON COMPLIANCE FOR EACII MAJOR PROGRAM
AND ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER COMPLIANCE REQUIRED BY OMB CIRCULAR

A-133 (CONTINUI,D)

Basis for Oualified Oninion on Head Start

As described in the accompanying Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs, the Municipality, did not

comply with requirement regarding CFDA 93.600 Head Start as described in finding number 2015-007 for
Reporting. Compliance rvith such requirements is necessary, in my opinion, for the Municipality to comply

wilh the requirements applicable to that program.

Unmodilied Ooinion on Each of the Other Maior Federal Proerams

In my opinion, the Municipality complied, in all material respects. with the fypes of compliance
requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on each of its other major federal
programs identiñed in the summary of auditor's results section of the accompanying schedule of findings
and questioned costs for the year ended June 30, 2015.

Other Matters

The ¡esults ofmy auditing procedures disclosed other instances of noncompliance, which are required to be

reponed in accordance with OMB Circular A-133 and rvhich are described in the accompanying Schedule

of Findings and Questioned Costs as items 2015-006. My opinion on each major federal program is not
modified with respect to these matters.

Municipality's response to the noncompliance findings identified in my audit are described in the

accompanying Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs. Municipality's response was not subjected to
the auditing procedures applied in the audit of compliance and, accordingly I express no opinion on the

response.

Report on Internal Control over Compliance

Management of the Municipality is responsible for establishing and maintaining effective intemal control

over compliance tvith the rypes of compliance requirements referred to above. In planning and performing
my audit of compliance. I considered Municipality's intemal control over compliance with the types of
requirements tha¡ could have a direct and material effect on each major federal program to determine the

auditing procedures that are appropriate in the circumslances for the purpose of expressing an opinion on

compliance for each major federal program and to test and report on internal control over compliance in
accordance with OMB Circular A-133, but not for the purpose ofexpressing an opinion on the effectiveness

of intemal control over compliance. Accordingly, I do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the

Municipality's intemal control over compliance.

My consideration of intemal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in the
preceding paragraph and was not designed to identi! all deficiencies in intemal control over compliance
that might be material weak¡esses or significant deficiencies and therefore, material weaknesses or
significant deficiencies may exist that were not identified. However, as discussed below, I identified certain
deficiencies in internal control over compliance that I consider to be material weak¡esses and significant
deficiencies.
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INDEPEIYDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT ON COMPLIANCE FOR EACH MAJOR PROGRAM
AND ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVf,R COMPLIANCE REQUIRf,D BY OMB CIRCT'LAR

A-r33 (CONTINUED)

A. deficiency in internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a control over
compliance does not allow managemen¡ or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned

functions, to prevent or detect and conect noncompliance with a fype of compliance requirement of a

federal program on a timely basis. A material weakness in inlernal control over compliance is a defrciency.
or combination of deficiencies, in internal control over compliance. such that there is a reasonable
possibility that material noncompliance with a rype ofcompliance requirement ofa federal program will not
be prevented, or detected and corrected on a timely basis. I considered the deficiencies in intemal control
over compliance described in the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs as item 2015-
007 to be material weaknesses.

A significant deficiency in internal con¡rol over compliance is a deficiency, or a combina¡ion of
deficiencies, in intemal control over compliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal
program that is less severe than a material weakness in intemal control over compliance, yet important
enough to merit aÍention by those charged with governance. I consider the deficiencies in intemal control
over compliance described in the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs as item 2015-
006 to be significant deficiency.

Municipality's response to lhe intemal conrol over compliance findings identified in my audit are

described in the accompanying Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs. Municipality's response was

not subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of compliance and, accordingly I express no
opinion on the response.

The purpose ofthis repon on internal conrol over compliance is solely to describe the scope ofmy testing
of intemal control over compliance and the results of that testing based on the requirements of OMB
Circular A-133. Accordingly, this repon is not suitable for any other purpose.
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COMMOIIWEALTH OF PI]ERTO RICO
MIJNICIPALITY OF JUANA DÍAZ

SCHEDULE OF FII{DINGS A¡ID QUESTIONED COSTS

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JT'NE 30, 2015

SECTION I - SUMMARY OF ATJDITOR'S RESI]LTS

Financial Statements

Opinion Units

Govemmental activities
Business-type activities
General Fund
Debt Service Fund
Head Stan Fund

Capital Improvement Fund

Aggregated remaining fu nd

Villas del Parque Fund- enterprise fund

Intemal control over financial reporting:
Material weakness identifi ed?

Signifi cant defi ciencies identifi ed?

Noncompliance material to financial statements noled?

Federal awards

Intemal Control over major programs:

Material weakness identifi ed?

Signifi cant defi ciencies identified?

Type ofauditor's report issued on compliance for major
programs:

Unmodified opinion, except
qualified opinion for llerd Start

Tvne of Ooinions

Disclaimer
Unmodified
Unmodified
Unmodified
Unmodified
Unmodified
Unmodified
Unmodified

Yes X
Yes X

Yes X No

Yes X
Yes X

No
None reported

No
None reported

Any audit findings disclosed that are required to be reported
in accordance with Circular A-133, Section .510(a)? Yes X No

Identification of maior Droqrams

CFDA Number Name ofFederal Program or Cluster

10.558

\4.218

t4.871

93.600

Dollar threshold used to distinguish between
Type A and Type B programs

Auditee qualified as low-risk auditee?

Child and Adult Care Food Program

Community Development Block Grants - Entitlement Grants

Section 8 Housing Choice Voucher

Head Start

s300,000

Yes No X
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COMMONWEALTH OF PUERTO RICO
MUNICIPALITY OF JUANA DÍAZ

SCHEDULE OF FIIIDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS (CONTINUED)

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2015

SECTION II - FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FINDINGS

FINDING NUMBER

REQUIREMENT

CONDITION

CONTEXT

CRITERIA

CAUSE

EFFECT

RECOMMENDATION

2015-001

ACCOUNTING RECORDS AND REPORTING SYSTEM

The Municipality did not maintain complete accounting records.

During the examination of the accounting records, I noted that the

Municipaliry does not summarize the transactions in a formal accounting
system in order to properly record and account for the Íansactions of the
general fund and special revenue funds.

Article 8.010 (c) of State Act Number 8l- Ley de Municipios Autonomos
del Estado Libre Asociado de Puerto R¿o of August 30, 1991, states that
uniform accounting system used by the Municipaliry must produce reliable
reports and financial statements, provide complete information about the
results of operations of the Municipality and include the necessary intemal
controls to account for all funds, capital assets and other assets.

The Municipaliry has not established the accounting procedures and

adequate intemal controls to ensure the adequate recording of all the
financial information ofthe general fund and the special revenue funds.

This condition inhibits the Municipality from having current and reliable
financial repons and information necessary for management to take

effi cient financial actions.

I recommend management to establish the necessary intemal controls and
procedures in order to establish a complete accounting system that generate

accurate accounting information of all the funds maintain by the

Municipality.

Also, the Municipality should consider providing addirional training to the
finance office staff in order to continue improving the accou ing records.
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COMMONWEALTH OT PUERTO RICO
MI]NICIPALITY OF JUANA DÍAZ

SCHEDULE OF FII\DINGS AND QUESTIOI{ED COSTS (CONTI¡IIJED)

FOR TEE, FISCAL YEAR ENDED JI]NE 30, 2015

SECTION II - FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FINDINGS

FINDINGNIJMBER

R.EQUIREMENT

Management Respons€
and Corrective Action

Implementation Date:
Responsible Person:

2015-001 (CONTTNUED)

ACCOTINTING RECORDS A¡ID RI,PORTING SYSTEM

As we comment in the past year Single Audit, we engaged Rock Solid
Technologies, Inc., to proceed with the implement¿tion of a new
accounting software in our Municipality. The new accounting system,

known as SIMAO or Integrated Solution for Advanc€d Municipalities,
started on July l, 2015 and actually, we are still in the final implementation
steps- SIMA@ is a financial system created for the Municipalities ofPuerto
Rico, in order to provide det¿iled, up-to-the-minute financial reports that
allow municipalities to make informed management decisions, to comply
with reporting requirements, and to ensure financial integrity and

accountabil ity.

June 201ó
Lcda. Lilliam E. Santiago García
Finance Director
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COMMONWEALTH OF PUERTO RICO
MI]NICIPALITY OF JUANA DÍAZ

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS (CONTI¡ruED)

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JIJNE 30, 2015

SECTION II - FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FINDINGS

FINDING NUMBER

REQUIREMENT

CONDITION

CONTEXT

CRITERIA

CAUSE

2015-002

ACCOUNTING RECORDS. BANK RECONCILIATIONS

The Municipality does not maintain effective internal control procedures 1o

ensure that the bank reconciliations of the payroll and current banl
accounts were prepared accurately. in a timely manner and reconciled with
the accounting records-

During the examination of the bank reconciliations, I noted that the

Municipality did not prepared the payroll and current bank account
reconciliations, for the fiscal year 2014-2015, in a timely manner.

Chapter IV. Section 12 of the Municipal Administration Regulatory
Manual of the Puerto Rico Commissioner's Office for Municipal Affair
(OCAM), establishes thal üe accounting system of the municipalities shall
provide for the timely and accurate preparation of bank reconciliations. In
addirion, the Municipality shall prepare a monthly report of revenues and

disbursements, which has to be reconciled with the bank reconciliations.

The Municipality's internal contol procedures failed to assure ihat the

banl reconciliations were prepared in a complete manner and reconciled
with the accounting records.

The Municipality is not in compliance with Chapter IV, Section l2 of the
Municipal Administration Regulatory Manual of the OCAM.

I recommend management to establish intemal control procedures over the
preparation of the bank reconciliations and assure thal the accounting
records are reconciled with the bank reconciliations within a reasonable

amount of time in order to maintain proper control over cash.

We expect to improve our intemal control and procedures related to issue

of timely preparation of bank accounts reconciliations with the
implementation of the accounting system recently acquired. known as

SIMA@ or Integrated Solution for Advanced Municipalities. Actually we
are training our staff about the reconciliation process through the
accounting system. in order to provide to the management to-the-minute
financial information to ¡ake informed management decisions and maintain
adequate intemal controls.

June 2016
Lcda. Lilliam E. Santiago García
Finance Director

EFFECT

RECOMMENDATION

Management Response
and Corrective Action

Implementation Date:
Responsible Person:
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COMMONWEALTH OF PUERTO RICO
MUNICIPALITY OF JUANA DiAZ

SCHIDULE OF FINDINGS A¡{D QUESTIONED COSTS (CONTINUED)

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JI]NE 30, 2OI5

Sf,CTION II - FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FINDINGS

FINDING NUMBER

REQUIREMENT

CONDITION

CRITERIA

CATJSE

EFFECT

RECOMMENDATION

2015-003

ACCOUNTING RECORDS - NET PENSION LIABILITY

The Municipality recorded the proportionate net pension liabiliry of is
participation in the State Employee Retirement System Administration and

the related deferred outflows/ defened inflorvs of resources and pension

expense. in the government wide financial slatements based on unaudited
information provided by the State Employees' Retirement System

Administration, which is a cost-sharing multiple-employer pension plan. I

was unable to obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence about the
proportional share used to determine the defened outflows/ inflows of
resources, net pension liability, and pension expense of the govemment¿l

activities and the note disclosure ofthe pension plan.

GASB Statement No. 68 sates the accounting and financial reporting
requirements for pension plans provided to employees of stale and local
governments that are administered through cost-sharing pension plan. This
statement requires that the Municipality repon in its proportionate share of
the collective net pension liabiliry, pension expense and deferred outflows/
inflows of resources related to pensions as ofthe measurement date. It also

requires disclosures related to the actuarial and financial information used

in the calculation of the net pension liability and the reporting of historical
pension data as Required Supplementary Information.

The State Employee Retirement System Administration did not provided in
a timely manner, to the Municipality, audited information related to the

pension plan.

The Municipality's Govemment-Wide Financial Statements presents

unaudited amounts related to the net pension, deferred inflows/ outflows of
resources and the pension expense.

I recommend management to request to the State Employees Retirement
System Administration, the audited actuarial and financial information and
make the necessary adjustments in the Govemment Wide financial
statemenls in order to comply with the requirements of the GASB
Statement No. 68.
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COMMONWEALTH OF PUERTO RICO
MIJNICIPALITY OF JUANA DÍAZ

SCEEDULE OF FINDINGS ATYD QUESTIO¡IED COSTS (CONTII\TIJED)

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR E¡IDED Jf'NE 30, 2015

SECTION II - FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FINDINGS

FINDING NUMBER 201 )03 (CONTINUED)

REQUIREMENT

M¡n¡gement Response

ACCOUNTING RECORDS - NET PENSION LIABILITY

¡nd Corrective Act¡on We are going to send a formal request to the State Employees Retirement
System Administratiori, in order to obtain the audited actuarial and

financial information and make the necessary adjustmens in the
Govemment Wide financial statements in order to comply with the

quirements ofthe GASB Statement No. 68.

Implementation Date: June 2016
Responsible Person: Lcda. Lilliam E. Santiago García

Finance Director
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COMMOIYWEALTH OF PUERTO RICO
MUNICIPALITY OF JUANA DÍAZ

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS (CONTINUED)

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JI]NE 30, 2015

SECTION II - FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FINDINGS

FINDING NUMBER

REOUIREMENT

CONDTTION

CONTEXT

CRITERIA

CAUSE

EFFECT

RECOMMENDATION

2015-004

ACCOUNTING RECORDS- CAPITAL ASSETS

The Municipality does not have an effective system to account for capital
assets, including the infrastructure assets.

During the examination of the property records, I norcd üat the
Municipality does not have adequate intemal conrols and procedures to
ensure that all capital expenditures and dispositions are recorded in the
capital assets subsidiary ledger. Also, the Municipality did not have
adequate supporting documentation of the cost of the capital assets,
including the infrastructure, reported in the statement of net position at
June 30, 2015.

GASB 34 requires that all capital assets, including infrastructure, must be
presented in the statement of net position and that there must be
depreciated during its useful life. Also, Article 8.010 (c) (3) of the State
Law Number 8l- Ley de Municipios Autónomos del Estado Libre
Asociados de Puerto Rico de l99l of August 30, 1991, slated that
Municipality should maintain updated property accounting records.

The lack of an adequate capital assets register did not permit the proper
accounting over the capital assets additions, the accumulated depreciation
and the depreciation expense presented in the financial statements of the
Municipality.

The Municipality's government wide financial statements do not presenl
fairly, the financial position of the governmental activities, and the change
in net position.

I recommend management and the Property Division of the Municipality to
make an inventory of the capital assets, support it with adequate
documentation and reconcile it with the capital assets subsidiary ledger.
Also. the account¡ng staff should determine if the accumulated
depreciation and depreciation expense are properly calculated.
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COMMON1VEALTH OF PUERTO RICO
MI]NIC IPALITY OF JUANA DÍAZ

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS (CONTIIruED)

FOR TIIE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JI,JNE 30, 2015

SECTION II - FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FINDINGS

T'INDING NUMBER

RI,QUIREMENT

Manegem€nt Response
rnd Corrective Action

Implementalion Date:
Responsible Person:

2015-0(H

ACCOUNTING RECORDS CAPITAL ASSETS

We expect to improve our intemal control and procedures related to issue

of capital asses with the implementation ofthe accounting system recently
acquired, known as SIMA@ or Integrated Solution for Advanced
Municipalities. Actually we are training our staff about the new accounting
system capital assets module, in order to provide to the management to-
the-minute financial information to take informed management decisions

and maintain adequate intemal controls. Also, we are developing written
standard operating procedures in order lo solve the issue mentioned in the
Condirion.

June 2016
Lcda. Lilliam E. Santiago García
Finance Director
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COMMON\ryEALTH OF PUERTO RICO
MUNICIPALITY OF JUANA DÍAZ

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS (CONTINUED)

FOR TIIE FISCAL YEAR I,IIDED JUNE 30, 2OI5

SECTION II - FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FINDINGS

FINDING NUMBER

REQUIREMENT

CONDITION

CONTEXT

CRITERIA

CAUSE

EFFECT

2015-005

ACCOT'NTING RICORDS MUNICIPAL SOLID WASTE
LAI\DFILL CLOSURE AND POSTCLOSURE CARE ANI)
MAINTENANCE COSTS

The Municipality did not recorded in its government wide financial
statements. the required liabiliry for rhe landfill closure and post closure

care costs-

At June 30, 2015 the Municipality did not realized the required study ofthe
available space in order to determine the estimated cost of the closing and
post-closing ofthe Municipality's waste landfill. In addition. the statement
of net position did not present the required liability for closure and post-

closure care cosls ofthe Municipality's landfill.

Regulations set forth by the U.S. Environmental Protection Agency (EPA)
in its "Solid Waste Disposal Facility Criteria"; üe Municipality is required
to place a final cover on the Municipaliry's solid waste landfill site when it
stops accepting waste, and to perform certain maintenance and monitoring
functions af the site for 30 years after closure. GASB l8 requires the

Municipality to perform a study of the activities that need to be

implemented at the Municipaliry's solid waste landfill facilities to
guarantee the maximum yield of available space and to comply with
applicable state and federal regulations. Based on this study, the
Municipality must recognize a liability in its statement of net position at
June 30,2015.

The Municipality failed to realize a study of the operation of the waste
Iandfill, in accordance with the requirements of the EPA, in order to
determine the closure and post-closure cosls.

The Municipality's government wide financial statements do not present
fairly. the financial position of the governmental activities, and the change
in net position. Also. the Municipality is not in compliance with GASB 18

and the "Solid Waste Disposal Facilib- Criteria" issued by úe U.S.
Environmenlal Protect¡on Agency.

I recommend management to perform the study of the activities that need
to be implemented at the Municipality's solid waste landfill facilities and
determine the amount of the liability that should be reponed in the
govemmental activities.

RECOMMENDATION
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COMMOIIWEALTH OF PUERTO RICO
MI'NIC IPALITY OF JUANA DÍAZ

SCIIEDULE OF FINDINGS A}ID QUESTIONED COSTS (CONTIIruED)

FOR THE FISCAL Yf,AR ENDED JTINE 30, 2015

SECTION II - FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FINDINGS

FINDING NUMBER

REQUIREMENT

Managem€nt R€sponse
and Corrective Action

201s-005 (coNTINUf,D)

ACCOT'NTING RECORDS-
LANDFILL CLOSURE AND
MAINTENANCE COSTS

MUNICIPAL SOLID WASTE
POSTCLOST'RE CARE AND

As we comment in the past Single Audit, our Municipality submitted for
approval a Closure Plan to the Commonwealti of Puerto Rico
Environmental Quality Board (JCA, by its acronyms in Spanish), and is
still waiting for a response from such Agency. After approval of the
Closure Plan, the Municipality will request the professional services
required to estimate the closure and post-closure care costs based on the
terms and conditions contained in the approved Closure Plan- Also, ir is
important to comment that the Municipality of Juana Díaz engaged an
independent Contractors for performing the day-to{ay Solid Waste
Landfill Management operations ofthe Municipality. Such contractor will
provide tecbnical assistance to the Municipality of Juana Diaz related to
the existing active landfill cell closure.

Implementation Date: June 2016
Responsible Person: Lcda. Lilliam E. Santiago García

Finance Director
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COMMOIYWEALTH OF PUERTO RICO
MIJNICIPALITY OF JUANA DÍAZ

SCHEDULE OF FIIIDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS (CONTIIruED)

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2015

SECTION III - FEDERAL AWARD FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS

FINDING NUMBER

FEDERAL PROGRAM

REQUIREMENT

NONCOMPLIANCE

CONDITION

CONTEXT

CR!TERIA

2015-00ó

SECTTON 8 HOUSING CHOTCE VOUCHERS (CFDA 14.871) U.S.

DEPARTMENT OF HOUSING AND URBAN DEVELOPMENT

COMPLIANCE AND INTERNAL CONTROL

SPECIAL TEST. ROLLING FORWARD EQUITY BALANCES

During the fiscal year 2014-2015, the Program did not maintained accurate

accounting over the roll-forward HAP equiry balance.

During the examination of the accounting records. I noted that the amount

of HAP equity, reported in the Voucher Management System (VMS) for
the month ofJune 30.2015, have differences of$3,369 with the amount of
Net Restricted Assets and §26.706 with the amount of Unrestricted Net
Assets reported in the audited financial information for lhe year ended June

30, 2015, submitted through the FASS-PH system.

Code of Federal Regulations, 24 CFR, Section 982.1 58 (a) (b) states that

the PHA must maintain complete and accurate accounls and other records

for the program in accordance with HUD requirements, in a manner that

permits a speedy and effective audit. The records must be in the form
required by HUD, including requirements governing computerized or
electronic forms of record-keeping. Also, the PHA must furnish to HL-ID

accounts and other records, reports, documents and infolmation, as

required by HUD.

The hogram's intemal control over the accounting records failed to assure

that the HAP equity was properly calculated.

The Program is not in compliance with Code of Federal Regulation 24,

Section 982.158 (a) (b).

I recommended management to prepare an analysis, supponed by adequate

accounting records and adjust or correct any errors on this account.

CAUSE

EFFECT

RECOMMENDATION
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COMMOTflVEALTH OF PUERTO RICO
MUNICIPALITY OF JUANA DÍAZ

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS (CONTINUED)

FOR TIIE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2OT5

SECTION III - FEDERAL AWARD FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS

FINDING NUMBER 201$.OOó (CONTI¡TUED)

FEDERAL PROGRAM SECTION 8 HOUSING CHOICE VOUCHER§ (CFDA 14.871) U.S.
DEPARTMENT OF EOUSING AND T]RBAN DEVf,LOPMENT

REQUIREMEI{T COMPLIANCE A¡ID INTERNAL CONTROL

NONCOMPLIANCE SPECIAL TEST- ROLLING FORWARD EQUITY BALANCES

QUESTIONEDCOST§ None

Manegement Response
and Corrective Action The Program accounting staff was insÍucted to correct the HAP and

Administrative reserves in the VMS, in order to adjust such reserves in
accordance with the audited financial information to be submitted through
the FASS-PH system for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2015.

Implementation Date: May 2016
Responsible Person: Mrs. Magda Boglio

Federal Programs Office Director
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COMMOT{IVEALTH OF PIIERTO RICO
MUNICIPALITY OF JUANA DÍAZ

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS (CONTINUED)

FOR TIIE FISCAL YEAR f,NDED JI]NE 30, 2015

SECTION III - FEDERAL AWARD FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS

Í.INDING NUMBER

FEDERAL PROGRAM

REQUIREMENT

NONCOMPLIANCE

CONDITION

CONTEXT

CRITERIA

CAUSE

20I5-007

IIEAD START (CFDA NO. 93.600) U,S. DEPARTMENT OF
HEALTH AND HT]MAN SERVICES; PASS THROUGH
COMMONWEALTH OF PUERTO RICG ADMINISTRATION
FOR CARE AND INTEGRAL DEVELOPMENT OF CIIILDHOOI)
(ACUDEN)

COMPLIANCE A¡{D INTf,RNAL CONTROL

REPORTING

The Program did not maintained adequate accounting records.

During the reporting test regarding program year ended February 28,2015
(Grant 2014-2015), I noted that the Program did not maintain an adequate

set of accounting records in order to fairly present the financial position of
the Head Start program and the results of its operations. Also, during the

matching test, I noted that the information related to ihe matching
contributions are maintained in electronic worksheets that are not
integrated to the accounting records of the Program. In addition, I noted

that the Program did not maintain a current and complete general ledger

which adequately sep¿[ates the administralive and programmatic costs of
the Head Start program.

Code of Federal Regulation 45,92.20 (b) (l) states that the grantees and

subgrantees financial management system must assure accurate, current,
and complete disclosure of the financial results of the financially assisted

activities in accordance with the financial reporting requirements of the
grant or subgrant. In addition, CFR 45, Section 92.20 (b) (2) states that the
grantees and subgrantees must maintain records which adequately identiS,
the source and application of funds provided for financially-assisted
activities. These records must contain information pertaining to grant or
subgrant awards and authorizations, obligations, unobligated balances,

assets, liabilities, outlays or expenditures and income.

The Program's internal controls failed to maintain proper accounting
records that supports adequafely, the financial reports submitted to the
pass-through entity.

The program did not maintain its financial management system updated to
assure compliance with the financial reporting requirements of the pass-

through entity.

EFFECT

114



COMMON1VEALTH OF PUERTO RICO
MUNICIPALITY OF JUANA DÍAZ

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AIID QUESTIONED COSTS (CONTINUED)

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JI]NE 30, 2015

SECTION III - FEDERAL AWARD FINDINGS A¡ID QUESTIONED COSTS

FINDING NUMBER

FEDERAL PROGRAM

2015-007 (CONTTNUED)

HEAD START (CFDA NO. 93.600) U.S. DEPARTMENT OF
HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES; PASS THROUGH
COMMOTI\ryEALTH OF PUERTO RICG ADMINISTRATION
FOR CARE A¡tD INTEGRAL DEVELOPMENT OF CHILDHOOD
(ACUDEN)

COMPLIANCE AND INTERNAL CONTROL

REPORTING

The Program should conlinue strengthening its procedures and controls to
ensure that the accounting system information is updated and assure that

the financial information submitted to lhe pass through entity, is supported
rvith complete and accurate accounting records.

None

The Administration for Integral Care and Development of Children of the

Commonwealth of Puerto Rico (ACUDEN, by its acronyms in Spanish)
promoted the implementation ofa new accounting software, commercially
known as Abila MIP Fund Accounting (formerly Sage MIP), in all
delegated agencies administering Head Stan program funds delegated by
the Agency. But we were experiencing technical difficulties with new

accounting softrva¡e. Such condition is out of our control because rve are

not the administrators ofthe accounting system functions.

Implemenlation Date: June l0l6
Responsible Person: Mr. Nelson Rivera Rodríguez

Head Stafi Program Director

REQUIREMENT

NONCOMPLIANCE

RECOMMENDATION

QUESTIONED COSTS

Man¿gement Response
and Corrective Action
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COMMOI{WEALTH OF PUERTO RICO
MIJNICIPALITY OF JUANA DÍAZ

SUMMARY SCHEDULE OF PRIOR YEARS FII\DINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JI.JNE 30, 2015

The following schedule contains the original number and title of each of the findings of federal awa¡ds

included in the Report on Compliance with Requiremenls Applicable to Each Major Program and Internal

Confrol over Compliance in Accordance with OMB Circular A-l33 and the Schedule of Prior Years' Audit

Findings for the Fiscal Year ended June 30, 2014. The following legend indicates the current status ofthe
prior years' audit findings:

ORIGINAL
FINDING CFDA

NUMBf,R

2014404 14.218 Matching. Level of Effort, Earmarking

Full corrective action was taken.

2014-005 14.871 Special Tess-Rolling Forward Equity Balances

No corrective action has been taken.
The auditor reissued the finding for the cunent year.

Finding reference 20 I 5-006

2014-006 93.600 Allowable Cost

Full corrective action was taken.

2014-007 93_600 Cash Management

Corrective action measures were taken. Actually, the cash balances
maintained are reasonable.

2014-008 93_600 Matching, Level of Effort, Earmarking

Panial corrective action has been taken.
The auditor reissued the finding for the current year.

Finding reference 201 5{07

Reporting

No corrective aciion has been taken.
The audito¡ reissued the finding for the current year.

2014{09 93_600

l16
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COMMONWEALTH OF PUERTO RICO
MI]NICIPALITY OF JUANA DÍAZ

SUMMARY SCHEDULE OF PRIOR YEARS FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS
(CONTII\[UED)

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JIJNE 30, 2OT5

ORIGINAL
FINDING
NUMBER

20r4{l0 10.558 Allowable Costs/ Costs Principles

Full conective action was taken.

l3-III-08 93.600 Cash Management

Corrective action measures were taken. Actually, the cash balances

maintained arc reasonable.

l3-tII-09 93.600 Matching, Level of Effort, Earmarking

Partial corrective action has been taken.
The auditor rcissued the finding for the cunent year.

Finding reference 201 5{07

l3-IIl-10 93.600 Reporting

No corrective action has been taken.
The auditor reissued the finding for the crÍrent year-

Finding reference 2015{07

l2-III-06 93.600
93.708

Cash Management

Corrective action measures were taken. Actually, lhe cash balances

maintained are reasonable.

I l-IIt-08 93.600
93.708

Cash Managemen¡

Corrective action measu¡es were taken- Actually, the cash balances
maintained are reasonable.

Cash Management

Corrective action measures were laken. Actually, the cash balances
maintained are reasonable.

1l-IIt-13 10.558

ll7


